AGENDA




I1.

IIL.

<

VIL

VIIL

AGENDA

City of Franklin, Kentucky
City Commission

March 11, 2019
Regular Meeting — 12:00 Noon

City Hall Meeting Room
117 West Cedar Street
Franklin, Kentucky
Call to Order and Member Roll Call
Opening Prayer - Brian Staron, Franklin Church of Christ
Approval of Minutes - Approval of Meeting Minutes from February 25, 2019 Regular Session ~ Pg. 5.
Recognitions |
Hear the Public
Community Services

e Discussion regarding Proposed Neighborhood Walks Pg. 11
Presenter: Tammie Carey, Community Development Director

e Update regarding Informational Videos Pg. 16
Presenter: Tammie Carey, Community Development Director

General Government

e Discussion regarding Fiscal Year 2017-2018 Audit Pg. 19
Presenter: Shaunna Cornwell, Finance Director

¢ Discussion and/or possible action regarding Approval of Promissory Notes for Payment
Of Liens and Taxes Presenter: Scott Crabtree, City Attorney Pg. 52

Public Services

Public Safety
e Discussion and/or possible action regarding Approval of Updates to Police Department Policies
and Procedures Manual Presenter: Scott Crabtree, City Attorney Pg. 59
Utilities
e Discussion regarding Purchase of Portable Flow Meters Pg. 90

Presenter: Kenny Massey, Water Distribution Supt.



XIL

XIII.

XIV.

XV.

Ordinances

e Second Summary Reading of Ordinance No. 2019-004 entitled: An Ordinance Of The Board Of
Commissioners Of The City Of Franklin, Kentucky, Authorizing The Grant Of An Inducement For The
Acquisition And Construction Of A Project Pursuant To The Kentucky Business Investment Program (KRS
154.32-010 To 154.32-100) Whereby The City Agrees To Forego The Collection Of The One Percent (1%6)
City Occupational License Fee On Wages From New Mather Metals, Inc. That Would Otherwise Be Due
With Respect To Project Employees, Which Amounts Shall Be Collected And Remitted to the City to be
Refunded Upon Employer’s Request Over A Term Of Not Longer Than Ten (10) Years From The Activation
Date Established By Said Program; And Taking Other Related Action Pg. 99

e Second Summary Reading of Ordinance No. 2019-005 entitled: An Ordinance Of The Board Of
Commissioners Of The City Of Franklin, Kentucky, Authorizing The Grant Of An Inducement For The
Acquisition And Construction Of A Project Pursuant To The Kentucky Business Investment Program (KRS
154.32-010 To 154.32-100) Whereby The City Agrees To Forego The Collection Of The One Percent (1%)
City Occupational License Fee On Wages From Sumitomo Electric Wiring Systems, Inc. That Would
Otherwise Be Due With Respect To Project Employees, Which Amounts Shall Be Collected and Remitted
to the City to be Refunded Upon Employer’s Request Over A Term Of Not Longer Than Ten (10) Years
From The Activation Date Established By Said Program; And Taking Other Related Action Pg. 106

e Second Summary Reading of Ordinance No. 2019-006 entitled: An Ordinance Of The City Of Franklin,
Kentucky Repealing And Re-Enacting Text And Substance Of Ordinance 2018-001 Regarding Sections
8.9.2, 8.15.2 And 8.15.3 Of The Zoning Regulations Pg. 113

e Second Summary Reading of Ordinance No. 2019-007 entitled: An Ordinance Amending the Annual
Budget for the Fiscal Year Beginning July 1, 2018 and Ending June 30, 2019 by Estimating Revenues and
Appropriations Pg. 117

e Second Summary Reading of Ordinance No. 2019-008 entitled: An Ordinance of the City of Franklin,

Kentucky Approving an Interlocal Agreement Regarding Planning and Zoning and Authorizing the Mayor
to Sign Presenter: Cathy Dillard, City Clerk Pg. 119

Executive Session

LAND ACQUISITION — Deliberations on the future acquisition or sale of real property by a public agency
where publicity would be likely to affect the value of a specific piece of property to be acquired for public use
or sold by a public agency {KRS 61.810(1)(b)}

BUSINESS — Discussions between a public agency a representative of a business entity concerning a specific
proposal, where open discussions would jeopardize the siting, retention, expansion, or upgrading of the

business {KRS 61.810(1)(g)}

PERSONNEL — Discussions or hearings which might lead to the appointment, discipline, or dismissal of an
individual employee or member {KRS 61.810(1)(f)}

City Attorney Reports

City Manager Reports

Other Commission Business

Adjournment —3—



MINUTES




MINUTES OF REGULAR SESSION
OF THE
CITY OF FRANKLIN
CITY COMMISSION

February 25, 2019
City Hall

117 West Cedar Street
Franklin, Kentucky

The Franklin, Kentucky City Commission met in Regular Session at 12:00 Noon, Monday,
February 25, 2019, in the City Hall meeting room located at 117 West Cedar Street, Franklin,
Kentucky.

Members attending were as follows:

Mayor Larry Dixon Present
Commissioner Jamie Powell Present
Commissioner Herbert Williams Present
Commissioner Brownie Bennett Present
Commissioner Wendell Stewart Present

Others present included City Manager Kenton Powell; City Attorney Scott Crabtree; City
Personnel Director/Deputy Clerk, Rita Vaughn; City Finance Director, Shaunna Cornwell;
City Police Chief, Roger Solomon; Public Works Superintendent Chris Klotter; City Clerk,
Cathy Dillard; Tammie Carey, Community Development Director; Franklin Favorite/ WFKN
media representative, Keith Pyles; Simpson County Judge Executive Mason Barnes; Robert
Palmer, Director of Emergency Management; Carter Munday, Chairman of F-S Planning &
Zoning Commission; Audrey Phillips from Goodnight Memorial Library; Debbie Hill and
Ellie Harbaugh from United Way of Southern Kentucky; and, Steve Thurmond, F-S Chamber
of Commerce.

Mayor Dixon called the meeting to order at 12:00 Noon, and Chris Morgan from the United
Methodist Church offered an opening prayer.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Motion was made by Commissioner Powell and seconded by Commissioner Bennett to
approve the minutes as presented of the February 11, 2019, regular meeting of the Franklin
City Commission.

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.



COMMUNITY SERVICES

Steve Thurmond, Executive Director of the F-S Chamber of Commerce provided the
Commission with a brief overview of upcoming Chamber activities. The community Health
Fair is scheduled for Saturday, March 2, 2019, and the annual Garden Spot walk/run which
takes place in August and attracts over 1,000 participants.

Debbie Hill and Ellie Harbaugh from United Way of Southern Kentucky provided an overview
and statistical data for the 2-1-1 service in Simpson County. Ms. Harbaugh indicated the
majority of calls received for Simpson County pertained to basic needs such as assistance with
utility payments, housing and food.

Audrey Phillips from the Goodnight Memorial Library provided the Commission with an
update of the progress of the extensive remodeling and rehabilitation of the Goodnight
Memorial Library. The Library is currently undergoing major rehabilitation and renovation
which could take over a year to complete.

Commissioner Stewart took this opportunity to thank United Way of Southern Kentucky for
their commitment to the citizens of Franklin and Simpson County. He indicated that he had
recently attended their annual meeting and had an opportunity to witness the numerous
programs United Way offers to our community and thanked Debbie and Ellie for their hard
work.

GENERAL GOVERNMENT

Community Development Director Tammie Carey asked the Commission to approve the
annual renewal of Trend Micro antivirus software and Sonic Wall for wireless access devices
at City Hall.

Motion was made by Commissioner Bennett and seconded by Commissioner Stewart to
authorize the annual renewal of Trend Micro and Sonic Wall software and to further authorize

the Mayor to sign any and all necessary documents for this annual renewal.

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

City Attorney Scott Crabtree asked the Commission for two sponsors of an ordinance to adopt
amendments to the Planning & Zoning Regulations that were recently approved by the F-S
Planning & Zoning Commission. Commissioner Powell and Commissioner Stewart agreed to
sponsor the ordinance to approve the regulation amendments with first reading of the ordinance
taking place in the ordinance portion of the meeting.

City Attorney Scott Crabtree asked the Commission for two sponsors of an ordinance
authorizing the participation in the Kentucky Business Investment Program (KBI) for
Sumitomo Electric Wiring Systems, Inc. Commissioner Powell and Commissioner Bennett
agreed to sponsor the ordinance with first reading taking place in the ordinance portion of the
meeting.



City Finance Director Shaunna Cornwell discussed the proposed revisions to the fiscal year
2019 operating budget. After the detailed discussion, Mrs. Cornwell asked for two sponsors
of the proposed ordinance to amend the current fiscal year budget. Commissioner Powell and
Commissioner Williams agreed to sponsor the ordinance with first reading taking place in the
ordinance portion of the meeting.

City Manager Kenton Powell reminded everyone of the upcoming joint City/County meeting
on Tuesday, March 5, 2019, at 12:00 Noon at Franklin City Hall.

PUBLIC SAFETY

Police Chief Roger Solomon asked the Commission to authorize and approve the purchase of
six (6) Surface Pro 4 Tablets and associated equipment for police cruisers. The quote from
ISTT, Inc. for the tablets, equipment and installation is $10,974.00.

Motion was made by Commissioner Stewart and seconded by Commissioner Powell to
authorize and approve the purchase of six (6) Surface Pro 4 Tablets with associated equipment
and installation from ISTT, Inc. in the amount 0of $10,974.00 and to further authorize the Mayor
to sign any and all documents necessary to complete this purchase.

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

ORDINANCES

City Clerk Cathy Dillard provided second summary reading of Ordinance No. 2019-003

entitled 4n Ordinance To Close The Public Way Known As The 0.090 Acre Tract Of Land Off
The Northwest Side Of Edgewood Drive Approximately 412 Feet North Of Akin Avenue At 208

Edgewood Drive Known As Bart Street.

Motion was made by Commissioner Bennett and seconded by Commissioner Stewart to
approve Ordinance No. 2019-003 and unanimously approved by the following roll call vote:

Roll Call Vote: Mayor Dixon Aye
Commissioner Powell Aye
Commissioner Williams Ave
Commissioner Bennett Aye
Commissioner Stewart Aye

City Clerk Cathy Dillard provided first reading of the following ordinances:

Ordinance No. 2019-004 entitled: 4n Ordinance Of The Board Of Commissioners Of The
City Of Franklin, Kentucky, Authorizing The Grant Of An Inducement For The Acquisition
And Construction Of A Project Pursuant To The Kentucky Business Investment Program (KRS
154.32-010 To 154.32-100) Whereby The City Agrees To Forego The Collection Of The One
Percent (1%5) City Occupational License Fee On Wages From New Mather Metals, Inc. That
Would Otherwise Be Due With Respect To Project Employees, Which Amounts Shall Be
Collected And Remitted to the City to be Refunded Upon Employer’s Request Over A Term Of

3

-7-



Not Longer Than Ten (10) Years From The Activation Date Established By Said Program;
And Taking Other Related Action

Ordinance No. 2019-005 entitled: An Ordinance Of The Board Of Commissioners Of The City
Of Franklin, Kentucky, Authorizing The Grant Of An Inducement For The Acquisition And
Construction Of A Project Pursuant To The Kentucky Business Investment Program (KRS
154.32-010 To 154.32-100) Whereby The City Agrees To Forego The Collection Of The One
Percent (1%) City Occupational License Fee On Wages From Sumitomo Electric Wiring
Systems, Inc. That Would Otherwise Be Due With Respect To Project Employees, Which
Amounts Shall Be Collected And Remitted to the City to be Refunded Upon Employer’s Request
Over A Term Of Not Longer Than Ten (10) Years From The Activation Date Established By
Said Program; And Taking Other Related Action

Ordinance No. 2019-006 entitled: An Ordinance Of The City Of Franklin, Kentucky Repealing
And Re-Enacting Text And Substance Of Ordinance 2018-001 Regarding Sections 8.9.2, 8.15.2
And 8.15.3 Of The Zoning Regulations

Ordinance No. 2019-007 entitled: An Ordinance Amending the Annual Budget for the Fiscal
Year Beginning July 1, 2018 and Ending June 30, 2019 by Estimating Revenues and
Appropriations

No action is taken on first reading of an ordinance.
EXECUTIVE SESSION

At 1:12. PM, motion was made by Commissioner Powell and seconded by Commissioner
Bennett to enter into Executive Session for the purpose of:

1. Litigation — Discussion of proposed or pending litigation {KRS 61.810(1)(c)}

2. Personnel — Discussions or hearings which might lead to the appointment, discipline,
or dismissal of an individual employee or member {KRS 61.810(1)(f)}

3. Land Acquisition — Deliberations on the future acquisition or sale of real property by a
public agency where publicity would be likely to affect the value of a specific piece of
property to be acquired for public use or sold by a public agency {KRS 61.810(1)(b)}

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

Entering Executive Session were Mayor Dixon; Commissioners Powell, Bennett, Williams and
Stewart; City Manager Kenton Powell; City Attorney Scott Crabtree; and, Police Chief Roger
Solomon.

Chief Solomon exited Executive Session at 1:30 PM.

At 1:55 PM, motion was made by Commissioner Powell and seconded by Commissioner
Bennett to exit Executive Session and return to open session.

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.



OTHER COMMISSION BUSINESS

Motion was made by Commissioner Powell and seconded by Commissioner Stewart to award
the bid of the a new police cruiser to Hunt Ford in the amount of $32,352.00 as the lowest and
best responsive, responsible bidder and further authorized the Mayor to sign any and all
documents necessary for this purchase.

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

Commissioner Stewart commented that he is concerned about the recent flooding issues in
Franklin and wanted everyone to know the Commission is concerned.

Commissioner Williams asked if the City Manager would look into problematic driveways on
Brevard Street. The City Manager indicated that he would look at the problems.

ADJOURNMENT

At 2:00 PM, motion was made by Commissioner Powell and seconded by Commissioner
Stewart to adjourn the regular meeting of the Franklin City Commission.

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

Larry Dixon, Mayor Cathy Dillard, City Clerk
City of Franklin, Kentucky City of Franklin, Kentucky



COMMUNITY
SERVICES

-10-



iy
I8

D

N

il
S UL HEI
ALk
?_raiRgun 3

tagps v
o TS
PON county. KERT

MEMO

TO: Mayor and Commissioners

FROM: Tammie Carey, Community Development Director
DATE: March 6, 2019

RE: Neighborhood Walk

Several years ago City officials participated in Neighborhood Walks where officials met and
walked an area of the city to see issues, concerns, projects and chat with residents. The walks
allow the Commissioners and city staff to walk in a neighborhood while meeting with the
residents in a casual atmosphere.

We would like to bring this program back and schedule Walks for this spring and summer. The
City is divided in to four sectors. The thought was to meet once in each sector. The proposed
agenda would be:

6:00 pm Meet and Walk the Neighborhood

7:00 pm Hold City Commission meeting at a pavilion or area in the Neighborhood
Proposed dates are:

Monday, June 10

Monday, July 8

Monday, September 9

Monday, October 14
The Neighborhood Walk and Commission meeting would replace the meeting normally held at
noon on that same day. In the event of inclement weather, the walk could be cancelled and the

meeting held at City Hall.

Included are maps of each sector with a proposed meeting location and route. The route could
change depending on needs or projects taking place in that sector.

I would like to get thoughts and input from the Commission regarding this proposal.

_11_



HA2I1

g a

_EI_

A L ebinsarn Dislnbidinn
73

o) '.i."I:Ed'EI._Er

Frava i Unilas 7
Pariecanial Chorel ¥

5" Iy =

Fiey Any

oy g

ira

Tra
Frbvs
I'J!'“ﬂ_n:llmjn "

Flitirin o

T MPELE Ty

:
QF"-:: Al e Enlurining

=

Cirei) @ Bape

fiminae, R E

L Janes Arpraisals _:
W G g
3 LBy (4 ‘El;t n.

Chaney &uto Woks '@'

L
a
TR

—_
il
—

R g

S DT
T

(L
""---'.'-:l:.-;,‘_.

=1

# Coias u

-
Car Geniar %

&

Henigy =

bk re

L i =

= n et
Fraine Wireicsg o i
P . -y iy
Q‘--' _.1_-.-'-' st daey I =4 .
-nﬁ: z E o gty
] = =5 - U
| = o =i £

.E:}

o,
e ™
damy's Janelny

Yaut Wad son
Buognisl Chuseh

i

=

w “,

ey Poale et

|3

Bltiznraas

L I

e g

Lo g 'y

P AL (e oo e L O AN R SAPAETE 1T

Eleryeniiury Schaal ©

ULy

Gocogle

FPUILBEE | S
Heribage Conbar

S,

ERLST- L0

Bankar-Cilkorn
Enaral Hama

FH

Lty o

L L S

o Fraakhr Bank & Tris)

* ]
'} - L
= 5
e

=

Clexiric Boan i Board ﬁ? &

E'-'I'.'..l-l._:m.IE

Simpsnn Gavnte 55
Archiyes:
SimpEm
ﬂ""'“:-.-.'.-.,.

tiallary 0 ke Bodar

i
]

4

'Iq - -
Ry Ll

e

—_—
TR

e
Zauy Cental Bank %5

Fomaly o,

Fra
v Eler

Feiter Ajcd [2"

=y i

T
i B

@

al

o

N

v ey
e

Wap datz 82019 Grng e

__.;Il'l"

FRERRID Bh Lot g7
Mgl Seh
Wilad el Cluh
FaolTioeorb Tomtball Shdin

Frenklil-5: II'.i?a-l.II'l%;.

Hlgit Euliozl

]
1 ad IR

eppieii L

2l Al
Preresr sy "

i L]

o NEM

R e ——

Cafonl



LR

AlAS g gk s uigy

1y QE

[RIRET BAKH SO0

&__Hr..u. i 503

Aoy
_.n..__n_._.__."_.__.xm_:._._ u..@

mw..i._ il

Xt oy

NGRS

P m___._._..m.._.u.u..u._,

4

Ly
" il
LA

B i LRt KB Ra B TR

Sy Hrn,
..

(R [H[HELSTRENE ..E._.ww @ica.ﬁ. T
H X fH SilE

S,
it T}

ﬂw (OIS R G ]

“5"1-"?33 &

..i..nﬁ_m REAT AL

P,

3Boog

i e Al

&

.@_ SR FL L TTHE o

=

Ay

fe L

-
b
¥
== ne=dig

N“.

ERE By AR of 1o et e o P TER E BARL TR TR R e A RO T

] [ T
funag unsdousg

LR EELL

s
5
u.....1 FRNTUE o ......
LI ]
LIRLET L] =) T {
H.._._Ju_m._ _.._._w._m._E._.Ln | B2 P 0 e
el ..u....___.,.._. .._._._.w._.._n o .. &
."..__._h.._!....r._:
] ."_......Fq "
1 el ory

i ks tud

_un._w. u__._“nm.__n_.:.__:L_.ﬁm._En_

s,

£

%l_.
fenl i
sonhant ’

oL AT LR

- =
S

£

_%v.- LT TENARS R

R

3 ..a_.l..u.u_i

Tty ™

AR Al ey

ey o dtun

e T ]

et A T T ET

A 27

L A E T 3

a._u.._m.

churla

= so g REITE
i
5 s [N
fraaly ey
IO L e R T8
L JTTELI LTSS 1]
frateseg= e TN
._ﬂv_._.._m_._E_m Ay
i,
1
[
= -
T ¥ 1
= -

LI

—
T ATy,

L :n.n.......,_n

_..._U P ani

.L_w_._nr@

v g

i

.ﬁ JL2Q RIS NG S

mtl

=

[T

mx b BT URAN
n,......._.m_w auI L __..nL__un_
FRF ALAED ..hnn..m_..h._....wm._.._...k.....
SIS
ANINDD YOsCLE

15 iz gy

@ [URG= B DD

0D T LER g

LR T

B



WD

S1esyH
-a -
el £
g 5
4 Py, L
'\.l'.:.."'_-.ul
-\'.ll.h.".h .
: g
& &
L EL i | A .
) ;
-
L 3
—i : &
e 3
i ik i.'?
L ITTE T, _:
F
=]
5

L cdshmaon Cisirllui ar
CoJumnes apprulises
W e:l‘:'n-.'sr

-nl" | '3Et-'ar &

Femkline el I

@ T anzi

; ; o
i Penlezosled Churzn -
-g
Cheney Atn Blerdis ﬁ
Ll T

Al ieran o o G dn A E0E P E PTG B BEEGIET 32T l=ar

Lee i o

Grapin baps

i .
s Barie Hrive 1o 4
% Simericar
- ' _eqlon Fosls 51@
l‘
% G
- £ KFE A
e P CL"""'-"-, : i:
: 3 =
1 = Lk -.ql-'IIE?tq_"';:;-;-
¥ Hpziel Surice
o
=
A
T =
¥ 5
o T L':rl.-:-h_n Wearys ¥ ;
5 £ ark 5 Q) Faiy vitne.
gt ‘ PR LTS 3 o 3
¥ ! 0
Licalr & Nl I-.-un?.'-'.l'g! = 7

Slarme laty S2had ';;}

Wby o -
%;'J Enoullorn Siles ?

[ET

7 H Wk, 5 5 g
xS £ 2 T "1 b
z L i
i ;_': e Fian g
e " ‘' = Triie )
= ghe e al -] 1]
SHty. ey ly ﬁ =
i g - BTICER ﬁJI'II'.'“L'EFI@ 5 5 Bk Bank g Tl B &
Haritage Cenatar b I g 5 2o B
£ < < £
K Wrars : ;
Bt o Exciric Fan: Gzard Q &=
; ' E
Wi e, i 5-? = W
F Ry . i o -
1|.-|'I-:,“. EII'HFIEEI'l L.I:I"I'I1'|. ﬁ = = o
Yok Archives T £ i
SRR L TP [ 5
Smg=an Guanty <ail '5-,";:'
'wr::"""-ﬂh..w
W B ’ i L.
SR Gallsry Cn Lthe Sylbare et @
-|ral Sagr ulls
o) SOkl ] p g TROEIEER
Sur Centar Cun=ral Hame Lt o !
: ]
5 ek
. ) = : -
e ., i e &
= "k Ll . )
= o vl Denk 0 L LT .
3 Gouth Central G r'l:{ bz

“E o) i

P, it fre =
3 E‘D ,_.-giE‘ i Froiklin .

F: Al b
pita- £l € ot b i -

beeindal= EE013 Goog e

M S

] 1] ) | S——



Erandod

_E"I_-

Songle Maps
Lighthauze kini Slareqe

i &

ik

Surne Daue-ln "._'F

o
3 semerlcan
£ lagan Pasiza?

7

| omely
& . ezt
- £ g
5
5 B Bluagrss Glaesins & : - iy
04 il ossis &7 waceman of the Workd ©h)
j- ;,: E’j R e
F ol

= Lnflan S4gtes 4;.
7 Fagsal Seivice T
Dowiirg s Enpines ":‘;"

fliaria 0y

E

SCmes Gooke
Shedl s Survice

g REaED

Lig- pos TSI
I?c_lhe:,,'.E'q

Wendys =
-' it Pty Viteo " " PR )
i 3 C4
g - : 3
= Nnilar e ncest ';." ok 4 .- a
D-'_\__| il ril s LTI _-r'"

Zouthienn Staved ﬂr‘

-

i ;
B )
e 3 1
My @ .
= Vi £, = L
= y TR - L <
CEir 2 . |
=Pl gl Gy sy E
Faklir=Sisngenn 89

muraaciand. T

Firxly '.‘.'liﬂi:-'@ i & fod o
W i:-l'\r'l-'-l“l-‘l'lf Giblinan Gem e ¢

a 5 Fronkln Bz ok & Traw i,
¥ E .f# E -DF.F [P
5 F B i hy {:;
E sz Plart Buzed ) & ar
- oL
E' k. ""2'-5:-\.'1\-.; -.r"d'-": ingg f?
ETimson Caunty = & & i
Arzhives 3 » L
- 2 &
o Fmron Caenly .Iaf'-“—_?'" 2o Phamsacaabcal ﬂ
TWiing e Lokeldrera £
Gallery Oin 1=r Iquere .'El‘ w B .
y R Fired Bagiiat Ghurzk S A o ; y )
TEs : - 3 " E I Hamis b So E:::n"ﬂ? ; .
av ek el St "—= - g‘-'rﬂl'ﬂ‘-liﬁ el T ETRTRTIR
L a'- '-L'. .
R e

3
=
=)

M Craien Faneral B Te'@

By 5

: i
Champan Decaiing

[

e

.I'-
i Ve, mag,

Soutt ot Ak S
=0 n Mtk "'I [T
Tagg
b2 0 P il Frice bezs !Eu".'i? i
- Google i
+3 LT i
S Elerantany Sehaal % F
A Aid @ ks o g on
| Tt B A ] sangle S0 O

Al wiveragogle camtmapn iR R U A5 M35 16V IEs



MEMO

T Mlavor and Commiszionars

FIROIM: Tarnmie Carvey, Cornmunity Development Eivzecar
DATE; March ¢. 2074

R Uil o Informaticnal Vidoos

Lact February we began recordng short videos to hightight city informsrion. ‘Lo date, we have
rocorded aad posted 240 videos, Attachal is e schedule ol the videas that Tave Been done,

This s s leam ellort as §work with departieent heads and eralovess on ideas and contenl. Then
I recomd the segments anad Bits Vaughn docs the editing weeke. She then posts the videos oo the
ity wehsite and the City Facobook page,

Dwrould Like too do a sacies ol videss entilled: “hiest vour elected offerals”, These wosld be
short, tacividual vidses for each pemson o shere who vou ure amil what vou hooe o accomplish
ax an elected officisl, A propesed format weuld be:

= ntrocduce yvoursell
o How long have you seeved?
o Shure a e aboot yourself
o3 Tw Jong have vou lived in Franklin
o Family
o Woens did vou go to schoel
o Career
o Wiy won wantod o serve
o Choals lor the Cily
»  What you hooe T2 accomplish while vou are in ollice

Tl commission 1s i ageeement by dir e videos, T will conbacd cach o7 v laier this weck to
schedule o dale and Hime toomest with von wwl recocd.

-1 G-



_LL_

VIDEO SCHEDULE

RECORD DEPARTMENT EMPLOYEE FEATURED TOPIC POST DATE
February 16, 2018|Administration Kenton Powell Welcome February 27, 2018
February 23, 2018|Police Dale Adams What to do if pulled over February 27, 2018

March 13, 2018{Water Distribution Kenny Massey Water Meters & Usage March 14, 2018

March 20, 2018{Code Enforcement Kevin Allen Condemnation April 2, 2018

April 9, 2018|Finance Cortney Travelstead Paying your Water Bill April 16, 2018

April 24, 2018|Public Works Darrell Mallory Brush & Leaf Pick Up May 4, 2018

May 15, 2018 |Beautification RH Perdue Street Sweep, Trash, Painting May 17, 2018

May 21, 2018|Planning & Zoning Carter Munday Accessory Structures June 1, 2018

June 14, 2018|Public Works Darrell Mallory Mosquito Spraying June 22,2018

June 19, 2018|Finance Daniel Reetzke Business License July 16, 2018

July 10, 2018|Police Roger Solomon Body Cams July 17, 2018

July 17, 2018 |Police/Public Works |Dale Adams & Darrell Mallory Grass Clippings August 3, 2018
September 11, 2018|Water Treatment Jerry Farmer Testing September 20, 2018
September 19, 2018|Wastewater Trent Coffee Plant Process September 28, 2018
October 8, 2018(Street Steve Akin Paving January 10, 2019
December 12, 2018|Street Doug Marklin Leaf Pick-Up January 10, 2019
December 13, 2018(Street Darrell Mallory Snow & Ice Preparation January 10, 2019
January 8, 2019/|Police Dale Adams Traffic Enforcement January 10, 2019

January 28, 2019

Scott Waste

Pete Reckard

Pick-Up and Recycling

January 29, 2019

February 1, 2019

Water Distribution

Kenny Massey

Water Leak

February 7, 2019




GENERAL
GOVERNMENT

-1 8_



MEM(O)

T Slavor and Cioy Commissiorurs
FROM; Shaunna Cormweell, Finanes Director
MATE: March 7, 2015

SUBIECT: Preserintion ol FY 17-18 City Audin

M. Kim Kirby of Kirby & Moere CPAs will be present al our nest meeling o
present ihe completed Viscal Year 20172018 audit. Mr. Kirby will discuss the
finarcial highlights of the report und will B svatlable e answer any questions that

ML T ll:l ELE e



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

—-20-



City of Franklin, Kentucky

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

As management of the City of Franklin (City) we offer readers of the City’s financial statements
this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2018. The information contained in this MD&A should be considered in conjunction with the
information contained in the Accountants’ Reports and Financial Statements and Supplementary
information.

Financial Highlights

o Total assets and deferred outflows of the City exceeded its liabilities and deferred
inflows at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $36,135,979 and $37,371,204
for the prior fiscal year,

o As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental activities reported
ending net position of $16,357,630 which includes unrestricted net position of
$607,985. Respectively for the prior fiscal year $17,520,371 of net position and
$1,937,642 of unrestricted net position. The cause of this significant decline in
government-wide unrestricted net position is primarily due to the implementation of
GASB 75 — Accounting and Financial Reporting for Post-Employment Benefits
Other Than Pensions.

e At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund
was $7,027,077 with $5,815,887 for the prior fiscal year.

¢ For the year ended June 30, 2018, total debt decreased by a net amount of $607,514
during the year. For the prior fiscal year, total debt decreased by $2,628,450 during
the year due to principal reductions. The principal reduction in 2017 was due to the
balloon payoff of a note payable issued on behalf of a local industry for economic
development. This debt was passed through via a lease and the note and lease were
called and paid off by the industry in 2017.

e The City had total revenues of $14,845,177 for the year ended June 30, 2018 which
includes: program revenues (charges for service) of $7,926,796, operating grants and
contributions of $350,086, capital grants and contributions of $82,937, and general
revenues of $6,485,389. The City had total expenses of $13,514,929 for the year
ended June 30, 2018. Comparatively, City had total revenues of $15,753,293 for the
year ended June 30, 2017 which includes: program revenues (charges for service) of
$7,645,719, operating grants and contributions of $416,641, capital grants and
contributions of $1,705,657 and general revenues of $5,985,276. The City had total
expenses of $12,317,040 for the year ended June 30, 2017.

e The City’s total capital outlays were $1,633,717 for the current fiscal year and
$3,371,299 for the prior fiscal year. For the Governmental Funds, capital outlays
were $406,958 for the current fiscal year and $1,141,137 for the prior fiscal year.
For the Proprietary Funds, capital outlays for the current fiscal year were $1,226,759
and the prior fiscal year of $2,230,162.

3-

-21-



Overview of the Financial Statements

The discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic
financial statements. The City’s basic financial statements comprise three components:

e Government-wide financial statements.

« Fund financial statements.

e Notes to the financial statements.
Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad
overview of the City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. The
statement of net position presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with
the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases
in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City
is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net position
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon
as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related
cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that
will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods, e.g., depreciation and earned but unused
vacation leave.

The government-wide financial statements are divided into two categories, governmental
and business-type activities. The governmental activities of the City include general
government, administrative services, financial services, police, fire, public works,
community development and cemetery. The business-type activities of the City include
water, wastewater, sewer collection and rehabilitation, sanitation, fiber optic services and
related support departments which comprise the Utility Fund. The City does not have any
component units, e.g., where the City has control over the income and expenses of the entity.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 26 and 27 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources which
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into three categories:
governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds
Most of the City’s basic services are included in the governmental fund type. These funds
use the modified accrual accounting basis, which measures cash and all other financial assets

that can readily be converted to cash. The general fund, special revenue funds and permanent
funds are all governmental type funds.

4-

-22—



Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds, in general, charge customers for the services that are provided. These
funds use a long-term financial accounting approach, full accrual basis and provide
additional information in the statement of cash flows.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial
statements can be found on pages 36 through 77 of this report.

Government-wide Analysis

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 34 reporting model was
implemented in fiscal year 2004.

* As noted earlier, net position may serve, over time, as a useful indicator of a
government’s financial position. In the case of the City, assets exceeded liabilities
by $36,135,979 for the current fiscal year and $37,371,204 at the close of the prior
fiscal year. As noted above, the cause of this significant decline in net position is
primarily due to the implementation of GASB 75 — Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Post-Employment Benefits Gther Than Pensions.

By far the largest portion of the City’s net position (92%) is its investment in capital assets,
e.g., land, buildings, machinery and equipment less any related outstanding debt used to
acquire those assets. These capital assets are used to provide services to citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Only the unrestricted net
position of the City may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens
and creditors.

-23-



Current and other assets
Capital assets

Total assets
Deferred amount on refunding bonds
Outflows for pensions
Outflows for OPEB

Total deferred outflows
Long-term liabilities outstanding
Net pension liability '
OPEB liability
Other liabilities

Total liabilities
Inflows for pensions
Inflows for OPEB

Total deferred inflows

Net position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted

2018

Expendable - Highways & Streets

Expendable - Debt service & capital
activity

Nonexpendable - Perpetual Care

Unrestricted

Total net position

—-24-

Net Position
Governmental Business- Total
Activities type
Actlvities

$ 10,063,108 $ 7,737,386 $ 17,800,494
15.064,182 20,230,025 35,294,207
25.127,290 27.967411 53,094,701
— 102,156 102,156
2,541,893 756,078 3,297,971
961,500 270,712 1,232,212
3,503,393 1,128,946 4,632,339
783,110 5,176,067 5,959,177
7,470,907 2,143,413 9,614,320
2,839,426 1,003,350 3,842,776
437,999 778.524 1,216,523
11,531,442 9,101,354 20,632.796
587,268 171,559 758,827
154343 45,095 199,438
741,611 216.654 958.265
15,064,182 15,814,732 30,878,914
138,221 - 138,221
— 1,243,177 1,243,177
547,242 —_ 547,242
607.985 2.720.440 3.328.425
$ 16357630 § 19778349 § 3 5,979



2017

Net Position
Governmental Business- Total
Activities type
Activities
Current and other assets $ 8,682,675 $ 6,987,061 $ 15,669,736
Capital assets 15,108,616 20.436,075 35,544.691
Total assets 23,791,291 27.423.136 51,214,427
Deferred amount on refunding bonds — 108,691 108,691
Outflows for pensions 1,345,093 393,575 1,738,668
Total deferred outflows 1,345,093 502,266 1,847.359
Long-term liabilities outstanding 1,069,446 5,577,146 6,646,592
Net CERS pension liability 5,971,656 1,705,368 7,677,024
Other liabilities 544.349 783,152 1.327.501
Total liabilities 7.585.451 8.065.666 15.651.117
Inflows for pensions 30,562 8.903 39.465
Total deferred inflows 30,562 8.903 39.465
Net position
Net investment in capital assets 14,805,945 15,663,596 30,469,541
Restricted
Expendable - Highways & Streets 244,131 — 244131
Expendable - Debt service & capital — 1,227,224 1,227,224
activity
Nonexpendable - Perpetual Care 532,653 — 532,653
Unrestricted 1,937,642 2,960,013 4.897.655
Total net position $ 17520371 § 19850833  § 37371204

The City’s revenues are largely comprised of charges for services through utility revenue,
occupational payroll fees and insurance fees.

_25_



2018
Changes in Net Position

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
Revenues
Program revenues
Charges for services $ 1,487,206  § 6439557 $ 7,926,765
Operating grants and contributions 350,086 - 350,086
Capital grants and contributions — 82,937 82,937
General revenues
Property taxes 1,052,837 = 1,052,837
Occupational fees 2,520,376 - 2,520,376
Insurance premium fees 1,774,358 - 1,774,358
Franchise fees 114,684 - 114,684
Business license fees 849,980 - 849,980
Interest income 73,504 12,574 86,078
Miscellaneous income 77,864 25,286 103,150
Gain on the sale of assets ( 5,736) ( 10,338) ( 16,074)
Transfers 77,226 ( 77.226) =
Total revenues and transfers 8.372.387 6.472.790 14,845,177
Expenses
General government 2,100,258 — 2,100,258
Public safety 3,213,545 —_ 3,213,545
Public services 1,432,850 — 1,432,850
Commuuity and cultural 834,981 - 834,981
Interest expense on long-term debt 33,631 159,236 192,867
Water and wastewater - 4,829,984 4,829,984
Sanitation — 910.444 910.444
Total expenses 7.615,265 5.899.664 13,514,929
Change in net position 757122 573,126 1,330,248
Net position, beginning of year 17,520,371 19,850,833 37,371,204
Change in accounting principle — GASB 75 ( 1.919.863) ( 645.610) ( 2.565.473)
Net position, beginning of year, restated 15,600,508 19,205.223 34,805,731
Net position, end of year $ 16357630 $ 19778349 & 36,135,979

-26-



2017
Changes in Net Position

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total
Revenues
Program revenues
Charges for services $ 1,482,857 $ 6162862 § 7,645,719
Operating grants and contributions 416,641 - 416,641
Capital grants and contributions 593,157 1,112,500 1,705,657
General revenues
Property taxes 975,159 — 975,159
Occupational fees 2,351,500 = 2,351,500
Insurance premium fees 1,641,950 "= 1,641,950
Franchise fees 88,182 - 88,182
Business license fees 659,817 - 659,817
Interest income 47,766 6,665 54,431
Miscellaneous income 216,787 31,135 247,922
Gain on the sale of assets ( 20,080) ( 13,605) ( 33,685)
Transfers 23,286 { 23,286) —
Total revenues and transfers 8.477,022 7.276.271 15,753.293
Expenses
General government 1,932,189 - 1,932,189
Public safety 2,667,643 - 2,667,643
Public services 1,312,057 - 1,312,057
Community and cultural 650,244 - 650,244
Interest expense on long-term debt 74,748 196,648 271,396
‘Water and wastewater - 4,585,991 4,585,991
Sanitation — 897,520 897,520
Total expenses 6,636,881 5,680,159 12,317.040
Change in net position 1,840,141 1,596,112 3,436,253
Net position, beginning of year 15.680.230 18.254.721 33.934,951
Net position, end of year $__17.520371 $19.850,833 §_37.371.204

_27_



Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds
Governmental Funds

The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the
City’s financing requirements. In particular, fund balance may serve as a useful measure of
a government’s net resources available for spending for program purposes at the end of the
fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported an ending
fund balance of $8,496,725 compared to $7,186,101 for the prior fiscal year. The City’s
major sources of revenues are insurance premium fees, payroll occupational fees and
property taxes. The fund balances primarily represents the accumulation of revenues in
excess of expenditures not reimbursed by funding sources.

General Fund & Proprietary Fund Budgetary Highlights

Total general fund revenues for the year were within 9% of budget. As a point of reference,
a 5% budget to actual variance is the overall goal. Therefore, a 9% variance isn’t ideal and
revenue projection strategies will be strengthened to, hopefully, ensure a tighter and more
accurate budget to actual projection in future years. Budgeted expenses were slightly less
than final budgetary estimates (by 3.7%), however, the variance was within an acceptable
range.

Total proprietary fund revenues for the year were within acceptable parameters (2% of
budget), in total, with final budgetary estimates while expenses were less than final
budgetary estimates (by 4.1%). This relates primarily to the timing of capital project
completions (FY2018 budgeted capital projects weren’t completed until FY2019.)

Proprietary Funds

Operating revenues of the City’s proprietary funds increased 4.5% from the prior year to
$6,439,557. The City approved a 5% Water & Sewer rate increase, effective January 1,
2018, due to the completion of a capital needs Utility Rates Study, discussed below under
Economic Factors. The City also implemented a 2.30% cost of living increase in the
Sanitation Fund, pursuant to the City’s garbage hauler contract. Operating revenues from
Water and Wastewater increased by 4.4% to $5,486,085 while operating revenues from
Sanitation services increased 4.9% to $953,472. Operating expenses for Water &
Wastewater increased by 5.3% to $4,827,673 while operating expenses for Sanitation
services increased by 1.4% to $910,444. This decrease relates directly to the structure of the
garbage hauler contract, the current garbage hauler bills commercial customers directly, as
the prior contract required the City to bill all residential and commercial customers.

-10-

-28-



Capital Asset and Debt Administration
Capital Assets

As of June 30, 2018, the City’s investment in capital assets net of related debt for its
governmental and business-type activities was $30,878,914 and $30,469,541 as of June 30,
2017. This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements, machinery
and equipment and streets.

Major capital asset purchases during the current fiscal year include the following:
e General Fund

o Capital Expenditures ot $21,885 to acquire property on North 31W. The City
purchased this property because it includes the primary source of the City’s
Stormwater runoff. Additionally, plans to develop the “Hoy Cave” walking
trail on this property is underway and federal grant funding has been awarded.
Development of this project should be underway in FY2020.

o The City expended approximately $22,300 in replacing HVAC units (each of
which were older than 20 years) at City Hall and the Police Department.
Additionally, $18,000 is encumbered in FY2019 to replace the last HVAC unit
at City Hall.

o Electrical repairs were completed at the Franklin-Simpson Fire Department for
$7,500.

o The City expended approximately $7,500 in software and equipment in order
to stream WBKO’s local news programming.

o The City, in partnership with Franklin Municipal Utilities, expended $95,000
to implement a fully integrated financial software program. This investment
has significantly improved operating efficiency within the Finance and Billing
Departments and these costs are expected to be recouped within 3 years in labor
savings.

o The City expended approximately $130,800 in capital needs for the Police
Department. This included the purchase of 3 new radar units, 6 KYOPS
approved/certified mobile dispatching tablets, the purchase and installation of
a new, digitally compatible radio tower, two new, fully equipped, patrol units,
and the purchase of 10 digitally enhanced mobile radio units.

o The City purchased a new zero turn mower and a curb paint sprayer for the
street department, for a total of $14,500.

o The City spent over $78,000 in street paving and repairs.

-11-

_29_



Franklin Municipal Utilities

(o}

Capital expenditures of $552,000 for improvements and additions to the City’s
waste water system, specifically related to the following:

= Sunset Circle Sewer Rehabilitation Project, Phase 11, $462,000
» Sewer Line relocation due to the construction of a TVA substation,

$90,000

Capital Expenditures of $39,500 for rehabilitation work on two sewer lift
stations — Broadway and Macedonia Road

Capital Expenditures of $107,300 for the Water Treatment Plant (WTP). This
included the replacement of a service truck, replacement of a 20 year old HVAC
unit, replacement of valves & actuators on one of the water filters, and the
refurbishment of drag chains on both the WTP basins and the sludge collector
basin.

Capital Expenditures of $145,300 at the Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP),
This included replacement of lights outside, around the sewer basins, the
construction of a small pretreatment building, the purchase of two generators
necessary to operate the plant continuously, significant repairs to the
progressive cavity pump, and the replacement of an aged and dangerous
electrical transformer responsible for all electrical inflow to the WWTP.

Capital Expenditures of $250,000 within the Water Distribution Department.
In FY2017 the City launched a partnership with the Electric Plant Board and
their Automated Metering Infrastructure. $65,000 in capital expenditures were
spent to install the infrastructure required for this program. An additional
$185,000 was spent in replacing over 900 meters and ERTS. This was to update
our metering infrastructure and ensure compliance with the AMI requirements.
An ERT is an encoder receiver transmitter. This technology is used to transmit
data from utility meters over a short range so a utility vehicle can collect meter
data without a worker physically inspecting each meter. The meter replacement
program is expected to be completed in FY2019.

Capital Expenditures of $132,000 with the Wastewater Collections Department.
This was to purchase a Transit Video Inspection Truck. Otherwise known as a
sewer camera van, this van is equipped with a state-of-the-art camera system,
which allows employees to freely zoom, pan and tilt within the City’s sewer
pipes, and focus on specific elements such as puncturing or sewer cracking,
This will allow our sewer department to identify significant defects in our sewer
infrastructure and effectively design plans to rehabilitate areas with significant
deficiencies in the sewer system.

Major capital asset purchases during the prior fiscal year include the following:

General Fund

(o]

Capital Expenditures of $19,500 to repave the parking lot at the Franklin-
Simpson Fire Department.

-12-

-30-



o Purchase of cruisers/vehicles and related equipment for the Police Department
and the Code Enforcement Department, $158,500.

o Purchase of rifles, body armor, and new portable radios (compatible with
upcoming communications technology, replacing soon to be incompatible
portable radios) for the Police Department, $77,570.

o Purchase of a Dump Truck by the City’s Public Works Department, $96,500.

o Investment in City Hall’s Customer Service office renovation, office
equipment, and city wide job costing software totaling (mid implementation as
of June 30, 2018), $75,000.

o Construction of a Pole Ban for storage of equipment and materials at the Public
Works Department, $46,000.

o The City accepted the following subdivision streets into its system as City
infrastructure. The development costs of these streets were capitalized and also
recognized as in-kind revenue in the current fiscal year. The impact on the
City’s net position is neutral.

* Garvin Lane, Myra Lane, Reasonover Drive, Hunters Crossing,
$566,000

Franklin Municipal Utilities

o Capital expenditures of $1,877,800 for improvements and additions to the
City’s waste water system, specifically related to the following;

* 31W Sewer Line Replacement/Betterment from 31W Widening
Projects, $1,267,000. (The total cost of these projects were capitalized
and also recognized as in-kind revenue, from the State of Kentucky, in
the current fiscal year. The impact on the City’s net position is neutral.)
Sunset Circle Sewer Rehabilitation Project, $421,600

West Madison Sewer Line Extension, $113,200

Macedonia Road Force Main replacement, $41,000

Repair of manhole collapse on Colonial Drive, $35,000

o Capital expenditures of $280,000 for equipment and vehicles for the City’s
water and wastewater system (Clean filter media and repair/overhaul of valves
and actuators at the Water Treatment Plant, repait/overhaul to the wastewater
treatment plant’s screw pump, a service truck for water distribution, and new
Flow Meters and an excavator for the collections department)

-13-

_31_



Long-term Debt

The City had $5,427,760 in revenue bonds and capital lease obligations outstanding as of
June 30, 2018, which is a decrease of $607,514 from the previous year. The City made
principal payments of $605,000 during fiscal year 2018. In the previous year, the City had
$6,035,274 in revenue bonds and capital lease obligations outstanding as of June 30, 2017,
which is a decrease 0f $2,628,450 from the previous year. The City made principal payments
of $3,830,666 during fiscal year 2017 and issued a Water & Sewer Bond for $1,190,000.

Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds

As the City completed the year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance
0f $9,737,014 at June 30, 2018, excluding capital assets and long-term debt. Included in this
year’s total change in fund balance is an increase of $1,310,624 in the City’s General Fund.
For the previous year, the City’s governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of
$8,255,929 at June 30, 2017, excluding capital assets and long-term debt. Included in last
year’s total change in fund balance was an increase of $1,148,809 in the City’s General Fund.

Modified Approach to Infrastructure

The condition of the City’s roads is determined using its Road Management and Inspection
Program (RMIP). The road condition is rated from 1 to 100 (OCI), with 100 being new or
recently paved.

It is the City’s policy to assess the condition of the roads every three years for cracks,
potholes, misalignment, drainage condition and number of specific safety hazards. There
were no roads severely deficient in condition at June 30, 2018.

The City has not changed the measurement scale used to assess and report the condition of
its roads for the past 10 years.

The City’s goal is to have all roads at 90-100 OCI rating.

Eligible infrastructure assets are not depreciated, additions and improvements thereto are
capitalized and all other outlays made for such assets are expensed in the period incurred
only if requirements regarding asset management system and preservation at condition level
are met.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

¢ In the prior year Moody’s Investors Service upgraded the City’s General Obligation Rating
to Aa3 from A3. Per Moody’s Investors Service Credit Opinion:

The upgrade to Aa3 reflects a significantly improved risk profile following
the sale of the City's Fiber Optic Enterprise (discussed below) and
elimination of a bank note (paid off in the current year) secured by the
City’s full faith and credit pledge. The rating also considers the city’s stable
tax base that exhibits modest annual growth coupled with weak resident
wealth levels, improved general fund reserves, and modest debt and pension

burdens.”
-14-

-32-



e In the current year Moody’s Investors Service issued an Annual Issue Comment Report for
both the City’s General Fund and Franklin Municipal Utilities. Some of the comments were
as follows:

o General Fund

The City of Franklin is located in and the county seat of Simpson County,
located in southern Kentucky, approximately fifieen miles south of Bowling
Green and five miles north of the Tennessee state line. The county has a
population of 17,856 and a low population density of 76 people per square
mile. The county’s median family income is $52,684 (4th quartile) and the
August 2018 unemployment rate was 3.8% (3rd quartile) 2 . The largest
industry sectors that drive the local economy are manufacturing, retail
trade, and accommodation/ food services.

Credit Overview

Franklin's credit position is good, and its Aa3 rating maitches the median
rating of Aa3 for cities nationwide. The notable credit factors include a
robust financial position, an extremely small debt burden, a mid-ranged
pension liability, a modestly sized tax base, but a weak wealth and income

profile.

Finances: Franklin has a very healthy financial position, which is
JSavorable in comparison to the assigned rating of Aa3. The city's fund
balance as a percent of operating revenues (66.1%) far surpasses the US
median, and grew significantly between 2013 and 2017. Additionally, cash
balance as a percent of operating revenues (60.6%) is notably stronger than
the US median.

Debt and Pensions: The debt burden of the city is extremely small and is
quite favorable with respect to its Aa3 rating. Net direct debt to full value
(0.1%) is materially below the US median, and fell from 2013 to 2017. That
said, Franklin has a moderate pension liability and is slightly weak relative
lo the assigned rating of Aa3. Moody's-adjusted net pension liability to
operating revenues (1.1x) favorably is slightly lower than the US median.

Economy and Tax Base: The economy and tax base of the city are solid.
Yet, this factor is relatively unfavorable in comparison to its Aa3 rating
position. Franklin's full value per capita (385,930) approximates the US
median, and increased between 2013 and 2016. Moreover, total full value
(8748 million) is weaker than other cities nationwide. Lastly, median family
income equals a mere 60.7% of the US level.

Management and Governance: Kentucky cities have an Institutional
Framework score 3 of Aa, which is high compared to the nation.
Institutional Framework scores measure a sector's legal ability to increase
revenues and decrease expenditures. Property and occupational license
taxes, the primary revenue sources, are highly predictable. Cities have

-15-

-33-



moderate revenue-raising ability and can increase property taxes by 4%
annually. Cities with populations of 15,000 and above also have a property
tax cap of 15 mills. Cities with population of 1,000 or higher have the power
to levy an occupational license tax. The tax rate is unlimited for cities with
populations up to 300,000 and capped at 1.25% for larger cities.

Unpredictable revenue fluctuations tend to be minor, or under 5% annually.

Across the sector, fixed and mandated costs are generally less than 25% of
expenditures. Kentucky is a Right to Work state, providing significant
expenditure-cutting ability. Unpredictable expenditure fluctuations tend to
be moderate, between 5-10% annually.

Sector Trends - Kentucky Cities

Kentucky cities will continue to experience modest economic growth
overall, supported by notable gains in manufacturing, healthcare, and
professional and business services industries. Growth in real property
values and employment is matching or outpacing the nation in metro areas.
This will have a positive effect on occupational license taxes and property
taxes, the two largest sources of income for cities. However, rural areas
will continue to face challenges as mining jobs continue to decline, and the
coal industry faces regulations and competition from domestic natural gas.
Additionally, pension contribution rates are expected to increase over the
near-term, which will not be a significant credit pressure.

o Franklin Municipal Utilities

Franklin Water & Sewer provides water and wastewater service to Simpson
County, Kentucky. The county has a population of 17,856 and a low
population density of 76 people per square mile. The county's median family
income is 852,684 (4th quartile) and the May 2018 unemployment rate was
3.7% (3rd quartile) 2 . The water system sources its water from the West
Fork Drakes Creek and gets its supply of treated water from White House
Utility District and City of Franklin. The treatment is done at its own
Jacility. The wastewater system has its secondary treatment done in its own

Jacility.
Credit Overview

The credit position for Franklin Water & Sewer is favorable. However, its
Al rating is slightly lower than the median rating of Aa3 for water and
wastewater systems nationwide. Key credit factors include a negligible debt
profile, ample liquidity, a strong debt service coverage, but a low income
service area and a small system size.

System Characteristics: Franklin Water & Sewer has a weak system
profile, which is unfavorable in comparison to the assigned rating of Al.
Median family income equates to a mere 60.7% of the US level. Also, system
size, measured as operating and maintenance expenses ($3.4 million), is
consistent with the US median.

-16-

_34_



Financial Strength: The financial position of Franklin Water & Sewer is
extremely strong and is a notable strength relative to its Al rating. Debt to
operating revenues (0.78x) is excellent and lower than the US median, and
it has fallen from 2013 to 2017. Also, days cash on hand (402 days) is strong
and above other water and wastewater systems nationwide. Lastly,
coverage of annual debt service by net revenues (3.1x) is excellent and
greatly exceeds the US median.

Legal Provisions: Legal provisions, which typically include a rate covenant
requiring a minimum of 1.0x coverage of debt service, are adequate for this
sector.

Sector Trends - Kentucky Water and Sewer

Water and sewer systems in Kentucky tend to be slightly older than average
and need consistent maintenance, however financial metrics are generally
on par with than US medians. Median debt service coverage of 2.0 times is
on par with the nation and median liquidity is adequate but slightly below
the nation at 235 days cash on hand. Median leverage is lower than the
national median with debt to operating revenues of 1.6 times. Water in
Kentucky is abundant, and few water utilities face supply constraints. Most
utilities require local or state approval for rate increases.

The City continues to operate within a time of change and anticipated growth. The City’s
Leaders continue to spend a lot of time and effort focusing on the sustainability of the City’s
infrastructure, such as what capital investments are required to maintain and rehabilitate our
current infrastructure as well as what areas of growth there are that the City needs to expand
our existing water and sewer systems. In Fiscal Year 2014 the City kicked off an in-depth
Utility Rate Study where we analyzed the pressing needs of each department within our
Utility Division: Water Production, Water Distribution, & Waste Water Treatment, Within
this study we identified all capital investments necessary to rehabilitate the City’s current
water and sewer lines, its treatment plants, and related equipment. Each Department Head
identified areas of need and these capital improvements were incorporated into this study so
the City could adequately identify the most pressing areas of intense need. The Utility Rate
Study was incredibly valuable from many different perspectives, from infrastructure needs,
to equipment needs, to a more detailed analysis of our revenue base and related operating
expenditures. During FYE 2015, the City concluded this study and ultimately adopted a five
year capital improvement plan, as well as identified annual financial resources to be allocated
to each department for infrastructure rehabilitation and line replacements. This study
effectively correlated our needs and the related financial impact and identified the need for a
utility rate increase and continues to be reviewed and modified as needs evolve and change.
The City’s elected body decided to implement these rate increases in gradual, incremental
amounts, over a five year period, in efforts not to overly burden the City’s customer base.
These rate changes were adopted by Ordinance in February 2015, These rates are scheduled
to increase by 5% per year, effective January 1 of each calendar year. The final rate change,
per this Ordinance, was implemented January 1, 2019.

Below is a brief summary of some of the areas of expansion and rehabilitation that the City
has identified thus far:

-17-

_35_



In FY2017 the City completed a project related to the expansion of its existing
sewer lines. This project is now providing service to an area that was annexed into
the City south of Franklin in fiscal year 2013, extending all the way to the KY/TN
line, well past Exit 2 on Interstate 65. This project, including all engineering work,
was completed for a total cost of $775,000.

In FY2015 the City’s Waste Water Treatment Department identified a lift station
and sub-basin that needed significant rehabilitation work. The expectation was that
this investment and improvement will decrease some of the water’s run off
infiltration into the sewer systems as well as improve the overall systems operating
capacity for the citizens using the sewer system within that sub-basin. This project
is being completed in two phases. Phase I was completed in FY2017, for a total
cost of $400,040. Phase II was completed in the current year, for a total cost of
$462,000. Additionally, the City was awarded a Federal Grant, in the amount of
$97,000, to apply toward the cost of the Phase Il project. City Leaders are currently
analyzing several other basins and working towards a plan for the next sewer basin
rehabilitation project.

The City has experienced some growth toward the South of Franklin, related to its
recent annexation of land all the way to the KY/TN line. Initially, during the City’s
Utility Rate Study, there were expectations that the south area of Franklin will
experience significant growth and expansion over the next several years. If this
were to occur, the City’s analysis indicates that the current size of the sewer line
does not provide the capacity necessary to accommodate the kind of growth the
City is anticipating. Therefore the City began reviewing and entering into
preliminary engineering discussions regarding replacement of the current sewer
lines, down the 31-W corridor, with newer, larger lines that will be able to handle
and service any growth within that particular area of town. This project, including
all engineering work, has an estimated project cost of $9,000,000 to $12,000,000.

With that said, however, the City is experiencing significant growth throughout the
entire city. Although the original rate study was focused on anticipated
infrastructure needs toward the south of town, as discussed above, the city now
feels it would be prudent to complete a Municipal Growth Study to better anticipate
growth patterns in our area, in conjunction with economic development patterns.
This study could shift the entire direction of the City’s utility infrastructure needs
and investments. This study is expected to be completed within the next 1-3 years.

The City’s Water Distribution Department is working within its fifth year of a
substantial water main replacement initiative. Currently, the City is working
toward replacing all of its 2” galvanized water lines with new, sustainable water
lines. The expectation is that the replacement of this old and corroded line will
provide better water service to the City’s customers as well as reduce some of the
annual water loss that the City experiences. FY2019 proved to be a challenge, due
to employee turnover. Therefore, water distribution personnel focused almost
exclusively on its meter change out program, discussed below. The main line
replacement program will be reimplemented in FY2020.

-18-

-36—-



e The City partnered with the Franklin Electric Plant Board to utilize a new
Automated Metering Infrastructure system. This system will allow City staff to
reduce its Distribution personnel by one (through natural turnover.) This system
will allow City staff to read meters and complete customer consumption analysis
directly from the billing office. 1t also has leak and tamper indicators that can be
investigated as needed. The launch of this system occurred in April 2018.

* In the current year the City worked within its second year of a mass Water Meter
Replacement Program. Over 1800 meters are expected to be replaced by FY2019.
Over 900 were replaced in the current year. Once this program is completed, a
scheduled meter replacement program will be established and methodically
completed on an annual basis.

o Along the same lines as the City’s Water Distribution Water Line Replacement
Initiative, the City is currently reviewing its Waste Water Collection System’s
maintenance and replacement needs. In FY2019 the City began to reserve funds,
$300,000 in FY2019, for an annual maintenance and replacement initiative within
the Wastewater Treatment Department.

Outside of the City’s Water Utility Departments there are many other areas of growth and
expansion within the City. Below is some discussion regarding the most significant
economic changes that are significantly impacting the City and our community as a whole:

* Inan effort to ensure the preservation of our beautiful historic downtown, the City
Commission adopted an ordinance in April 2018 that allows for the development
of preservation standards and a preservation committee. The committee was
formed and has worked tirelessly to develop Historic Overlay Standards which
were designed to protect the historical integrity of Downtown Franklin. To-date,
the committee has also reviewed 22 requests for improvements to structures in the
Downtown Historic District.

e In FY2017, in an effort to reduce the City’s responsibility in maintaining vacant
properties, a program was developed to put these properties back into productive
use and once again provide a tax base for City revenue. The program was titled a
“Surplus Property Re-Use Program”.

Approximately two times per year, a list of city owned properties will be evaluated
and can be declared as “surplus property” by the Franklin City Commission. Once
the lots are deemed as surplus, then the city begins the publication process by
posting on the website, posting signs on the surplus property lots, advertising in the
local newspaper and announcing at the City Commission meeting.

Community members are able to inquire about a property and an information packet
is sent out to the community member by the Community Development Director or
the proposal information can be downloaded from the city website.

The community member puts together a proposal for the property they are
interested in, following the guidelines as stated in the packet. Once the deadline
has passed, the proposals are gathered, evaluated for completeness and included on
the agenda for the next Code Enforcement Board meeting.

-19-

_37_



The transfer of property will be based on the best evaluated use of the property,
time frame to complete improvements and compliance with applicable codes. To
be considered for these properties, the community member submitting the proposal
must be current on City taxes and have no existing liens on any property currently
owned in the City of Franklin. They cannot have had any code violations that
resulted in a citation being issued on any properties within the City of Franklin
within the last two years. The City of Franklin reserves the right to reject any or all
proposals submitted.

At the Code Enforcement Board meeting the proposal is discussed and scoring
criteria is completed by the Board. A recommendation will be made by the Code
Enforcement Board to the City Commission. The City Commission will adopt a
resolution authorizing the transfer of property.

Once a determination is made by the City Commission, the Community
Development Director will contact the community member and work with them to
transfer the deed.

Once a deed is transferred, the Community Development Director will monitor the
progress of the property improvements and ensure the new owner maintains the
property and builds as described in their proposal.

If a property owner does not follow through on the development of the property as
stated in their proposal then the Code Enforcement Board will review the situation

and have the option to take the ownership of the property.

This initiative is unique to the City and its cutting edge, the first of its type. The
City is excited to the implementing this program and is excited to see how this
changes our community development and cleanup efforts. To-date, 5 properties has
been transferred under this program.

For the past several years, City management has identified the need for the City to
rehabilitate its stormwater system. City’s stormwater system is provided to protect
the waterways and land in the City of Franklin by managing flooding and to benefit
the natural environment. The City felt as if the cost of designing, developing,
improving, operating, maintaining, and monitoring the stormwater system required
in the City of Franklin should therefore be allocated to the extent practicable to all
property owners and/or occupants of land based on their impact on the stormwater
system. In order to provide revenue to fund those costs and to fairly allocate those
costs, a Stormwater Management Fund was established and adopted into
Ordinance, and was implemented effective July 1, 2015. All revenues collected for
the purpose of stormwater management from user fees, grants, permit fees, and
other charges collected under this program, will be deposited into this fund and all
disbursements from the Fund will be for the purposes of the following:

i. The acquisition by gift, purchase, or condemnation of real property, and
interests therein, necessary to construct, operate, and maintain
stormwater management facilities.

-20-

-38-



it. All costs of administration and implementation of the stormwater
management program, including the establishment of reasonable
operation and capital reserves to meet budgeted, unanticipated or
emergency stormwater management requirements.

iii. Engineering and design, debt service and related financing expenses,
construction costs for new facilities, and enlargement or improvement
of existing facilities.

iv. Operation and maintenance of the stormwater system.

v. Monitoring, surveillance, and inspection of stormwater control devices.

vi. Water quality monitoring and water quality programs.

vii. Retrofitting developed areas for pollution control.

viii. Inspection and enforcement activities.
ix. Costs of public education related to stormwater and related issues.
x. Billing and administrative costs.
xi. Other activities which are reasonably required.

As of June 30, 2018, the City has accumulated a fund balance of $262,000 within this
program.

Industrial Expansion & Economic Development

For the past several years, Franklin has enjoyed positive industrial growth and low
unemployment. And - 2018 is no exception. Despite the tight labor market in south central
Kentucky, our community has continued to see new industries and businesses locate in Franklin.
Additionally, our community continues to see existing companies expand. During FY2018, the
City contributed approximately $427,000 to the Industrial Authority. Here is a summary of
activity, related to the Franklin-Simpson Industrial Authority, and 2018’s new and Expanding

Industry:

In February Power Tec Solutions, a producer of power source devices and other
power-related products started construction on a new two and a half million dollar
headquarters and distribution operation in Franklin. The new headquarters will
create some 20 new jobs for the community. Power Tec Solutions, which is located
in the Wilkey North Industrial Park, purchased 17 acres of land in the park to build
their new 30,000 square foot facility. The new building will house the company’s
administrative headquarters, a larger distribution warehouse, a product testing lab,
and a product assembly area. The company’s land purchase includes acreage for
anticipated growth from new-market expansion and future manufacturing
operations. Currently, Power Tec Solutions plans to introduce a new line of
modular outdoor uninterruptable power supply products for fiber optic network
terminals.

In 2018, GS Tape, a Memphis, Tennessee based company and part of the Great
Southern Corporation located a manufacturing facility in Franklin. GS Tape
acquired the assets of Kentucky Coating and Converting that was located at 2
Washington Way in Franklin. GS Tape is now manufacturing in the 50,000 square
foot existing facility. The company will produce private label adhesive tape as well

-21-
-39-



as its own GS brand of products. The company will also provide coating and
converting work for other tape companies, provide warehousing and fulfillment
services, and operate a full scale contact packing business. GS Tape intends on
having around 30 employees in the initial startup and hopes to expand that base as
they continue to grow their business in Franklin. The Great Southern Corporation,
owner of GS Tape is a 57 year old manufacturing, importing, and distributing
company based in Memphis

In May of 2018, Bluegrass Supply Chain Services, one of the largest logistical
service and transportation management companies in Kentucky purchased the
105,000 square foot Spec Building in the Sanders Industrial Park. The primary
client for the facility is New Mather Metals, a Franklin automotive manufacturer
that is located across the street from the building. Established in 2002, Bluegrass
Supply Chain Services is headquartered in Bowling Green. Serving primarily
automotive and food manufacturing companies, Bluegrass provides value added
warehousing, cross docking, economic fulfillment, light assembly, engineering,
and quality support services over a four-state region. Bluegrass has a sister
company, Bluegrass Dedicated, which operates a fleet of 70 tractor trailers that
provide asset-based transportation services to customers throughout the country.
Bluegrass Supply Chain Services provides quality support services in Kentucky,
Tennessee, Alabama, and Indiana.

Tractor Supply Company, a large employer in Simpson County and a major rural
lifestyle retailer in the United States, announced earlier this year that they were
creating 156 full-time jobs at its distribution facility in Franklin along with an eight
and one half million dollar investment. As part of the investment, Tractor Supply
will install new equipment to enhance the facility’s distribution capabilities to
support future sales growth. Company executives decided to add jobs and reinvest
in the Franklin operation in order to accommodate rising demand at their stores

throughout the country.

In May of 2018 construction began on a 105,000 square foot Spec Building on a
twenty acre site in the Henderson Industrial Park. This four million dollar facility
is expected to be completed by the end of this year. It is being constructed by
Stewart Richey Construction Company. Spec Buildings are extremely important to
communities like Franklin. Currently Camping World, Holley Automotive, and
Sumitomo initially located their companies in Spec Buildings. We are fortunate that
local investors Kent Kelley and David Carver have once again invested in our
community by building another new Spec Building in the Henderson Industrial
Park. There has already been interested companies considering the facility even
while it is being built

In September of this year, the Goodnight Memorial Library began their $6.1 million
dollar renovation project in downtown Franklin. The project involves the complete
renovation of the Goodnight Auditorium as well as adding a third floor for library
space. The auditorium will feature new seats, a new ceiling and windows as well as
a new stage. There will also be new green rooms and dressing rooms for those
appearing on stage. After the renovations, the library space which is currently 6,000
square feet will grow to 11,000 square feet. The renovations are expected to be
completed during a 15 month period. After completion, Franklin, Kentucky will
truly have one of the best libraries of any community in the mid-South.

22-
-40-



e Premium Services which was located on the Industrial Bypass in Franklin has
moved into the former Industrial Automation facility located on Raines Drive in
the Sanders Interstate Industrial Park on Highway 100. Premium Services, one of
the largest sorting and reworking companies in this area, is expanding into a 23,000
square foot building off of Exit 6. The building will nearly double the size of floor
space for the company. The move will also allow Premium Services to eventually
add another 40 employees during 2018, bringing their total workforce to 100
employees.

e In early 2018, it was announced that Worldwide Technologies, a manufacturing
company that has been in Franklin for the past ten years is expanding their facility
and adding more jobs. The company which is located in the Wilkey North Industrial
Park is doubling their manufacturing space by adding an additional 24,000 square
feet to their building. When completed the facility will have a total of 51,000 square
feet including office space. Worldwide Technologies will also be adding twenty
new jobs as a result of the expansion bringing their total number to some 100
employees at the plant. The new manufacturing space will allow Worldwide
Technologies to add more equipment at the Franklin facility. The equipment and
space are needed to keep up with growing demands from the Worldwide
Technologies customers. Worldwide Technologies is a premier machine shop that
provides precision machining for their clients. It is becoming one of the largest
service industries in south central Kentucky.

e In October of 2018, 130 acres in the southern portion of Simpson County was
purchased by the XYZ CBD Corporation out of Houston, Texas. The site will be
the future home of a CBD hemp oil extraction facility as well as a large scale plant
growing area. The twenty million dollar manufacturing project will process hemp
plants and develop a powder that will be used by various companies wanting to
incorporate CBD oil into their product. The new company will create some 60 new
jobs at their facility as well as providing a new product for farmers to grow in
Simpson County. The process at the XYZ facility will include seeding and cloning,
farming and harvesting, processing and testing, and finally packaging and shipping.
At least a dozen technical and laboratory jobs will be created.

e Inlate October, Kentucky Downs, announced that they would be doubling the size
of their main building housing its historical horseracing and simulcasting operation
as well as constructing a state of the art equestrian complex. The additional space
will be able to accommodate an additional 800 terminals, a full service steak house
as well as a sports lounge. When completed, the expansion will bring Kentucky
Down’s investment in Kentucky to some $141 million dollars since 2007. The
company already employs 175 people. The new expansion could create as many as
100 new jobs making Kentucky Downs one of the top employers in Simpson
County. Kentucky Downs is quickly becoming one of the top tourism destinations
in our state.

The eleven projects just discussed above, that have taken place in Simpson County

during 2018, represent an investment of approximately $68 million dollars into the
local economy and an eventual creation of 440 new jobs for our area.

-23-
_41 —_



For many years the City has participated along with the Commonwealth of Kentucky in the
state’s Kentucky Business Incentive (KBI) Program. This program provides state income tax
credits of 3% of each qualified employee’s wages (i.e. }: of the state’s income tax) to new and
existing agribusinesses, regional and national headquarters for certain business operations,
manufacturing companies, and non-retail service or technology related companies that locate
or expand operations in Kentucky by rebating this money back to the company to assist with
starting or expanding the business. This credit is available to the company for ten (10)
years. As part of this participation, the local government which is the situs for the business is
required to forego collection of a total of 1% occupational taxes on, essentially, the base
number of jobs created under the KBI program for each qualified employee, for a period of
10 years. In other words, the state contributes 3%, and one or more local government(s)
separately or together must contribute a total of 1%. Alternatively, the local government can
make a one time “in lieu of” contribution in an amount that approximates the 1% contribution
and aids the company, such as providing water and sewer improvements, etc. The City of
Franklin and County of Simpson have agreed to participate in the KBI program. Although
this has been a wonderful program for industrial and commercial expansion within the
Commonwealth, the City’s has, to date, exclusively provided the local 1% “match,” which is
beginning to create some financial hardship on the City given that basically all industrial
growth and expansion will not generate any new occupational fee revenue for the City for a
period of up to ten (10) years while causing the City to provide services as regular costs. In
FY2017, the City reached an agreement with the Simpson County Fiscal Court, via an
interlocal agreement, wherein the Fiscal Court will begin to provide its entire .75%
occupational fee per employee (with the City providing .25%) in an effort to lessen the
financial impact on the City and share this burden. When the City and the County have
reached an equal total contribution amount in the KBI program as a whole (including the
amounts the City has contributed in the past), the City and County will thereafter each
contribute an equal .50% per qualified employee per local governmental entity. At that point,
the City will realize a net .50% occupational fee for the ten (10) year participation period,
instead of receiving nothing. Obviously, this will have a positive economic impact on the
City going forward. In FY2018 the City contributed $137,000 under this KBI Economic
Development incentive.

e Asmentioned above, the city is experiencing tremendous growth throughout our corporate city

limits. The housing/construction market is experiencing activity that this City hasn’t seen in
over ten years. The following housing related construction projects are either completed or
underway:

o Five subdivisions are under development, all of which will allow for
approximately 450 homes to be constructed (the Retreat at Fox Chase
Subdivision, Fox Chase Phase II Subdivision, Pleasant Valley
Subdivision, the Willows Subdivision, Williamsburg Subdivision, and
Windsor Park Subdivision.

© One upscale apartment complex offering 125 units and many amenities,
located just past Exit 6 off of 165 is undergoing an expansion of an
additional 40 units.

o One moderate apartment complex, offering 24 units, off of Witt Road,
Franklin, KY is currently undergoing an expansion of additional units.

-24-

_42_



o In February of 2018 plans were announced for a major new subdivision
on US Highway 31-W North adjacent to the Lewis Memorial Home
property. Windsor Park Subdivision is currently being developed. The
new subdivision which will be developed in phases and calls for
approximately 110 lots for new homes in Franklin, This will make it one
of the largest subdivisions in Franklin and will provide much needed
housing and potential new workers for the growing industrial
community in Franklin.

Overall, all leaders within our community are excited for growth and expansion. The
end result, primarily, is the desire for our community to have the capacity and availability
to provide jobs to our citizens. City leaders are noting that several industrial management
teams are shifting their workforce from temporary labor to full time labor which is
interpreted as an overall sign of stabilization within our local economy. We are excited
to see our community’s unemployment rates maintain a stable level, rates increasing
slightly — from 3.4% in December 2017 to 3.5% in December 2018; however, this rate is
still below the state rate of 3.8% and the national rate of 3.7%.

Communications Imitiative:

Additionally, in 2018, the City launched a communications initiative. City Leaders have
worked hard to identify ways to communicate City activities, and spending, with its
constituents. As aresult, in February 2018 and February 2019, over 6,000 copies of the first
and second edition of the frankLINKentucky was mailed. This is a publication, put together
by city staff, and is mailed out annually. The goal of the publication is to provide information
and highlights of projects, work and information about where City tax dollars are spent.
Copies of both publications are included with this report.

Additionally, in February 2018, the City began posting short information videos on its
Facebook page, website and the city cable channel. The videos range in topics thought to
be relevant to our citizens. The goal is to share information that citizens may not know and
explain why certain things are done or needed with city government. The city also posts all
City Commission meetings on Facebook, as well as the local channel.

Contacting the City's Financial Management

The financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances for all
those with an interest. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report
or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Finance Director,
117 West Cedar Street, P. O. Box 2805, Franklin, KY 42135.

-25-

_43_



frankLINKentucky
binking gouTo oily, governmend

Wdiime 1 &R

RISING WATERS

In  wrowing  wlies  like  Fraeklio
prenkomg eften wime fom unsonire]isd
shomma seaber mneft. Thernelopmyent i
imadegui: s elmamage sysleons corpaiusd
achlans assoceabel wilh medeats to
sienificact rainfll Stormwater oot
freom thesn micall sverts aceucndnoe in

Heppy 1[1'!#! :

Anew year =S decaeblec Candnef

by v Teen aiar Mayor for T many aness of emr ulT:- cAvEinE Tisnee El-:lD-TJJL i ard passible threnis 1 puhls health
WEHTS: TSI SR rrI_E" (W RS e EU‘MJ’: There i3 g tanpl of 14,5 miles of |_111|3E|'E|'\1:|1.|_11|:|. Shrwcimes el chitches B
fubils ol the st fow years curry slormwatan Chrough our ey, The sgjorily of Sae gwatcid was pul i plese over 40
| [ A e ion AR AT B EmTSprE] yors wge, G made wp of 10 diffeec tyace of pipe: and coageere suuctares, and is
givemment |} wnat som g mn detecimntig.  To 2015, e Oy Commission pogsed an ordinanze elfowics for n
ahre wner [oonl @y dallane g heang Starnwater Menngemend Foe, This fee is chanred tn oity wacer nud sewer morrrty an
i Tha aifl oF -lhe ey al provides finding to mepair pad repluce the aging dminage system, [Lala peavides the
Frinklin works el dis g ke Faredimge for o Prodiessiona] Prpimesr Doreview e slormoeeala seban oo plaos T nes
Eranklit G hatter phace wr hive, wok developrmenia, whicl cosures sdequats sloimmmwater corole ace in place.
A TR i e nehid ol wenar
ey Lpmmess W Jormie s Poweil
Ty [wim,  Mldusn B ol
foll .'-L1|:'=q.||'l_. | |.:I-{_'ul sl e o mﬁﬁwﬂ
eraws and faliling vear! i Do S
1o 2004
3 Mojr Failares
fm 2012 1
2005 matimer
P 5
TS o e ain
Sl o
Srvetem 24D
wrars ol
E'n:j.f Property Tax Rates
fr 1980 U2 dax cals was 224 conls par S100 Taxz Rate
4L k) of ssscesed value. Ko 2007 the tae rstc was
jid b 6L Ciiés b Wit Franklin b 12.3 conte pec $100 of asscsand value 40
& il "’Mlz'.;'”]' GElRES - [ET0LY H_u: Thing 2014 bt ohtzioed  rom the B
wroHweith:  whick . dma 40D Commenweslth of Eeotucky's Office of h
griee, s saliecod tipesmive. 1o Property Valustion, the Citv's Real ar L
) Drtder it obTmEn tHe cerirfeabion., cHy Perscmal Promerty Ui Rates ane sarme of Qe 1580 s
{pTcinks ansndsess und denantien Zowresl wates o the 3iue of Eoatucky, Bwein
hiiaals cuirkndpd traEier ik Blidh with g pate changs io 2017 4o 123 eects par SLO0, the Ciny monintaine goe of tae lawest
- bl ol oimepcd ey . Mimicipal Propery Tox Rates fnodha Sele - remaimme within e bodtem 155 of

! leledr umiddnerie da betp promote pablic Miadedpal Laednp Fafedictlon (5670 loweal property ta s ont of & wetad of 410 Oitcs
.-:I:-lrl'nill:il.uﬂn'.'._m (o Tuie 11 -'|.1.|.|.1.|:|.J||'l];' i the slate].
LT R PR g TR TR

| iffimsstraton. e Ty
;l‘:_'nm:n:iE-i.m senpiad pmTiates mad [‘:ﬂ”DMlCFAHTﬁEHEHiF

i . - 1 T - = L= i L b &t
probodures hat offer - guidnnze: oo iy |h_-=. [FT ','_EﬁrsJ..:r|dert*.|& I-.=:.=.u:|-.=~!~5r'l|:| aithe Frank’in % mf}mn Iwdusiiial
bt feesed wnd b R inrear m -'-.uth-:ntg.r working with the City and the County, our communicy has seon:
s v ooaplaina AL phe forea | lithel- 4 21 new ndusrae s dsoate e sir covmrmening 1 ndysines exonm

2150 new fobs crzoiled 426,000,050 Jnvesias

T L =y TR

_q_q__



Finphises
wockin
HE T
el rrin

Erak

Gietting Water to Yoo
80 atiibes ol waler s warcy waler

fom i weatmewet plant fo vow
tap. Az withinoer infrastnaehs, tias ard
snvitommental gondifiors Wmye s foll on
destribubion hows. Freesing Emoerniores,
crownd  movemend, crazioe and  clba
fectors com omiss legie podfor Doesks.
¥When bines nre replacesd or npprodes ars
ricles 1% incteaaes the volume ofs woter thar
cact i reagh the lme, alhows For bedes
fre protcetion 2od decossee Qe it
of lenks end waler Ioge, Sipos 2313, 8.3
miles of wiler line has heen mpleced
Prdor 12 Chet meplacement o these Finey, the
cily was [Datig approximaledy A6%  of
weiley peoduecd due o debenorapcd T,
The waczr loes iz powr A 29%. Plane ace
o pomlicue o e in tais irfmsmaa e,

Clean-Lip
Each vear iy crevws collecl
= aa avorage of 1,813 cubsic
varde of brish
afl averags of 926 cubic
vards oi leaves

.
%%‘:- Proteeting our
i Commumnity
L1320 paands of natesiab hae Beca
repycled aiges Seott Wesim bopan the
Ciry Regyeling Portnegship in 2615,
That's 340 foatkall felds 3 feet deep of
Lrashy that hi beem bepd cal of lancdfills,
Tlsz l:-"|l:r' tED_'."_'I.'iJJ'_J jLEaN] g T i'u.'g..u.l. whee
severl comnmnite mecabers spprosched
the ity Commissiom with o comesm amid
dozive o hawe  pecyeline o Cur
cortuncialiy. The Clomendssion foade dic
alezision to irchade recysliog as part of
the sarmiabinn corolrecl ahen I e up L
rewnl Soott Tesie cucvcaly picks up
all twash and recadir in the Ciy of
Frunklin. The recveling @ffims have taken
doaale ol of owr Lz adills and pat i back
tonse. Thank pe for placiug cardboacd,
pladia and alomimom in the carg in be
oy Gled sl kalpung peosocl o Gar b

Mot to Swi
To tmild or oot to bnikd?  Tlet wan dle fopic of Caneroos convarsbons cuming 2017
SWhen [ ook olTice a: Mayar, Thepmm getting ealls md requests Som peopls thet wanted
a pool. Foo soveral years, Tlistersd, Thea 1 decided to explors the optioms. said Meamr
Boanic Chal, "With peivete furihing, o leam was liomed te et iogetber aproposal. Chrk
snid, "You've gos o start aomewhcre, seowao starbcd wills the very best faciliny Lecauss o

cammunily dessrves the hes”  The proposal for o 820 million aquatic ccoter was
puabed 1o Uw pablic in #fdach, Inthe minreths that folleeaed seveml smnllersergions nf
i Ecility wors disenssed, a suricy was cendusted by a prolessisgosl o and comments
were meaeimal. Tecarsc of sevocal mkoowns wils the sty Buslad aml siale budget
Tepairenminnds, the gomimgsgion decided the iming of the peojost was ol good aud wnads
the :bacision mied ke e forwnnd,

Property Re-1lse
Pulfiag  vacsnl  proprias
eck o modocriva ass 1

5 aoal of the City Surphes
Frqerky Moovgmamm. In 20060
prugram was developaii e
aid in the sedovclogmcal 0 poepve
sacant lota, A oead becaos appunant Ui e use ol G by resoumaes could e redocsd el
n tac bese recarablished if cilfeas could wse tha propertics t couskoaat & Bewss Tor e
rramership, developmsot pocposcs, au a8 reote] propcty, A prograin was divelaped, by
wily .~|'.a.1'.|: L1 pul these prperiies hatk ir presdoesive use, 'F'_.umﬂ,rin':'l_:.r vacant. (':i'q.r oo
lote axc edveitised, svopossly are receival, aml properiz: urs given in neer owners nino
ozt Bivcs the pooErem wis appuwesd by modinanse i3 Seplarhes 20014, Ave properties
heve hren symnded fo citizena for develaameons, “Wa hops 0 ceaticoc the sooprin and
sea properiey that vmee 2eld ngilnpidnzed, wnsade stmetiwe aansformed ko vilrael woaoea
thal fantiBies can ", s id Commmnnify _ﬁew-.!npmrnl MHrecinm Tommra's f:u_'u:::,',

i

AL

Working lTogether

Inmade Latar is weed W expend the oty workdooee with mcricond foancenl inveatneont,
Ol -‘:r:uI.llu‘_-'uu SMREDNHES o A oot bav t Fres e, SNVITE the gty o awETAE of
orecr $1 million mEsbor each vear  Lailer Riic Vawzhn gaid, "The mate wack program
bepzfita ovr conmmnety by providiog coasiala labor b acoomplizh tasks et maks cor
commanrity Rertes, The pregram boncfits the iomates by allowmog thea: 1o woek aod
develop sl

Savings to City from Inmate Work Program

Falizz Zenatment s
WAl Dalibuiicn e —
Ereet Iepartmeot  o—

Sioimiater Depart o

Reaitifcatlor e WP — e e )

G 10060 E000i0 300000 ACOORC . ZOC030  CO0OCo

Aping Infrastruciure
Each voar U Mayos aoed Croaomisaiomers wirk wggiether bo déoily oeeds in car ging. They
pus tozecher o boadped aod 2hee the atall divoelioo ow whers oo aod tespores: should be
spemt, G aging infrustracture is somwething thot we don't see ned often. take for sroobed
witil g wasler Dine lacak O covwage bacs-op necurs,  Hiovaover, this ke heena Fosyg af the
awrrent comtniasion.  They bave goven the repaat acd seplasnneet of oy gdfrsnochue o
prioctyr smd plan t0 ecocings thar werls Sorne of the fines in the groasd aog ¢loee o 10D
secers il o are deleriomutmg. The Crarmmission has alse el a propedve spproack S the
irzne of water loss workdng with Sall & slenailly tsocs witk disizibalicm lines ard mcts,
Orvoe 3506 million bag been diorrested By e City in i replaseoncal of aplog hzbastuchine
=amea M0,

_45_



Bafe and clenn wreter
is g pagsion 21 the

Fremklin Water
Trement Fland
The plans has beda secoomized e fls Aaca Wids Uplmizaiiea
Peagian CAWOP) for the last 15 yoms The purpass of thepuogram
g 10 ppponraEs drinking wites plants aod disminrors o surpsss s
i federal pogls oo stimclazcds, The progrm toenses on mproving
e operaliom of existine fodlites withowl meking  aapitad
iftprovercals.  In pastiolae, the proerant 15 focusedl oo Dheeedng
bubidity in drinkinp waeter.  Twhbidity, o cloodiness, iz &
micagureunent of particles in waner ipclndiag seil, alpac, bactesis,
virses pnd atker sabstnces,

[ iimzer Lo nebieve Cplamieado e Framldin Fluni choes, 359,096 tesds
cagh vear.  Ulay alae work wbib G distabotion depactimonl 1o
caaves the distedloion sywebea is floaled a1 lzasd badec a veme These
gre Gl swwterns amoeng the 140 poblic aod private wetcr trestmwent
plares in the stote that parbicipaeed io fhe ULE, Dovironmemtel
Profection Aremay™s dreo-Wids Opdimdenica Program,

We e prowei thad the Tramkhin sl hos e desime 40 excesd the
requimuments ol Bie Sals Dehaking Wale At and go abovs sl
bevand whar is reguired 1o give ue e cleanest, safean deiukivg watcr
poezaille.

K9 Agda Ollicers

“Shadow became a pai of e Feaklin Police Dorce in 2017,
Funding for “Bhadow" was naads posaible by donatlons and funds
geateated baoupl tu: regulatery foo on aleohel salss. Police Clicf
Beoer Salomom zaid, “The Police Deparhment has nesded a police
carine for 2 looy time and Ehadaw hae olrendy besn very beosSeial
tor my Ilaving @ ceming <o as pert ol wr ggenoy gives 1= an
advanlags when wo el drgg dotestion ena wcliele, books or ol
schonl frounda, Bbe obso cna be miilized in rroking of smEpoeets o
missrar cAildren and adn’ts,. For emample, she can searah fiir
wiedpedd el ulier srtdeles i te selool svaten™

Making it S&ie

Cleaning Up our City

Dilapidels] Stactoras bavs been remaoved i D caly
7 Owim:'n the  last 5 ¥mars, The Oy has removed o

Cue o condomuption or by property ownces alice codc
vialatom azrinm.
In #m effirl 4o eafore e Proporte Maictenanee Cods mnd encome
Uz vislue of propactics withic the aify, S Cine Commisswan kired a
fil] time Code Enforcement (ificer v 2003, Tl Officor works
dmity to inspen properties and wack with propemy o to enEars
crpliancy, 2uro The somencs mooths, 5 lerme pmmms of dime i
speal enfireing the tall grass and weeds ondinance. 178 wan works
to remove melicensed, inopemdive vekicles, seomes nthbigh and
cluber from peoches snel yands and othes puoporty violstions,
Mhlapidated nnd unsafe slowsieres {8 enotdee aca of focos, Weny
ey pearserinbe o obd boepital peoperty at the cpmer of Wain aud
Mzdisea that exlended to Collegs Steet, Tive praperbivs, nwned Ly
different ewers wese il yronecsed through o seces of cavwalks,
The camier snziems: wis in 2 cemnpless slade of durepnic The CHy
begm sommuansaizon wilh the property cwaen, howsver, the awmnes
faileel ta respoad or male any cesded repedns o the male b
ghusmiee gsbe, & o started in the ceober strociurs whish cousad
damags o adjocent smestnres. The end resull was all the scacios:
Tetimipr Ao
Lintl 2013, tha old “Wal-bar! Bodding on MNorth Moo Srest sl
amply und abawdoaed. Irhed bocn vandalized zod ilegn] arfre yeas
cozaring o d sopnler Bagis. The Code Foforoement Officer bagan
citing e comer for the dilapidated ste e fmos hopat @ areass,
Thz avmers =old the badlding which o hooses Stack Tooss chat
emp Inys 25 punpla.

Thest Tasting Water
Avwarded

it Washington [2.C,

dtes Sl Supednngidant 20y Framas s

Crenarer Drent Gt e feer afike
RREET'E papihay baegve e et Sardes

Rl |
Franklin has s Geat 1 adtng Water i Kentcicy, pecording m the
Faueksr Bural Warer Assoziatica. In 2006 the Fronklin Mamiciss
Weice Flant =02 the presiimiona seaand and way niomeel Lthe Sesf
Tastinn Water in ,R-F'.'l:ll:u".l:_T.-'. The seabs win sl Uican e U natiosal
cempetiton in Winkinglon, 100 a0 2007 wheee ey pleced third,
T fuwcliriang al eaih evanl wias dois ey Blind fame tean ee o pened of
five people fbst ase noc directly mvndved with e ireatrnent ol
drinking water. hedgiog wes based on climiny, bongael arel Gk, "
wis oo hones to Tecedve this aaenb TE as Tang il g swill=as watos
plant receives this distinetion howese geoud wator @ fitcred
ratradly aenl gecemally Jes o Bodie et W work Seod to slesa the
watcy that comes Fom, Tnkess Cresk ond ke 7L <afs fin o
crmmmumity” sl Waler lreatsent Pland Soperincsdent Jesns
Farnwa. Winilng the taaes roels walidatzs the ¢ffors of the warer
trestent SpormieTs 13 exceds] poyemment water guedidy repuloizns,

Police Become Accredited Agency

LK moncks oot caslusbion, 91 pelicies anc procedans Gevelapment
proved e lby when 3 woanioeos voba swamded the Feaabln Fallee
TDepariment its 2frsr gver Renbcky Asscointon Thiefs of Police
Avcnstilation, “Tho accredilalion s we ey praven til we
are follonwdie conmenly acceated oracticos in law calirseneel that
meaet 0 Etanderd of exoelleoce. T mesns fapr oor ageocy hos
wilisdeaed noproans anvolving cubade pasessors, evelaaing oor
agasy fom bop ta botieon 2ud dogide ool Lo come aol standng fal.,

We strived, asen Apemoy, b achdeve el wamtacn egee loose aed
professinnalism, and we sweceeded," sakd Dolice Chicf Beoer
Sulopwan,

The :1'i|_'_-.'-‘1h:::_~._r_ rizoth proress vas oo cnllahomative eam stticl of
pwEryane in the agemoy. The KACE acecodiialice & a bigl boaor,

The Coommueveealth of Xootocks: ix ronowned acrosy the pasion for

it cupelerce ic Tow emforcemsnt and the Franklin Prdics

Mepartment row stambs srwemg-d (e besL

-4 E,_



Diollars & Sense

o Falles

Grant Money Dovelopiog ard sk ng 2 bndpet con be a
REmergercy challanpe. The City Commissiar works 1o
apniees | develop aod meintein 8 belaced budyst

Fach spring, ths comadiszion holds special
Erpew gemsions W discuss nesds o projecta widl
ity o pre Lisants arsd cornrmamicy leaders, The
Crityr opamees oo 8 fecal yveer bodoet celemdar
but they review rhe budoet aed cxpesditans
Lacutthly, szmking resisions when neorssary.
Whea local dollas car be lavemped with
franr fands or allocafiors, e commission makes tha a priering. Ohace s lasl seven
years, over $3 elion i preot faeds Tesve been utilizred en airy rrojecss, This fanding
ranges from amel] reeaws of 52,000 to puresass Tascss forpatice officers to 81,000,000
projects Ly comsirecl 2 frer opeic system, Citr Manaper Kentoen Pawefl said, "Onr
Comendssiea dentifiey o need und then our stafftakes tat nosd and ressamebes possible
finding mechanigms, Tacy work on the project fom cocseption o coopleion, no
matter how b or ameall. Sowe projocts taks yeas b complele pacd boxes of poperaacdk
will he dane om projects, T79 0ll dooe 1o make ouf cormnindly hestar and 40 stretch the
Lias, doillars ax far as possible,™

@FSHS 15 Un Track @

A comntenily parnecshn allews Frooklin-Simpeca Bigh Sclool sheleais the
opporiunily fo cwn callege credies S FRTT Tn 2012, the Ciby maw e need 4o Ta-m
8 stromger pasersbip bolween the Svuther Kennwoky Comriamity and Lecliedcz]
College (BEYCTC) and Gie comevanily. A scholasship progmea 7as Jeveloped o give
kirh schon] stidens e caportuncy 1o take collags ararses pnd receive dual coadic
P theoe are, oo averape, £ to 80 FEHS sradents that parlicsale in e progmm saes
aedeoster. “The program al SKYCTC gives studenss the coofidence that Uy can di
colleme," said City Manseese Kenlom Fowell. D, Tames B, BoCoslin BEYCTE Yice
Presideot of Oatrezch and Coumanlty Development sided, “It 35 a arenr commmanicy
parimership thet eaposes young poople @ collegs lils in”a nen-threntening
ciwiranment™  Melloslin alse poted, “We a5 twe coly commuority in the
Comereasicalth taal ke a acholamsbip progrmm Jike his, The sebolarslup s Farxled
eeqezlly By e ity of Prankling Simpson Couary Fiseal Court, e Prasdklin-Simps o
hdnst-ial Avtherity. Franklin Bank & Trod Company, nad Ermmeloy Thomnss, This
I=ve] of camneitnyzit 48 b 2l mooor yoyng peapi, as well as an ioecstment in
the fisture of me eosnaniny, Jrds alse g loeeaimenl thal SEYCTC marchas beo -to-
saie. The Om Travk Schelarsaip povs coe-chind of the studense’ tattie, and Cie Collaps
provides a sebuodarslip of the remaiming teo-thinds,™

H Lzmmunity

B Ctaer

Aleoho] Bales Approved = Police Department Enhencements

" High Speed |hierriet —

Fitier Qptic Projest

Tichen logy A wiorl thak ding
b mhl'n pare of o ||LI-' :
v 25 8 vehiibe,  Tem Yo mit,
£y bemiers, cetermdned dia il s

Lwene e e eorrem

nbleging  eew  lasmeas
inHispes 0 sy ERLTHIT L TERE R faid

Ao sl ol ensure high sneed,

ruflable  @iergr  sdrviee il
eVl e Ciy mokithebad dn
i 5 208 pal [t prodec] o cpnilrect

X2 mile Tiber oplly BEckbos kol

tlie oy mad 40 sael o dbe industrinl
Ptk

A loap. abelnped) cprantmeotos
provided S OB ST findd for the
pemsect. This remaining” fands wene
swibdred Wil o bend - waidl. (e
senerl imd

I Helf, owneship of Hie-fber
nefwrieh . wie sl a0 e Froedsie
Flevtric: Pl Boand' " EFE - auded
st b ardl ook thie progeoi (o Ui neat
el e pos r.ml.-ul.-.: THlermiel
el phane sepope In residenizl
clistomers me wEll 55 stk misd
(sl recs LR Fisiniss
l:!ﬁl.'t'h:prn;,'r-l Sl Wi
Cioodneml saad, 29 mpprechiyc ke
Ciny's  vesagl dpidl leaslfecshes i
anmohimg am nll fAber netwark. EPR
Fateer bips-rarw micved 0 the pex
phisz by bmeching rewidenifal fiker
Aeriee g 1'.!:1_L'|.§.|'||.' OOF R
|I|'.u;ul. fm.l, g:[iuh[r.' mnl I.lﬂ;ﬂ‘.’n‘!.‘lh'l.’
lileemal perviee -

Orver $1,37 million has been pracratcd in revenus fom te meplatory fes on prekmpe ligoor sales aloee 2012, Stane law roealsics
vy the City s permited to speod theae finds Thesc regulatory fisis may be wsed for policing and repulatien aod sdnin e rabion
af thes sl i wlenholic bevernges within the city  The Cify Counmssaicns bag chisen tn nse the magority of the finds peocraed

ta chases auf pabice depastment. e deportment hes

Farchased hody eaedras for ali olficer {Franklin was ome of the first agences 1o the segioi o sipleenent body cams)

Forchesed fablcts for an-tar weo by oflivecs ks ko reports emd pocquing informarion.
Purchzed updnbed Tasers.

Purclzsed mlles.

Purchased vow ballistic hedbveds fir the alficems.

Purchased ballistc vests that are amored aed hovs e abilisy wsiep cfle ropmds
Linresased nﬂ'l:ur salarivs, allowing Fmnklm fo be l:-::mp:nnm in::gﬂn.all].rmﬂuaj.-anu.

Flﬂﬂﬂﬂ]ﬂl Rﬂp{}ﬂ Ld L :m'?:-m?m! mm* Brontght g"‘"":l cick profile. The City's rating ke oot becn
news o the Crly. Tech year Mondh®s g bk in the past. Gty Iraderslip bes

Investment Servicas comcnsts mndom, 2omprehensive finapsial eviess o3 muricmal : : :

oovertnends, After reviewing, Mioidy's wves 0 bond urcd[:mtlm:whichit:prmmrsq;‘u: ::;2:;1 :IE].I qu] .THJ:?I“E?W 1F1ndm-z

crecin winlumes of wovcnmeenl bomb, B HHT, ailer a rigepms review, Moady'a L "3"_ l"" » ;Pn E_E in place un

upimaded e City'e Geners] Oblipation Batinz fo ar sas, which 15 a three nrich LA g R .

Icsease tyom the previous miing of A3, This upprade refleets & siguificoly improved ity af Franklin
i

wiargy Franklinky.omg
o



frankLIN Kentucky
&}M ?pw% M? ﬁﬂw

Woume 2 2218

I ihawe my nﬂ:nrnuml
trealy dod [ Cwas b
raikbed T SUTeGE
il wpiend g
LR i

ﬁ From Lhe Ma’fﬂr

My e is e aE g m |

VoY .Jp;:n.n..lﬂ.i'l.-r {er v

TFranklin
Cily Cottunizsion
=Tl e Riglt
Corrnimizsinner
Tamic Fowzl]
Crrmessiomer
Hesherd Williams
Ry 1arry Lixed

Cigivlazions
Birorsmae Bencets

Coourbatoier &
e Pra Tem

T ordcll Steosart

e elected 2 (i Ma}-nr
of Ernklm. - €hver the nixt |
Four Veafs, | aeould ERen
work i fhie conniy. oR
proteets ks wil e sl atl
thee gikkeens oF Franklio npd
Simparm Clounty,

Tawiu v 1% was toe start of e Wew Year aod Mow Londerghip within the City of Trankkn,
Lary Dixon took offics as Mmwor atter hoving seved ns a City Cammissionest for B years.
Browniz Penaett end echer Wiltiams wak allics as vy elaclsl Commssiooeas,  Janis
Powell wnd Wenidsll Steaart retirnesd Lo theit seats as Cily ComnnslRsloers. T Franklin, te
Banior serves & Grae year teom aod the Coninlagioncers soryc 8 (e yoar frn

Since tae Maver aud Commissiopers bave taken, office, they have heea husy leammnog the
cdutizs prid Tespomsing Bdes of therr olfice ws well s leamning the dav-to-day opsrations of Ciry
Ciovemment. U Wedpesday, Jeumwary S0Y efficials owed city depaitmencs. They met with
depachment hiads and cogplovees to loesrn about the senvices and fpaks the depamtmests
acefonm. The weele of Tuouarny 219, pevw commissioners Depmetd and Willizmes nttended the
Eeotocky Lespae of Citics fraining for Woely Eleoted Offcials, Trwms 2 04 days packed Full
of infonnerior e belp them befter understand dhe rols of the affize they now Beld, Lo
Slapday, Tamnnmy 2589 the Comprission mel with deparimend hesds o redisew the bt aad
Bearm marme shond the frencind «talus af the Cite, Coosmissioner Boaset! sald T have Jeamed
s o i the last few weeks. It has beco a weondesfol Iearning cxpericoee to eet the
cinplovess Wl are it chares of cach deparimznt, and to see, first baed, how hard and
rh.:l_‘ﬁn:,jml:'l;-,l ﬂ1|:.:,' work 0 enmre our o s 0 safen, mmingahiz and more seomomice] placs o
Trwe. Frvadditiom, aifendimg the BLE trinimg sessions gl esal badpol rovicwss Bus Belped me
43 upxleratarst baoe difftoedn the job of Cioy Goveoumcat will actusliy be. Tt hss beca nxind
boppling &2 thore g 4 Jot do loam! Thees aoc so mancy Laws, Sinhuics, end Policies thet govem
i wo mast or maest oed da, s s work on nExe :,"I'..'I.':F\. tordpe: and conduct the day tn day
business nfthe I:ir_:'r of Prnklin, However, 1:iam up ta fhe challenge!™

AR B IR | Tl e

Traming for Exceliorce
| ey M omeper K enronPousEll
| waswwnrded. e fr'lumh af - M
Uy G emangs IEI'E
Eaninefy Eeagus -'-'H [PEER
Pdavor  kamy o BEsen was
| mwardad ihe' Exceliioes
Crv Govemance, Holy e
cerfT it nrhiered

ough 1 il ery g !

eshatation  progriom ‘hnd K-ucpmg You Informed i fopics on what to do if wou're pullzd over

e : nt [east 30 Foars nly | f hy = pnlice nfficer b tha dungers ot Blawing

.F.r_u.uuhy. fowell smd | L H"‘ Uebruasy 2014 the City printed  ar grase cliopings f cie sicet. The goal
“ThErex plways ot B &40 eopies nnd moiled the fist i to share informntion st ven may oot

aditivm of franklINEentucky,
~— & pabliation pat topcther B it
atalf. The monl pfile prblicetion

knnw arl ewplain wiyy corinin things are
dane or moeded wilbine Gily puveroisent.
The city also posts the Citr Corrmission

r||.'r|:r"|:'|.|,rn[,':d L | SR 15
tmeve wr et o e

| Bming n pin ol e KED
PR ﬁm givelr e A
(B wodirsunding of b
! f
ORFEHR F . e alis tn
i elecpen making poces
e Fitic g I'EIﬂ:I:I

Eperitd it sonfn )

wae to provide informontipo and bighliphes of
projecis, waro and intormradion bl whens
o bl lars sm g, iy sbalT pla: ke
iake Uds a yeasly poa’ect.

Ir Fekranry of 2018, the Citr bapnn pesting
shorl imfrmabos] videos vn s Facehonk
page, woheile and e oy cable chawncl
(chnnnzl 3 en Coracnath. The vidoos rangs

~ 48

mesfings.  These ars public mestng: amd
Ay 15 wieksmbe 0 iteod at any o,
Howoorca, iE ywou can 't nuakoe it toe a mecding:
wou enn 5oy informoed by watching dhe
rnn:ﬁn.gsm Facabank, the wehsive, o cohls

e

|
4

L



Franklin Municipal Utilities

Growing!
Q018 proved b ke = owear of growth,
Soviral tnduatiics capen:cled el pew onas
completed  cepstoection. And bepac
prodaction.  The consmuction of sinpele
Barpaly lwomes increased 574 oear the
previons peat  Mow hroncs algo oo
e infmstrocoare st be ot in place, As
aresnit ol the rey crmstmciom, developers
mslalled 5,575 Fs=t of sewer lica and 14
amacholes which 35 a  BE45W0

imfastrochue fvogumest made 4 ow
i 11

T Wastewater Collecuon  deparlsus
worked e prove infrasnciam io 20018
By apgrading a it smticnaed [, 1040 feed of
A" L[oroe main =2 2 cost af 8157, 2K, They
alser instllecl 51 new sewer faps, [ amsa
busy vear!

Frunklin Muriclpa? Milite: - Whene Dozc Year Moazy Go

lagiddka

Cloan & Tastly

Iazh ikay, ihe Frunklm Adumicipal Water
Ficatpont Plant cleans owl processes
apperrimately 2,000,000 gallons of waler.

Bixch day arver
100 Aezgls =e
poerforned 4o
ETSHTE F
qualicy  and
53_'51}' ol A
deluking matce
iy our by
Class 1L
[ Iparator
Tt

Bhkiamorth

ader,

Ll oy w5 i
I'he Frmklin

=X LK ot B-Lmigipal
T el s T asiewater
'ﬁEE’IE‘“ﬂIﬂEI e 'T‘r;rmm: Flems

frents XA KD galloms of -sestemnter
erichy aizsy. Pries b cdsclerging watar inin
Dimdes Oresk, the Washoasior |fselment
Plant poawoves  tooge  flen 95%  of
cottaminntes. The discharps water foo
the: wastrwams plont is better qualicy fao
rthe water almeaily n the omeek.

L R T B Y e SN o0 Tt BT U AR AT

fedrrasdalka wr'n'l-\.l'.-'\p'l LR B

Erpfuliachicall- o
Hrmiredeig b D L3 L iy
= ; [ 5 R TE b

N e TIEdFR L FHFT
1

- -

Lighting the Way

Atler SFT oy arilemed it wos apperenl
e win aa need Do Hghidoee alocp the
corrider fium
higbraay 1003
arinp serth o
il Weul-
MartTowa's
aren, The Citr
paminered with |
Warms R |
Electriz
Cocpemtive
to irerll 20
new  ligtE.
will incecasc esfory to moteTists  and
peadestinmes. ity emnlnyess were able Lo
imstal ] this comierels baes dir Chea Lights U
WHECE cenpluyes caoie i be inatzll the
lighl el clectcive] compoacats, This wam
efioc moed thenienmels nf dollars fer chee
ity

Tlere s 1295 steest lights in the Cigy of
Ersnldlin. = The mstellafiomn, maintersmoes
nril eleptrinity coms for fhass lighls & paid
g thes iy Ciemers] Fund af a cost of
$1:23 100 par vear.

City Budget

The City's budpet (oamey 15 a Jerigthy
and thorsagh process. The  budpet
piocess boging in March aed s copomg
until fizal edeption in hme The Cily
fillows & “bottenn up™ approach o
bodgdin:, This mens cech cmployes
nod e sopeovisss heve o Sy m
balehng  the  budget  for  thoo
deparment.  This allows eyenyme e
have a wose inthe budecling process aod
cnures thet City Leadars haore a realishc
nnierstmding of whel 15 needel o moil
the =needs of i upcemine fecal
vear Mooy bodpet siratery meetmpes o
held, belween the employeea and the
gupcnisors and then with thes snperasens
angé the TFinances Doector sl Cite
Mznppzr. Ar least tag or fhree budpee
wimck: sesnivay anc beld with the Cigy
Commitssean. At the budpet work
sesdan, The City Manager aud Financs
Diirector disruss ol the comprments of
e boddged 10 aeder by ohiéain pordaace,
dircetion and opproval,



Cir sireess, snmefning masl take o
reniet il e ereounler o e pralinls
o wrask that distuchs cwe deiving. 20148
s yeset ol hnpnavenwcil s ioear Bbsets.
e==] Ciry Manaper Featen Powell asorked
with Senete Field Reprocemrative Sanuy

— Rimpamm end  Kemiucky ‘'rimsporbsbion
Cubinal Distict Dimeclr biea Plonk Gr CHX Raileoad ard doc Sabs Higloomay
Desmtwect to make over SL0C0000 in azedsd reed improvensnts, The reilvoad
crogzings ot Cadas Bereet and Madison Strest had eecenthy bozn the sise af nameroas
poridemis, racter tmlor ineaks damaged, amd 2 nesks siowck by Intins afber tien weca
tzhbe 1o crogs the veifiead . T Beees coosmoes woos re-wotked, alloming as 2aaier end
apfer cooasing for whicles.  Alse, the slate weewfaeed 31-W ot a cost of alniost
EEG0,0cH),

Tl Ciry usinle nas 30 niles ol aeets, Tlos doos el inelods sebe woads soch a2 Main
Straet, Codar Steci, Madison Swset, Mogpastorsn Boad o psoy odhcrs. The
Faonmcky Repartoocat of Travsportation maintaing thess reeds, Eech yeor, naually in
Frhrmery, the Cine ol Femldin siteenr department smplozess canadully iaspect each
alreet 1o the Gify. Thay sourd all the deficss in the siosel such ag polholes, sl haadom
cracks, patehes etz This lufomation it & pud dnto & GamAEOLG PECSIN thiat rates the
sereets fram gracd =6 bad, From -his meing, the sreers ars seleoted for repavicg. Fach
yeasly badgee inclydes money for smeer rsurdicioe aad mpinienacoe, 10 2018 dhe
Chgy spenl $253,078 00 requeve o Wikl of 3.0 miles on pertdens ol ben slresls. As
Fandivg allawe, o City plavs o conlaor mekene small bmeovamcnls esch voar

Healthy Changes. . .Financially

Healih cangs & & o o0 o 120 nsmy cieles thess days. Local govaencnts stragpele
wirh taz same izmnzs as private busioess, How do wo pive our smplovess quality
hezalth aare covene whie mpminiming n bolanced and respansible mudped? The City
ol Trnklm has mopdemnonied sevemal mew programs that bave sccesslelby scontrolled
L Tige 1 dnsiranes proodwns al kol Ge adniddue] poemowm fevel and b avecall
cily bodpct lovel, The Caty has tactursd the coveraze, addad healthy lifestvle
izcentvos, boconss a sk fice modkplace asd neessied e plan docoedthles o
order 1o kesp the cost of ealts core mopapea®iz, IE dee Cibor had oot mads thece
changas thew wombd barvva har 2o ahse-h MW in inorejses over the st § yearz, This
railwies Lo apomracimabaly 515,000 s,

Healthy Changes, . Lifeatyle

2013 was & year of healdyy Hilzay e alesnges G lone toms ety caupleyee letey Faim,

b Ferov s worked fouthe City for 28 yoas and ecves
ns the Supermrsedent of the Waler Treamment Planr.

Ilg s sleslicated o fhe City, his work and folloe

COLLLL VRS,

by s cfivrl bosave money sl Jealk mswsaned
proasiame, Hue Uity doaplomented & lepher proaniaon:
a1 benlds insrene: eoverag: for tobaeeo wsecs. This
imimeiie. wms e Taly 1, 2004, Proar o that
1|.'np|.-:‘|:rn|-.'r‘.a.t|-:|n Terry macle dhe decidion o guil
smoking. He :-aJd.. “After & Llifedines of srokdug, 1 dewghl @ was fime and wiurted 10
s il T eolel,”™ He farded smaking in 1966 ard =nid he wis, "Way D paane Lo b
sproinge!” Jorey haan't had & cipasctic aloes Jaly 235 and sayvs 2 foale moch bertor,

Sty 2lier Jery Quedt sinokiong, e ciegeloes =l ik Water Planl suggested thes cake
Fpdr deily meming meeting cnesice and diacpae i=eacs while teey walk, 5o, in
Sepleznher they hegan walking, as o depariment, aroomed tha perimeter af fhe nbrd
Jorry anid, “It's & prest foce opethor. We dstecss plant cpecalions, ways fo make
imgrervementn, and cncemvase each adher go 1ove Loalilee™  Jecne s24d he e wanka
22 males every diy. He feely heter and hoy more spermy, He abmibabes this chenpe
o a lwalikier filslyla,
poeticipstiog n tle Gardue Spol Walk hie Aagusl

~B[=

e plems o combmes wulking ord has sec g el ol

Pr:ﬁmmg cur History

A8 ks the 200™ hirthilby of Sizepsmen Coustly,
2081 the Cioy wall cclehete 200 vears! As s
celehate W @ Ooportear Hat oo PIEAErve Jur Fare
tor ftune peneraboms The histomia Erir |:v:|u.w=
s bl im, 1852 The g L R
buiklings wand  sliopa
Ut guorpmsd e
courtiionse: add to the
chamessr i
amhisnee af omar oy,
Ir um atferl Ao ersurs |
e poaservalion  of oo L‘l..:i.l.'IUﬁJ[ hjst-:I"Jr
devaew, the City Commission adopesl am
onlimeaze  in Apml that allesel G the
develapment ol proarvalion slasdads end a
prodvovabivn couunitics,  The comunites ooz
fovmed and hes wodked to develop Histomia
Clwerlay Standards whizh oere desimed b protece
rhes histaminnlimhagrmidy of Thogmlewn Pranklio. The
commibiee bas alio savicwed 22 requests fod
improvements W strwctaces do dw Hislode Disoct
gnce it was foemed. “Sioce 2013, a total of 41
diffeaca  cabeprencwrs bave  wvested in the
Draomtonsn Histarie Dlistrict by apemings ahosmess,
Mot all of thesa basinesses have remaoed s
ttrougk the ersl of 2078, bt ihls doboest Lr o
dovantawn has sgurcd greawih snd hes created
wlsal feww a vibkean: aboppiog distriee" s2id Ay
Elliz, Excentive Director of Franklin-Simpeoa
Femnimsnnes. "Tn opddition, we heve oover 54
apncments arl conelos dosatown, The mislws of
Living spacas, metul "'hup 5, offces and Gaierics las
cresbid an eemionne buosd G cw Doweitoaur The:
regevation of ecveral dowastown oildinps has
helpsd 1o crenee this eovironme=rt Reoaissemces is
lnnkinz foremrd b owhad s in slore e our
aorsniswn ag wie 2e0ve foeward."

Folice, a part of OUR Communty!
e with the Frunklin Pabie zre invnlved i
OUR community! Tm 2018 pilicers 'p..i.rl.nurud with
tus Blazdne Cowps and collected Toys for Tots.
Theyw alzo did e Costs for Eids drive. Tt Nnle
Adame pressnied nn cpdate fo the Homm Rights
L mmmission and -.:r.la.:'l..J. with lhun stafisdes and

: infprmption  peaacding
rnlice =chividias,
In  Deecasber.  teo
officers el E-R
ahadow, belped waith
Ui 2% gogpoel 5L
Acnienry, The evant
wag hosted b the f‘;-'i'T]Hﬁﬂ Conmity Exfercion
Berviee and Simgsion Lounly Schoals, Oficess
woorked with 15 sludents and dbawed tear e
Bazics of proeessiopg o crine secag,



Uity of Frankling Genarsl Fuad - Where Do Your 122 Loiars Gt Pension Crisis,

kel s - el i ) i - X - 2 .
R ttag ot e g A ekt What does 1his frean oo ont Uity
[T = P h ] FH-:?.‘.I‘;I.;:II'H.'I'

Discuszion of the Stete Pensiom Csisis
wrs inthe osws a lolin 201 R, A gueesliom
tht bas been asked ia: “\Why can't the ity
o sninethinge diffent foe ictrament fo
city ewiployses? The HKeulucky
Rrotrement Syutem iz povesmed by he
stale arsl sale slatads {law}  Local

i wovectmenl swplovess ans gained to
participate in the Xeotckyr Bestrement
Aytem. The Merneloe Relitennemi Buoand
seld the rale aod local govvornecnts ges
veaqueivea]. b law, to poy that rafe. Beftcm
Iz, aptinp out, [5 ot aa gpriom,

- W0 how  doen this  affoer ow
RreDegr e coar.ianiny? Legialetosa in Frankfort e

o= carranily discussing legizladan thnt wi'l
b proposcd fo addresa the issue. Tha
ity ol Fraklin's Mawr amd  Cliy
Attomey both bold ecate on KLC's

ek iiranE

City of Frankiin’s Investiowat In Community Developimznt Legisktive Boad, 8o tasy wil ploy oo
A aztive Tole in lemislacive Inhbaydng eliins
o B i reparcng this dwsae,  Meanwhile, the
LRI b o oimsaghi  Bioemd G KRR bcceasead
Lea LA e ctep ey cootributicn sates 10 help fimd
NPT O e shortfall, The shortall is a cesule of
::'.:'::;::‘m venrs of underfanding ot fhe st lenne]
R S without inx menenses which, W om,
L cres el L rmul G-I lim thir]Len
J- e arpme coiai Lhe Uiy of Frapklio il b
k- :;:::'::::' required 2 incrense their cencrifneion o
e e T the  state retirement fme he
3w ey i n_pml;:imnﬂ}'ﬁﬁﬂﬂlﬂﬁ:l‘fm YRR di

EE- FY2035.

i e el e

| b B g i Fe i i

| i peimree P Lily Uf r:'ﬂ.'lﬁlr“'
iy
“ﬂ:—ﬁ'—? wwane franklinky.org

§ Leadership in Frankforl
: Saling pulicics, progosteg Lepialale, sod wockswge with ez has Boon o teele et oty Albonscy Scott Cralvtee: hes been avalved
with for e Tast 6 yeers au e has semved on the Kenmeky Taxme of Crrizs Tapishacive Foard of Directors The pas: 4 yooos heslso

f served on Fenlocky Leagoe af Cities™ Hxecutive Borrd whech is responzible for the diy-to-day wockongs o FELC. Dormy that tme, be
B hi amittem o G-l iy picees of logebatiom Bl ave beeefited cibuws s, oems paragalrly, Frmkia

Mavor Lamy Trixon was plse appainted fo servs on the Lepislative Board of Digectam n December. This iy tha fitet nme in tha bstory
oof fhus City ol Pkl dhat we have bhad Lwo cnetmdean un Lhis Bead . Crabilros and Dioom will wook fogetbar tath ober slected
offusialy sk leaders Soin actoss the state to sof the legeskative openda 1o help lobbor for, cocatt, and advaeate for leoistation to assiat

B maaicipalities Tha Board mlso reviess lawes thot pse bemng propassd oo tha State Lamislnmre that 4 fect mtes. After cerefinl revew

i iherr ey supeest modificateoms toodba ke or adwacate for ar agamst the propoesd logislatoan

i Teing a part of sn argemizafion for 6 vears, Crhires bes developed many werkmy mlchanships across the Commemeealth. Ha sid, ©1
o have anetwork of peaple ta beusce Idess off of and & great oppoctinity to leam from oterz " e ha? aleo played 2 part in developing
F and re-writing the statudory scheme for code enforccment, B progrom now wsed ecross the state. Crabtros scce his myvolvemert as
N beocficial in memy-ways, He said, “Tot only am T fortmale emowgh io be ahls te make oodifference god help owe Cily, bul Tve been
| b to propose idens for bilks and stotudes every yeur that help citics aceods the Commionwealth of Fetfscky,”

T P T o PR T e P oo, R T L




MEMO

Tk Telayor Lacry Dion and Copumissinners
FHROLT: oot Crantees
DATE: Felbenary 27, 20149

SUBIECT: Two Promissoy Modes with Christopher Casbecl — 313 Russall Stroes

Christepher Castesl has entercd inte a Contract for Sale and Purchase of Beal Praperty with FEM,
LLi far the purchass of el pooperly at 315 Russell Street for $250.00. Iz doinu su, be hug apiead
Lo pey the delinguent property taxes for the peais 2000 2018 o the arcunt of BE2Y. 58, Fe bus alsw
aoresd 1o pay the two cod s cofreemert lens apains? the propely o the sioumt of $73,836.52,

Attazhed are teen drafio: ol promissory cotes £ him to exsonte inorder bo pay for the Laoes and Hens

I cie YA 1o A i agreemnent, please povide your appraval S the sreculion o tiese vl
promissory notes with the City of Frankliy,

Adtachmenis



PROMISSORY NOTE

Sum of $629.58 March , 2019

For value received, the undersigned, CHRISTOPHER CASTEEL, 1321 Madison Street,
Lot 5, Franklin, Kentucky 42134, (hereinafter referred to as “Maker”) promises to pay to the CITY
OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY, P. O. Box 2805, Franklin, Kentucky 42135 (hereinafter referred to
as “Holder”), the sum of Six Hundred Twenty-Nine Dollars and Fifty-Eight Cents (8629.58), with
interest from and after the date of set forth hereinabove at the rate of Six Percent (6%) per anoum.
Said principal and interest shall be payable at the business of the Holder hereof and is due and
payable in full no later than one (1) year from the date this Note is executed.

The parties understand, acknowledge and agree that the debt that is being created by and
through this agreement and note is for unpaid ad valorem taxes due to the City of F ranklin for the
years 2011 — 2018 for property located at 313 Russell Street, in addition to penalties, interest and
attorney’s fees.

Should any payment hereunder not be paid on the date due or should the Maker not fully and
completely comply with the provisions and covenants as set forth herein, the Holder may, at its
option, declare the entire unpaid balance of principal and accrued interest immediately due and
owing. Failure of the Holder to exercise its said option to declare a default shall not constitute a
waiver of the right to exercise same at any other time.

The unpaid balance of principal and accrued interest payable hereunder may be prepaid at any
time without prepayment penalty.

Presentment, notice, and protest are waived by all who are or may become parties to this note,
and said waiver shall extend to any extension or forbearance of interest or principal granted by the
Holder.

The Maker agrees to pay all reasonable attorney's fees and other expenses incurred by the
Holder incident to any suit or other proceeding instituted by the Holder, its successors and assigns, to
collect the balance due on this note, or to enforce any provision of the lien(s) filed against the Maker
in favor of the Holder hereof. The Maker further agrees to pay any and all such fees and expenses
incurred by the Holder, its successors and assigns, incident to filing a lien and/or any other
proceeding in which the Holder is called upon to assert or defend its right, even though such action is
not instituted by it.

“MAKER”

Christopher Casteel

_53_



COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
COUNTY OF SIMPSON

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me by Christopher Casteel on this day of
March, 2019.

NOTARY PUBLIC
My Commission Expires:
Notary ID No.

_54_.



PROMISSORY NOTE

Sum of $13,856.52 March ,2019

For value received, the undersigned, CHRISTOPHER CASTEEL, 1321 Madison Street,
Lot 5, Franklin, Kentucky 42134, (hereinafter referred 1o as “Maker”) promises to pay to the CITY
OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY, P.O.Box 2805, Franklin, Kentucky 42135 (hereinafter referred to
as “Holder”), the sum of Thirteen Thousand Eight Hundred Fifty-Six Dollars and Fifty-Two Cents
($13,856.52), with no interest, payable at One Thousand Dollars ($1,000.00) per month until paid in
full, with the first payment due and payable on or before May 15, 2019. Said principal shall be
payable at the business of the Holder hereof in accordance with the amortization schedule attached

hereto.

The parties understand, acknowledge and agree that the debt that is being created by and
through this agreement and note is for two code enforcement liens on the property located at 313
Russell Street, in addition to penalties, interest and attorney’s fees. The amount currently due for the
2017 lien located in LP49, Page 219, Simpson County Clerk’s Office is 12,347.58. The amount
currently due for the 2018 lien located in LP51, Page 412, Simpson County Clerk’s Office is

1,508.94.

Should any payment hereunder not be paid on the date due or should the Maker not fully and
completely comply with the provisions and covenants as set forth herein, the Holder may, at its
option, declare the entire unpaid balance of principal and accrued interest immediately due and
owing. Failure of the Holder to exercise its said option to declare a default shall not constitute a
waiver of the right to exercise same at any other time.

The unpaid balance of principal and accrued interest payable hereunder may be prepaid at any
time without prepayment penalty.

Presentment, notice, and protest are waived by all who are or may become parties to this note,
and said waiver shall extend to any extension or forbearance of interest or principal granted by the
Holder.

The Maker agrees to pay all reasonable attorney's fees and other expenses incurred by the
Holder incident to any suit or other proceeding instituted by the Holder, its successors and assigns,
to collect the balance due on this note, or to enforce any provision of the lien(s) filed against the
Maker in favor of the Holder hereof. The Maker further agrees to pay any and all such fees and
expenses incurred by the Holder, its successors and assigns, incident to filing a lien and/or any other
proceeding in which the Holder is called upon to assert or defend its right, even though such action is

not instituted by it.

-55-



“M AKER”

Christopher Casteel

COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
COUNTY OF SIMPSON

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me by Christopher Casteel on this day of
March, 2019.

NOTARY PUBLIC
My Commission Expires:
Notary ID No.

—-56~—



_Lg_

Mortgage Loan Payments

Enter Values | i Loan Summary
Loan Amount, § 13,856.52 | Scheduled Payment| $  1,000.00
Annual Interest Rate 1.00 % : Scheduled Number of Payments! 24 |
Loan Period in Years 2 i Actual Number of Payments| 14 |
Number of Payments Per Year 12 i Total Early Payments! $
Start Date of Loan 4/15/2019 ‘ Total Interest; $ -
Optional Extra Payments| $ -
Lender Name: [City | Borrower: [Casteel

Pmt Beginning Scheduled Extra Ending  Cumulative
No. Payment Date Balance Payment Payment Total Payment Principal Interest Balance Interest
1 5/15/2019 $ 13,856.52 8 1,000.00 $ - $ 1,000.00 $ 1,000.00 $ - . % 1285652 % -
2 6/15/2019 12,856.52 1,000.00 - 1,000.00 1,000.00 11,856,652 0.00
3 7/15/2019 11,856.52 1,000.00 - 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 10,856.52 ~0.00
4 ‘8/15/2019 10,856.52 - 1,000.00 - 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 9,856.52 0.00
5 9/15/2019 9,856.52 1,000.00 - 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 8,856.52 0.00
3] 10/15/2019 8,856.52 . 1,000.00 - 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 7,856.52 0.00
7 11/15/2019 7.856.52 1,000.00 - 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 6,856.52 0.00
8 12/15/2019 6,856.52 1,000.00 - 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 5,856.52 0.00
9 1/15/2020 5,856.52 1,000.00 - 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 4,856.52 0.00
10 2/15/2020 4,856.52 1,000.00 - 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 3,856.52 0.00
1 3/15/2020 3,856.52 1,000.00 - 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 2,856.52 0.00
12 4/15/2020 2,856.52 1,000.00 - 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,856.52 0.00
13 5/15/2020 1,856.52 1,000.00 - 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 856.52 0.00

14 6/15/2020 866.52 1,000.00 - 856.52 856.52 0.00 0.00 0.00




PUBLIC
SAFETY

_58_



MEMORANDUM

TO: City of Franklin Board of Commissioners, Mayor and City Manager}
FROM: W. Scott Crabtree

DATE: March 4, 2019

RE: Police Policies and Procedures Manual

Attached please find two police policies that Chief Solomon would like to have approved for the
FPD Policies and Procedures Manual. The changes are highlighted. The policies are as follows:

1. Section 2, Chapter 1 — Laws of Arrest
2. Section 2, Chapter 2 — Use of Force

Should you need any further information, please contact Chief Solomon or me.

Attachments

-5 9_



FRANKLIN POLICE DEPARTMENT

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES MANUAL
SECTION 2 OPERATIONS

Issued: March 1, 2079 Approved: Chief Reger Solomon
Superzedes: All Priors Raforences: KACP standards: 1.2

Chapter 1 — Laws of Arrest

FURPCSE

NOTE

This rule oo rezalation is for internal use enby an:d daes nal enlarpe oo ollicse’s clvil o
criminal lahilioe e any way, 1 sheuld nob be constrzed us the ceeation of & hugher
standard of safety or care in an evideniiary sense, with respect to third party olams.
Violations of this directive, i proven, can only Sorm the basis of a complaint by his
depariment, and then anly i1 a non-judicial administrarive sctiing,

PURPOSE

1o define the suthority of efficers fo arrese and the mechanizin tor making arvests with
and without a wacrant,

POLICY

T shall be the pelicy of the Franklin Melice Depariment fo exareise sritical judgment in
malleg grresta in ascordancs with the laws of the Commonweullh.

DEFINITIONS

L Arrest

KRS 431.025{2) slales lhal an arrast is made by placing the perscn keing
arrested in mestrain?, or, by his submission to the cusiody of the parson
making an arrest.  The law enforcemant oflicer has rormally mads an
arrest whan he akes the person info police custody and control, with the
intent to hold him on a crirrinal charge.

E. “In his presence” maans that the officer i= using one of hisher Tive
senzes and does not rely on witness accounts,

ol Py



FPROCEDURES - ARREST IN GENERAL

A.

Jurisdictian

The Chiet of Police and all members of the police force in cities of a Home
Fule Class shall possess all of the common law and statutory powears of
constables and sharifls. They may exercise those powers, including the
powar of arrest for offenses against the state, anywhare in the county i
which the city is located, but shall not be required to police any fenitery
outsida of tha city limils. KBS 95 015

Roquirements of a Legal Arrest

The general requirements for an arrest are:

1.

L

The: efficer must act with l2gal authaority and have probable cause to
arrest, and

The officer must intend to arest the perseon, that is, intend to hold
him or a griminal charpge: and

The officer must take the parson inte custody and control; and

The elements of KRS 431.01% dictate that an arrest is a legal option;
and

The arrested porson must be advised that he is being arrested and
wiy. | here are scme exceptions:

The courts usually require no such notice wherc:

g, Oficer reasonably helieves giving noboe would endangesr the
lifer of they officer or othaer innocant parsans;

b,  Reaszon for arrest s obyvious (such az arrest of an anmed robber
alter hol pursuit); and

c.  Perzon is incapable of understanding (such az ton drunk, or
LTCONSCIoUS).

It shall be the policy of the Franklin Paolice for officers fo issue some
type of enforcement action o an individual or individuals upon
whom an officer or officers has/have had to use force. The
enforcement action taken can range from arrest to having a
summaons issued upan the individual{s).

_E.'I .



Use of Force to Arrest

{S5ee Operations Manual Chapter 2 — Use of Force)

T,

a,

RS 431005 o the contrary notwithstanding, and excapt as
provided in paragraphs b and {¢) of this subsection, a poacs
officer shall i=sue a citation instzad ot making an arrest for a
misdemeanor committed in his or har presence if there are
regsonable grounds to belisve that the person being cited will
aAppoar to answer the charge. Tha citation shall provide that the
detendant shall appear within a designated fime.

A peace officer may make an arrest instead of issuing a citation
for & misdemeznor commilled 0 his o her presence iF the
misdemaana s

(13 A wiclation of KRS Chapter 508 (assault and related
offenses), 510 {sexual offenses). or B27 {offenses elating to
firearms and weapons) or KRS 1824 010 (DUl

(21 An offense in which the defendant poses a risk of danger to
nimsaif, horeclf, or anathor porson; or

(3 An offense in which the defendant refuses to follow the
peace officars reasonaile instructions.

A peace officer shall make an arest for violations of protective
oraers Issucd pursuant to KRS 403,715 to 4635, 783,

A peace oflicer may issue a citation instead of making an arrest “or g
violation commillsd in his presence. bul may nol make a physical
arrest unless there are reascrable grounds 1o believe that tha
defendant, i a citation is issued, will nof appear at the designatad
tirme, or unless the oftenss charged is a viclation of:

el.

k.

KRG 182 200 - Reckloss driving

kRS 1589 303 - Faillure to comply with traffic officer's signal
kHS 188.520 - DUI involving vehicle othor than motar vahicle
KRS 180 580 - Leaving scona of an accident

KRS 525.070 - Harassment

_E E_



g. KRS 188225 - Measuring crweaighing vehicle by polize officer
h. KRS 281.600 - Federal motor carmer safety regulations
L KRS 18940190 - UL, not commntied in lis presence, for which

an arest withoul a warrart iz permitted  under KRS
431.005{1) )

i ERS 225240 - Operating a boat while under the inlluence

E. Other Instances When an Arrest May Not be Made

In all cases sxcept teason, felony, oreach of suraty of the peace, or
vicdation of elaclion laws, volers shal ke privileged from arrest during
thair attendanca at elections, snd while they are going to and
returning from their voting sita,

& I all cases excepd treascn, felony, or breach of surety of the peace,
all members of the Ceneral Assembly shall ba privileged from amest
going to ar returning from a speech or debate in cithar the Fouse or
senate. [hay shall net bo questioned in any other place.

4. Mo amest of a Kentucky MNational Guardsman shall be made whils
hadshe s geirg to or from a place of active senice (sxcepl Tur a
felamy.}

4. When the arrest warrant limits the time of the arrest (quite rare).

b, Slaluls of limitations.
In Kentucky, the government has one (1) year within which to start
prosecution against somacna for 8 misdemeanor or violation.
Therefore, it would be imperoper to arrest someone withoul 8 wanant
for & misdemeanor of viclalion whan mare than one (1) year has
gona by sinca the offense was commitizd.
Thare is no statute of imitations for felony changes.

F. Arrest Without a Warrant
1. A peacs oflicer, who has prooable cavse, may maks an arrest

without a warrant for a felony or misdemeanor committed in his
presznce and oited under KES 431.015. He may naot arrest withoul &
warrant for a misdemeaanor comemitkzd outzice of his presence except
for:

A KRG 433 226(3) - Shogliting — Trett By Unlawtul Taking
b, KRS 431.00302) - Aszault Fourth Degres in 4 domestic situation

_EE_



2.

KRS 1884 010 - DU invalving a motor vehicle or
KRS 2814 210 - DU invelving a commernzial moloer vehicls

Violation of Contempl of & Pre-Trial Chrder

Violaticn of an Emergency Protection Order or Domestic
Violenoo Order [EPQIDV

An offlicer may arres! Tor a felony on & probable cause without 2
warrant even though the faleny occurred outsde his presenca.

G. Arrest with a Warrant

1.

A warrant shall be issued by a fudge, (RCr 1.06(2) defines "judge"
o include any justice, judge, or district court trial commissioner in
the Kentucky Gourt system.) If all circuit judges, dislicl judges and
tnal commizsionsrs are abssnl from the county, the oirout clork
may ssue wanants prepared by the Commonwealib's Attorney cr
County Attorney, See RCr 2.02 and RCr 2.04

£ owarrant is not isrucd unless there = first @ cniminal complaint that
establizshes probable cause to beleve an oflense has been
committed and the defendant commitied L The complaint i a
written statemernt of the assential facts constituting the offonse
charged. The camplaint is made under cath and is signed by the
complaining party before a judge or before another person
authorized by a judge. See BOr 2.05 and RCr 2.04

Aowarrant may also be ssued by g judge for Failure to Appear.
See KRS 431.015(3).

Warrant Fequiraments — RKCr 2.06(7)

a. Must be based on & complaint (BECr 2.041, on an indictment
or information (RCr 8.52).

b. Must be in wntten form ang in the name of the
Commonwealth

c Must state the date issued and the court to which it is
returnable.
d. Must name or descrice the offense chamed and the county

in wehich it allegedly ocourred,

. Must specity the name of the defengant, or any name ar
description by which bz s dentified with  reasonabls
carlainty.

_E_Iq__



=

f. Rlust specity the name of tha complaining party or parties.

g. Must be directed 1o all peace ofticers in the Commonwealth
and direct that thoe defondant be amested and brought before
the court to which the warrant is returnable,

h. Must b signad by the issuing officer and state his title.

Defective Warrant, Etc. — BLr 2.05

When a warrant (including summons or citations) is found to be
defective because of its forme, the persen arested {summoned or
ciled} iz not to be discharged.  Instead, the warranl (suimmons o
citation) may be amended to cormect the defect.

Execution {Service) and Returm

An amest warrant may be cxecutod (served) by any peace off cer,
(RCr 2.10.% KRS 431.420 does provide that any warrant issued by a
digtrict coutt for an offense committed within a city shall be sorved by
the pofice department of that city if the warrant is tc be zerved in the
Ciby limits.

The officer need not have the warrant in his possession at the time of
the arresl, bat he must inform the defendant of the ofense charged
and tha fact thal a warrant has pesn issued (RCr 2100, A copy of
the warrant and tha complaint pursuant o which it is =ssuec shall be
sernved on the arrested party at fhe time of the arest or as soon
therzafier as practicakls. RCr 2.068(4), Tha officer executing the
warranl shall return i, @and the comglaint, to the court to which it was
returnable within a reasonable time after executing it. RCr2.12{1).

Onca the warrant 15 sorved on the arrested person, the officer will fil
out a Kentucky Unform Citation. (For propary coding of the citation,
refer to the Kentucky Uniform Citation Manual.)

Wharran? on ingictmont or information

Tha proceduras thal apply o an arrest warrant issued on a complaint
alzo apoly fo an amest wamant issued onoan indictment o
irtfermation, sxcept that the warrant is issued by the court clark {as
diracted by the court upan the request of the prosecutor). BCr8.52

_.E| G=



H.

Arrost Qutside of Officer’'s Jurisdiction

1

Pursuit to make an arrast;

Ao peace officer in actual pursuit may continue sucn pursuit
across corporata (e, cily) or county lines far tha purposo of
making an arrgst. KRS 431.045. It a persan has been lawrully
arrested and escapes, or is rescued, the perscn he sscapes
from may immediately pursue and retaxe =im in any part of the
Commonwealth, and he may be jeined n the pursuit and
recaptured by peace officors in tha immadiate area or vicinity.
KRS 431.055. See O -5, this Manual.

Il the arrest s made ina counly olixer han the one inwhich the
warrant was issuad, and the arrested person s not taken as
commandead in the warrant, he shail be taken before a judge of
the: county inwhizh the arrest was made, who shal admit him to
bail for hiz appearance before the proper judge. If the ofense s
ineligiple for bail or the person cannol post bail, he shall be
committed to jal and within a reasonable lime taksn o the
county where the warrant was issuad, by a peaco officer of the
imsuing county, BROr 3,02, When the parson s amrosicd without
a warrant for an offense committed in another county, =uch s
after pursuit, the zame procedurs is followed az when a warrant
Is issUsd.

Whelner an officer in hol pursuit inlo anather slate takes his
prace offisaers authority {(such as powar of arrast] with him
across the state ine depends on the [aw in the other state.
Kentuzky has no statute granting fresh pursait authority to out
of state officers.  Thersfore, officers pursuing into Kanlucky
have na more aulharity than a prvate cilizen,  As for Kenfucky
officers, the following states have laws that permit officers in
frosh pursuit to onter and amrest an a felony charac:  Indiana,
Chia, Tenncsses, and West Virginia,  Miszour and Vinginia
have similar laws, but they apply only i the other state
reciprocates (grants the same authonty to their officers),. Since
Kaontucky doos not have such a law, Kentucky officers pursuing
nte Missoun ar Virginia have no pesce officer powers.  llinois
permits officers o enter and arest for a felony ar a
misdemeanor.

—[E—



2. Arrest powers while assisting in another county

Under KRS 431.007, a full tims police officer of a city, county, or
urban-county governmant can retain his full arrest powers (counly-

wide excepl on sixlh class city officars) in ancthar county providadd:

a. His department meets the requirements of KRS 15440 (lhe
incenlive pay programyj; and

b, His scrvices are officially requestsd by a law enforcement
agency in such county; and

g, Thess services ane not related to any labor disputs or strike.

I hese added powers will be inelfechwhile ha s in that Counly Tor the
duration of the matter for which e was requested.

L. Defendant's Rights at the Time of Arrest

1

The suspect who is arrested by a peace officer has the following
nghts:

A

To ke informad of the officers inlenlion o armast and of the
offense charged. KRS 431,025

b, To be froo from unnecessarny force or violenze being used by
the arresting officer. KRS 431,025

. Tocontact an attorney. BCr 214

d. Tobe taken before a judge without unnecessary delay.
RCr3.02. {Inactual practice, the oficer will take the delendant
to jail. It then kecomes the responsibilily of the pre-trial relaase
system to gel the defendant hafore a judge.)

@ To have hbasic fairress or "dus process of law™ in police

troatment of him. This is to be adhered o any ime he ollicaer (s
dealing with a person, whether 1 be emporany  detention,
pooking, guestioning. ato,

A suspect who has been arresled is now leaally in police "custody.
Therelors, if officars wish to interrogate him as to the imvolbeament n
thor crima crarged, they must advise bim of his rights (cammaonly
called the “Miranda® rights) before intamogating him.

After advising him ot his rights, the oficer should ask additional
questions to make certain he understands and wishes to waive the
rights bafare guestioning The officer may ssk the following
questions:

_E 'II'_



K.

a. Do youw understand sach of these rgnis that | have explained to
WO

b, With thesa rights In mind, do you wish Lo talk to us now?

If the suspect knowingly waives these rights (withoul coercion or
trickery) and agrees to answer questions or make a statement, the
officer may then interrogate him. 1t is praferakle that any waiver of
righnls obtained from a suspact:

a.  Beinwrting;

k. Be signed by tha subject;

o

Show the notice of Miranda rights have been given, along with
the date and Lime,

d.  Show that the subject knows thess rights and dnowingly waives
them

. Be witnessed by at least two {2} officars.

Arresting Sixteen [16) or Seventeen [17) Year-Old Traffic Viclator({s]

Juvenile court docs not have jurisdiclior ovar a sixteen {16) or sevanizen
(17 year-old charged with a moving reotar vehicls offenss — criminal cous
doss.  The officer should arrest or cite these persons the sama as he
would an adult. Refer o policy and procedure an juveniles (M 1-8)

Recording Arrest on Kentucky Uniform Citation Form

T

KRS 43745004 requires officers to fill out 2 Unitonn Citalion fom
arytime they arrest somecna, By doing this, lhe ollizer is net citing
the person 1o appear in court, ho s merly making a record of the
arest. A copy of the citation i then used to providea input to the
statewide Criminal History Record [nformation Sysiom, and serves as
A post arrcst complaint.

Whan an arrestoe refuses to take the breath tast for a DU arrest, this
must be noted CONSPICUQUSLY on the arrest form in the narrativie

saction.

Evidence shall ba processad as required.
{See Secion 3 Chapter 7 Dvidence — Collzclion and Prosamation)



FRANKLIN POLICE DEPARTMENT

POLICIES AND FROCEDURES MANUAL
SECTION 2 OPERATIONY

Issuad: March 1. 2019 Approved: Chief Roger Solomon

Supersedes: All Priors References: KACHE Standards:
1.3, 14,15 1.7,1.8, 141,142,
10.6 & KRS 500.080(15), 502,080,
§03.070, 505.090

Chapter 2 — Uze of Force

PURPOSE

IThe purposs of this order s o provide oolice officers of the Franklin Police
Dapartmant with guidalines on the use of deadly and non-deadly Torcea,

POLICY

The policy on use of forge s eslablished to provice guidelines and directicn 1o
cfficers regardng the limitations of force tsad and clearly describe cartain prohibied
activitins, The policy supports the Departmants mission to maintain the highast
regard for all individual's constitutional rights, safety, and protection afforded by law
and the ideal of human dignity.

DEFINITIONS

Deadiy or Lethal Forcs: Force which s used which could cause death or s2ncus
physical injuy or which the officer knows o create a
substantial risk of death or serious physical injury.

Cxwoosaivn [ ornos I'oroe is exceseive whan ifs application 12 inappropriate o
the circumstances, which may result in physical injury or
dealh of a suspecl Mo comprehensive ohieclive
definition of excessive force can be offered; each
situation must ba evaluatad according to the particular
circinmetances uniqua to the event under review.

Asa guide, King v, Blankenship, 636 . 2d 70 ($th
Circuit, 1980) estanlisned four {4) considerations in
detarmining whather fofoe was excassive

1. Meead for the application of foree;

Franain Peiice Peiclas and Procedurag Maqual
=lne of Feree--

_E E_



Firearm:

Force:

Non-Deadly Force:

Physical Force:

Physical Injury:

Reasonable Belief:

Reasonable Force:

Serious Physical Injury:

2. Relationship between the need and the amount of
force that was used;

3. Extent of injury inflicted; and

4. Whether the force was applied in a good faith
effort to maintain and restore order or maliciously
used for the very purpose of causing injury.

Any weapon that will expel a projectile by the action of an
explosive.

To compel by physical, mental, or moral means.

Force employed which is neither likely nor intended to
cause death or serious physical injury.

Force used upon or directed toward the body of another.

Any injury that causes substantial physical pain or any
impairment of physical condition.

The facts or circumstances the officer knows, or
reasonably should know, that would cause an ordinary
prudent person to act or think in a similar manner under
similar circumstances.

The minimum amount of force required to overcome the
use or imminently threatened use of force against the
officer or other person, which, based on facts or
circumstances the officers know, or should know, would
cause an ordinary prudent person to act or think in a
similar manner.

KRS 500.080(15), physical injury which creates a
substantial risk of death, or which causes serious and
prolonged disfigurement, prolonged impairment or health,
or prolonged loss or impairment of the function of any
bodily organ.

Taser/ECD (Electronic Control Device):

An electro-muscular disruption weapon that disrupts the
body’s ability to communicate messages from the brain to
the muscles causing temporary motor skill dysfunction to
a subject.

Franklin Police Policies and Procedures Manual

~Use of Force~

-70-



FORCE CONTINUUM

The force continuum used by the Police Department was adapted from one
designed by Pressure Point Control Techniques Management System, and is
currently being used by law enforcement agencies throughout the United States.

One or all control techniques may be used depending upon the level of resistance.
It is not necessary to follow the order of continuum as long as the officer does not go

beyond the highest level of control for that level of resistance.

FORCE CONTINUUM

Subject may enter the continuum at any level. Officer may enter at any level that represents a
reasonable response to the perceived threat posed by the subject.

LEVELS OF RESISTANCE
(Suspect Actions)

Psychological Intimidation
Non-verbal clues indicating
Subject’s attitude and physical
Readiness

Verbal Noncompliance
Responses indicate
Uncooperativeness

Passive Resistance
Actions do not prevent
Officer from Gaining control
(e.g. dead weight)

Defensive Resistance
Physical actions that prevent
officer's control without
attempting to harm officer
(e.g., pulling away or

holding onto stationary
objects)

Active Aggression
Physical assault
on the officer

Franklin Police Policies and Procedures Manual
~Use of Force~

_71_..

LEVELS OF CONTROL
(Officer's Response)

Officer Presence

Verbal Direction

(telling suspect what you want
them to do)

Officer Presence
Verbal direction

Officer Presence

Verbal direction

Soft empty hand techniques
(wristlocks, etc)

Officer Presence

Verbal direction

Soft empty hand techniques
Non-lethal force (O.C. spray)
Less-lethal force

Hard empty hand techniques
(strikes with hands)

Officer Presence

Verbal direction

Soft empty hand techniques
Non-lethal and Less-lethal force
Hard empty hand techniques
(strikes with hands)

Intermediate Weapons

(baton strikes to non-vital areas)
Electronic Control Device (Taser)



Aggravated Active Aggression Any of the above
Deadly force encounters Lethal force
Firearms & strikes to vital areas

Variables which may affect the force continuum may include, but are not limited to:
Officer - Subject Factors

Age

Sex

Size

Skill level

Multiple subjects/officers involved

o=

AND/OR
Special Circumstances

Closeness of a weapon
injury or exhaustion

Being on the ground
Distance from subject
Special knowledge
Feasibility of other weapons

O oA LN

PROCEDURE — GENERAL GUIDELINES: Reasonabie Force

Use of Force in an Arrest:

a. In all instances, officers of this Department are expected to use the minimum
force necessary to lawfully and properly make an arrest or assist in making an
arrest. (KACP 1.3A) The officer is responsible to the following elements
when using force to make an arrest, pursuant to KRS 502.090(1):

1. The officer must believe that such force is necessary to make the
arrest.
2. The officer makes known the purpose of the arrest or believes that it is

otherwise known or cannot reasonably be made known to the person
to be arrested.

3. The officer believes the arrest is lawful.

Franklin Police Policies and Procedures Manual
~Use of Force~

-7 2—



b, It =hall be the policy of the Franklin Police for officers to issue same type of
enforoement action to an individual or individuals upon whom an officer or
officers has/have had to use force,  The enfercement action taken can range
frem arrest to having a summons issued fo the individoal(s).

0. An officer may use deadly foree in masing an arrest only when ha mests the

conditions apply:

P

The arrast is for a felony involving the use or threatenad uze of
physical force likely to cause death ar scrious physical injury, pursuant
to KRG D05 090020 (KACP 1.3B).

The officar making the arresi belisves the parson @ be arrested is
likely to endanger human lite unless apprehendad without delay,
pursuant to KIS 503.08002c) (KACP 1.3C).

Use of Force in Self-Protection and in Protection of Others

a, Uz of Nomee in Soif-Protection (Pursuant to KRS 505.050)

1.

An officer may use physical force upon another perscn when the
cfficer balisves tmat such fwce is necessary to protect hiresel? against
the use or imminent wse of unlawiul phiysical Toroe by the ofher parson,

An afficer may use deadly foree in salf-defense when ha believes such
torce is necessary to protect against death, seqdous physizal injury,
kidnapping. or torcible rape. (KACF 1.3B)

I the event an officer reacts with force in self-dofensa as a result of an
unlawful act, the officer =hould file the appropdatz chamges Of any)
againat tho parson committing the unlawtul act.

b Uze of Force in Protection of Cthers (Fursuant o KRS B03.0700

1

An officer may use phesical force upon another person when the
cificer believes that such force is necessary o protect a thord person
against the use or irmminent vse of unlawiul phoysical foroe By the athar
PRS0,

An officer may use deadly foree upon anolher parscn whan tha officar
believes thal such force is necessary to protect a third person against
sericus physical injury, kidnapping, or forcible rape, but such use of
force would be justifiable only 1T the prolacled person woulld have been
justified in using the same farce in his own defenze. (KACP 1.3B)

Frenklia Folee Peficizs and Procedurss doncal

=4 s zf Fomne-

._? 3_



3. An officer so acting should file appropriate charges (if any) against the
person who unlawfully used or threatened the force which required the
officer to defend a third person.

Summary of Use of Force

a.

Officers of this Department shall use only the minimum force necessary while
performing their duty in accordance with KRS Chapter 503. (KACP 1.3A)

An officer may employ the use of force to effect an arrest and ensure public
safety. It is not intended that any suspect should ever be allowed to be the
first to exercise force, thus gaining an advantage in a physical confrontation.
Nothing in this order should be interpreted to mean that an officer is required
to engage in prolonged hand-to-hand combat (will all the risks involved)
before resorting to the use of force that will more quickly humanely, and
safely bring the arrested under physical control. (This, of course, assumes the
officer is acting in accordance with: KRS Chapter 503.)

Types of Force Authorized:

a.

When the use of force is necessary and appropriate, officers shall, to the
extent possible, utilize an escalating scale of options and shall not use a more
forceful measure unless it is determined that a lower level of force would not
be adequate, or that such level of force is attempted and actually found to be
inadequate. The scale of options, in order of increasing severity, is
established as:

1. Officer Presence

2. Verbal Direction

3. Soft Empty Hand Techniques or “Empty-Handed” Physical Strength
(e.g. holding, pulling, exerting greater strength to overcome resistance
wristlocks, etc.)

4. Non-lethal Force (Chemical Irritant O.C. spray), less lethal force, hard
empty hand techniques (strikes with hands), electronic control device
(Taser)

5. Intermediate. Impact Weapons such as a straight baton, PR-24, ASP,
(baton strikes to non-vital areas), less lethal weapons and ammunition

6. Lethal/Deadly Physical Force (use of firearms and strikes to vital
areas)

It is not the intent of this order to require officers to try each option before
escalating to the next level. Clearly, good judgment and the circumstances of
a given situation will dictate what level the officer chooses as appropriate to
the risk confronted. The Department shall hold the officer accountable for any
type of force used.

Franklin Police Policies and Procedures Manual
~Use of Force~

_', 4_



Explanation of the Types of Force:

1.

a.

Officer Presence / Verbal Direction

The presence of an officer in uniform and the officer's communication skills
with verbal or non-verbal dialogue may be enough to PERSUADE a potential
aggressor to comply with the officer’s directions.

In dealing with people, officers must attempt to inspire respect and generate
cooperation and approval of the public. Officers will be courteous and civil in
their relationships with the public. The mere presence of an officer in uniform
may be enough to deter further escalation of a situation.

The manner in which officers speak can be an effective means of exerting
verbal force in order to control a situation.

1. Verbal force may be in the form of warnings, advice or persuasion.
Volume and tone control may in and of itself be progressive in nature
depending upon the circumstances.

2. By using reasonable and necessary verbal force, officers may not have
to resort to the use of other forms of force.

Soft Empty Hand Technigues or “Empty-Handed” Physical Strength (e.q.
holding, pulling, exerting greater strength to overcome resistance wristlocks,

etc.)

Empty-handed physical force SEEKS COMPLIANCE by use of unarmed
tactics (self-defense, control techniques). Soft empty hand techniques are to
be applied when physical actions that do not prevent the officer's attempt to
control, for example, a person who remains limp, prone position, passive
demonstrators, etc.

Empty-handed physical force involves actual physical contact with a person
and forcibly subduing that individual until resistance is overcome. Empty-
handed physical force techniques exclude the use of weapons, or objects
which could be used as weapons, such as a baton, oleoresin capsicum (OC
spray) etc. However, the department does not forbid the use of, oleoresin
capsicum (OC spray), baton or intermediate weapon on a passive person or
persons. As an example, if an officer is attempting to arrest a very large
person — weighing 300+ pounds, or a person that is deemed to be very

Franklin Police Policies and Procedures Manual
~Use of Force~

_.'7 5_



dangerous i.e. felony warrant or a history of assaults, and the subject is
refusing to move, get up, get out of the car, etc., then the officer(s) may,
(when reasonably safe to do so) after giving the person warning of the
imminent use of the OC spray, baton, or other intermediate weapon in an
attempt to gain voluntary compliance with the officer’s lawful orders, and after
(when reasonably safe to do so) giving the subject a chance to comply, the
officer(s) may use the OC spray, baton, or other intermediate weapon to gain
compliance. (KACP 1.4) Also, safety to the officers or others may be
comprised by providing warning of the imminent use of greater force, then the
officers may appropriately decide not to give warning of the imminent
application of greater force.

C. In no instance will officers use physical force in excess of that which is
reasonable and necessary to lawfully and properly neutralize an unlawful
assault or overcome resistance by a person being taken into custody.

d. A use of force report is required for any instant in which the officer utilized
force above soft empty hand techniques.

3. Non-lethal Force Chemical Irritant (O.C. spray), less lethal force, hard empty
hand technigues (strikes with hands) (KACP 1.4)

a. When soft empty hand techniques and other means have proven insufficient
or a situation warrants that an officer skip lower levels of force an officer may
need to resort to the use of a chemical irritant O.C. spray in an act of self-
defense of another person, or to subdue a resisting subject. Officer must
exercise sound judgment when using a chemical irritant and realize the
dangers this chemical agent poses to the user, assisting officers and
bystanders. Non-lethal force involves the use of non-lethal weapons against a
person and forcibly subduing that individual with the assistance of these
weapons until resistance is overcome.

b. In the event an officer uses a chemical agent, he/she is responsible for
beginning decontamination of suspect using issued equipment and following
guidelines taught in training. Immediate medical assistance is needed for
those persons who meet guidelines taught in training; (i.e. contact lenses).
To minimize the medical risks, officers should observe the following:

1. Avoid spraying subject(s) in the mouth. If possible, spray subject(s)
directly in the eyes.

2. Keep the application to the absolute minimum required to effectively
control the subject.

3. Exercise great care in use upon person(s) who resist being taken from a
vehicle. In such cases, use only as the last resort to prevent injury to

Franklin Police Policies and Procedures Manual
~Use of Force~

-7 6_



subject(s) and officer(s). Remove the subject(s) from the vehicle as
quickly as possible after application.

4. Once the person(s) has been sprayed with a chemical agent and
restrained, officer will advise the subject not to rub his/her eyes. The
officer shall start to flush the person’s eyes and skin with cool water as
soon as possible.

C. Officers should consider the following as a matter of standard procedure
before using the chemical agent:

1. Is sufficient physical force available from assisting officers to subdue the
subject(s) without resorting to a chemical agent?

2. Is it practical to summon for backup assistance before using the chemical
agent?

3. Is the environmental condition such that use of the chemical agent will
negatively affect the officer’s ability to control the situation (wind direction,
how close the person is to the officer, proximity of other officers, etc.)?

d. The use of OC spray or electronic control device (Taser) issued by the
Department is authorized when circumstances being encountered do not
necessitate the use of an impact instrument or greater force. The use of
chemical irritant or ECD (Taser) is also authorized when an officer makes
known his intent to arrest and the person being encountered overtly
demonstrates the intent to resist, therefore making physical force, ECD
(Taser) and/or chemical irritant necessary.

e. Once a person is restrained or under control, the use of OC spray or
electronic control device (Taser) is no longer justified, except to stop the
person from damaging property or inflicting harm to himself or others.

f. Chemical Irritant (O.C. spray) or CS in the form of tear gas or “riot fogger” are
primarily used in dealing with unruly crowds and armed barricaded subjects.
Gas grenades are used to disperse unruly crowds and induce the surrender
of barricaded subjects when negotiations have failed. Fire projectiles
containing tear gas chemical Irritant (O.C. spray) or CS gas may be dispersed
to the area of an armed barricaded subject(s) when the use of hand-tossed
grenades would be unsafe or impractical. Chemical Irritant (O.C. spray) or CS
in the form of tear gas or “riot fogger” shall only be used with permission of
the Chief of Police or Acting Chief of Police. However, if exigent
circumstances present imminent treat of serious physical injury or death to
any officer or other person, the officer on scene may use tear gas in an
attempt to protect others from death or serious physical injury.

g. Hard empty hand techniques as prescribed by PPCT standards can also be
utilized by the officer when confronted with defensive resistance or greater.

Franklin Police Policies and Procedures Manual
~Use of Force~

_77_



h. Any officer using any non-lethal force Chemical Irritant (O.C. spray), less
lethal force, hard empty hand techniques (strikes with hands), electronic
restraint device (Taser) except for training purposes, shall file a use of force
report submitted to the Chief of Police through the Chain of Command.

i. Officers are authorized to use O.C. spray while off-duty if necessary in an
official capacity. If the officer finds it necessary to use the O.C. spray, then he
shall contact the shift supervisor and fill out the proper paper work, use of
force report, citation, etc. (KACP 1.4)

J- Refer to policy on electronic control devices (Taser).

4. Intermediate impact weapons such as a straight baton, ASP (baton strikes to
non-vital areas)

a. Intermediate force involves the use of an impact weapon or other non-lethal
weapon or technique to IMPEDE the aggressor’s actions.

1. Intermediate force involves the use of less lethal weapons against a
person and forcibly subduing that individual with the assistance of
these weapons until resistance is overcome.

2. The Taser, baton and chemical spray are less lethal weapons that are
available to officers of the Department and will be used in accordance
with current established departmental training standards.

3. Trained police canines are considered less lethal weapons and their
use will be considered intermediate force.

4. Any other less lethal object that an officer uses to assist in subduing an
individual will for the purpose of this procedure be considered
intermediate force.

5. The use of intermediate force will be restricted to quelling physical
confrontations when lesser verbal or physical force would be or has
been ineffective or inappropriate.

b. Armament Systems and Procedures (ASP) Tactical Baton and impact
weapons which provides officers with an intermediate level of force and
bridges the gap between the use of hands and fists and the use of a firearm
to control an assailant.

1. Officers shall carry only batons authorized by the Chief of Police.
2. Batons shall not be altered in any manner.

Franklin Police Policies and Procedures Manual
~Use of Force~

-7 8_



b.

. Prior to carrying any baton or impact weapon, officers shall be trained

and certified by a certified instructor in the use of the ASP Tactical
Baton or impact weapon.

. The baton is generally used against an aggressive, unarmed suspect

or when lesser levels of control have failed or have been determined
by the officer to be inadequate.

When properly used, the baton is capable of delivering extremely
powerful blows to stun and incapacitate an aggressive opponent. It is
also capable of delivering lethal or permanently disabling blows. Blows
to the head, throat and side of neck must be avoided when possible.

. Officers are prohibited from carrying or using any instrument as an

offensive weapon, not specifically authorized or issued as a weapon by
the Department.

. Officers may use any instrument in a defensive manner for self-

protection, or for the protection of another person when no other
reasonable alternative is available.

An officer shall avoid unnecessary injury to suspects and use the
straight baton properly and judiciously.

. Any officer using any non-lethal force greater than soft empty hand

techniques, i.e. intermediate impact weapons, hard empty hand
techniques, etc., except for training purposes, shall file a Use of Force
Report submitted to the Chief of Police through the chain of command.

Officers are authorized to use the baton while off-duty if necessary, in an
official capacity. If the officer finds it necessary to use the baton, then he
shall contact the shift supervisor and fill out the proper paper work, use of
force report, citation, etc. (KACP 1.4)

Refer to policy on impact weapons (less lethal force).

Lethal/Deadly Physical Force (use of firearms and strikes to vital areas)

Deadly physical force shall be used to STOP an aggressor’'s actions when it is
the only alternative available to the officer. Officers contemplating the use of
deadly physical force against a person must reasonably believe the person has
the opportunity, ability and means to cause serous physical injury or death.
(KACP 1.3B)

It is not the intent of this order to require officers to try each option before
escalating to the next level. Clearly, good judgment and the circumstances of

Franklin Police Policies and Procedures Manual

~Use of Force~

_'I 9_



a given situation will dictate what level the officer chooses as appropriate to
the risk confronted. The Department shall hold the officer accountable for any
type of force used.

To assure the lawful use of force, no officer will use more force in any
situation than is reasonable and necessary under the circumstances. Officers
will not display or brandish, as a threat, any weapon unless its actual use
would be warranted. All department issued weapons will be used only in
accordance with the provisions of this procedure.

Except for general maintenance, storage or authorized training, officers will
not draw, exhibit, and/or point or direct their firearm at a person unless
circumstances create a strong reasonable belief that it may be necessary to
lawfully use the weapon in conformance with other sections of this procedure.

PROCEDURES FOR APPLICATION OF DEADLY FORCE:

1.

a.

Firearms

The general policy of this Department regarding the use of firearms or other
deadly force by an officer, on or off duty, is authorized provided the officer is
using the firearm only to prevent the death or serious physical injury to
himself or another person. (KACP 1.3B & 1.5)

All officers are strictly prohibited from drawing or displaying his firearm except
for a legal use, official inspection, or formal training exercise while on duty or
acting in any other official capacity as a peace officer.

An officer may discharge his firearm while in performance of official duty for
the following reasons:

1. During formal training exercises authorized by the Chief of Police.

2. During safe practice in an area where firing a weapon would not be in
violation of the law.

3. To humanely kill a seriously injured or dangerous animal when other
alternatives are impractical or unavailable, and then only with
authorization from the officers Shift Commander or Acting Shift
Commander (0O.1.C) unless time does not permit.

4. When all other levels of force and control have failed or are not
practical, and the officer reasonably believes that such action is
necessary to defend against imminent serious physical injury or death
in accordance with KRS Chapter 503.050. (KACP 1.3B)

Franklin Police Policies and Procedures Manual
~Use of Force~

-80-



5. When all other levels of force and control have failed or are not

practical, and the officer reasonably believes that such action is
necessary to defend another person against imminent serious physical
injury or death in accordance with KRS Chapter 503.070. (KACP 1.3B)

6. When the officer is authorized to use deadly physical force in making an

arrest or preventing the escape of an individual that is very likely to kill
or cause serious physical injury to another person in accordance with
KRS Chapter 503.090. (KACP 1.3C)

7. Unauthorized Use of a Firearm

a. Officers are prohibited from firing warning shots. (KACP 1.3D)

b. Officers are prohibited from firing their firearm into crowds when the
officer is presented with an unreasonable risk to innocent third
parties.

c. Officers shall not fire at any person on the basis of mere suspicion.

d. Officers shall not fire at any person for the purpose of effecting a
misdemeanor arrest, unless circumstances of protection against
imminent serious physical injury or death develop. (KACP 1.3B)

e. Officers shall not fire into buildings, through doors, windows, or
other openings when the person lawfully fired upon is not clearly
visible.

f. Officers shall not fire any deadly weapon at individuals merely for
the purpose of preventing the destruction or theft of property.

g. Officers shall not fire at any person who simply runs away in an
attempt to avoid an arrest.

h. Officers shall not fire at moving vehicles except in self-defense or
the defense of another person.

i. Officers shall not fire from any moving vehicle except in self-defense
or the defense of another person.

j. No department issued firearm shall be used for any purpose not
described in this policy (e.g. shotguns shall not be used for
hunting).

Franklin Police Policies and Procedures Manual

~Use of Force~

_81_



Training and Qualifications:

1. Deadly Weapons:

a)

b)

While on duty, police officers shall carry department issued and
approved firearms and only department approved ammunition. Only
issued and/or approved equipment will be used when applying force,
except in emergency situations when an officer must use any resource
at his/her disposal.

Use of physical force shall be consistent with the training and policy of
the Franklin Police Department and Kentucky Revised Statutes
Section 503.090 and 503.094.

Authorized weapons are those with which the police officer has
qualified with during department training sessions and has received
training on the proper and safe usage.

The Police Department shall schedule regular training and qualification
sessions for duty, off duty, and specialized weapons, which will be
graded on a pass/fail basis.

A police officer that fails to receive a qualifying score with their duty
weapon(s) in accordance with divisional testing procedures and who
fails subsequent remedial training shall be immediately reassigned
from enforcement duties.

A police officer that has taken extended leave (two or more months) or
suffered an illness or injury that could affect his/her use of firearms will
be required to re-qualify before returning to enforcement duties.

2. Non-deadly Force Weapons and Methods: (KACP 1.4)

a)

b)

c)

A police officer is not permitted to use or carry any non-deadly weapon
unless qualified and proficient in its use as determined by Franklin
Police Department training procedures.

The Franklin Police Department requires that all officers be properly
trained during their PTO program and through the Department of
Criminal Justice Training on the use of OC spray and batons.

Officers authorized to use a TASER® must successfully complete an
initial certification training course, to include written and practical tests.
Once certified, officers must attend annual re-certification training.

Franklin Police Policies and Procedures Manual

~Use of Force~

-82—-



d) The Franklin Police Department's Policy regarding specialty munitions

authorizes only personnel who have successfully completed a
departmentally approved training course in the proper use and
deployment of such specialty impact munitions.

Procedure for Reporting Use of Lethal Force or Use of Force that Results in
Serious Physical Injury: (KACP 1.11)

Whenever the use of force or the alleged use of force by police personnel results in
(or is alleged to have resulted in) serious physical injury or death, the following will

apply.

The officer will immediately:

a. Advise the Department communications center of the incident
and the location, and request the on-duty supervisor to respond
to the location.

b. Request the communications center notify and request the
assistance of Emergency Medical Services.

C. Advise the supervisor:

1. The nature of the force used or the nature of the
allegation, and

2. Any apparent injury and extent of injury to the person(s)
involved.
d. If possible, render first aid to the injured person(s).

The officer should remain on the scene unless injured or instructed
otherwise by a supervisor.

The on-duty supervisor will:

a. Ensure that the Operations and Investigations Captain or
designee has been notified.

b. Direct an initial crime scene investigation to include:

Franklin Police Policies and Procedures Manual

~Use of Force~

-83-



5.

Statements from witnesses to the incident;

Determining where shots fired (if applicable) have
landed;

Whatever photographs and physical evidence collection
is necessary and appropriate;

Calling in any resources necessary to conduct the
investigation, including technical assistance or manpower
from other law enforcement agencies; and

Assuming custody of any weapon(s) involved.

Contact, or advise the communication center to contact, the
Chief of Police and advise of the following:

1.

The circumstances of the incident whereby the use of
force was affected, or alleged to have been affected, and
all known facts relating to the incident;

The nature of the force used or the nature of the
allegation;

Any apparent injury and extent of injury to the person(s)
involved;

When the use of force inflicts serious physical injury or other
illness/injury requiring treatment:

1.

The injured person will be taken to a hospital for
examination.

The supervisor will ensure a use of force report is
completed indicating the person's physical condition.

The report detailing their physical condition will
accompany the person to the county detention center.

If the injured person is admitted to a hospital (as a
patient, not as treated in emergency only), the Police
Chief will be immediately notified.

The facts will be fully set forth in comprehensive written
reports to the Chief of Police by the officer who used the

Franklin Police Policies and Procedures Manual

~Use of Force~

_84_



force that created the injury and the supervisor of that
officer.

6. The Investigating officer will respond to conduct an
interview and examination of the subject of the use of
force, will secure all facts pertinent to the case, and will
report them on the Use of Force report to the Police
Chief.

7. If necessary, the interview and examination will be
conducted at the hospital.

8. THE INVESTIGATOR WILL ENSURE THAT THE
PERSON IS FULLY AWARE OF THE INVESTIGATOR'S
RANK, POSITION AND THE PURPOSE FOR
CONDUCTING THE INTERVIEW.

9. The investigator will promptly submit all reports to the
Police Chief with the findings, comments and
recommendations as to the propriety of the force used. If
additional investigation is required, the original reports
will be so noted.

No charges should be filed by the arresting officer without the
knowledge and approval of a supervisor.

The Chief of Police will be notified immediately of all shots fired by any
police personnel. The Chief of Police (or Acting Chief) will respond
and coordinate the investigation whenever an individual has been shot
by a Franklin police officer.

All officers involved in the incident will prepare written reports that
completely and accurately set forth all circumstances surrounding the
incident. Whenever possible, videotaped statements will also be taken
from officers and witnesses.

The investigator, as designated by the Chief as being in charge of the
investigation, will compose a confidential report directed to the Police
Chief outlining all actions taken in the investigation of the incident,
including an opinion of whether the shots fired were in accordance with
the provisions of this order. A preliminary draft of this report will be
given to the Chief of Police within 24 hours of the incident.

Franklin Police Policies and Procedures Manual

~Use of Force~

_85_



10.

Officers involved in the incident should not discuss the case with
anyone except (1) supervisory and investigative personnel involved in
the investigation, (2) the city attorney, (3) the officer's immediate
family, personal attorney, psychologist or clergy member.

All Department members will be guided by the measures outlined in
the Public Information procedure.

When death or serious physical injury results from any use of force
and/or the use of a firearm by an officer, the officer will be removed
from duty upon completion of the preliminary investigation and placed
on administrative leave until the incident has been reviewed. (KACP
1.12)

a. This action will be taken to shield officers who have not exceeded
the scope of their authority with possible confrontations with
anyone in the community.

b. Administrative leave will be without loss of pay or benefits, and
such leave will not be interpreted to imply or indicate that the
officer has acted improperly. While on administrative leave the
officer must remain available at all times for official Department
interviews and statements regarding the shooting incident, and
may be subject to recall to duty at any time. The Chief of Police
will be empowered to change administrative leave to
administrative duty at their discretion.

c. The involved police officer shall undergo a debriefing with a
psychological health professional as soon as possible.

1. The debriefing with a psychologist health professional shall be
paid for by the department at no expense to the officer.

2. The purpose of this debriefing will be to allow the officer to
express their feelings and to deal with the moral, ethical,
and/or psychological aftereffects of the incident.

3. The debriefing will not be related to any Department
investigation of the incident and nothing discussed in the
debriefing will be reported to the Department without the
voluntary permission of the involved officer.

4. The debriefing session will be privileged communication
protected by the physician-patient relationship.

Franklin Police Policies and Procedures Manual

~Use of Force~

_86_



d. The involved officer and his/her family may have available to them
the services of a chaplain.

1. The purpose of this offer is to provide the officer and/or his/her
family with a source of professional consultation to aid them as
a family with potential moral and ethical after effects of the
incident.

2. The consultation sessions will be protected by privileged
relationship.

Procedure for Use of Force Reports (KACP 1.11)

1. A written report will be made on every instance in which an officer:

a. Applies force above soft empty hand techniques;

b. Applies physical force;

C. Applies force through the use of any weapon;

d. Takes an action that results in (or is alleged to have resulted in) injury

or death of another person; and/or

e. Deliberately or accidentally discharges a firearm. (See Item 3 below.)

2. Officers will complete a Use of Force report any time they utilize force against

another person that results in (or is alleged to have resulted in) injury or death
to another person.

3. Officers discharging their firearms will complete an incident report regardless
of whether the discharge caused death or injury to another person. (This rule
does not apply to rounds fired at the range during regular practice unless an
injury results from such discharge.)

4. Reports made on use of force and/or firearms discharge and/or incidents will
follow the guidelines established on the corresponding report form(s).

a.

The officer will report the incident orally to the immediate supervisor as
soon as is practical after the incident.

Report(s) will be submitted up the chain of command to be reviewed.
Ex.(Ofc. to Sgt. to Lt. to Ops. Captain to Chief of Police)

Report(s) will be submitted by the officer involved prior to the end of
the shift during which the incident occurred.

Franklin Police Policies and Procedures Manual

~Use of Force~

_87_



4.

NOTE:

I the officer involsad iz injurcd or unabio to make the repoert{s), the
officer's supervizor will submit a wotten repert pricr to the end of the
shift,

The Lieutznant or the highest-ranking Supervisor ot the officen(s)
involved in the use of foree incident will lead the investigation of the
incicdant in which force was used.

The Lieutznant or the highest-ranking Supervisor wil complete all
necessary farms dusing the investigation and give a conclusion on the
action laken. The investigatve papsrvork will be submitted to the
Operations Captain within 5 working days.

The Operations Captain will lock aver the papervors submittod and
tnen submit a wntten summanzation to the Chiet of Police. |he
Diparations Captain will also include & recommendation on the action
taken against the officerds) if deemesd improper or against the policy of
the Franklin Police

The Chief of Police will give the repots the final revicw and make the
final determination io whether the officens) actions were proper,
imnpropar and if there were any policy viclations.

Formes to be filled out are as follows: FPF 154 First Repoart of Injury {if
applicable}, FPF 155 Workers Compensation First Report of Injury {if
applcable), FPF 156 Pursuit after Action Report (if applicable). FPF
153 Incident Repart, FPF 152 Use of Force Report, and copies of any
and all pictures or videos of the individual{s) and officer|s) involved.

ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW (KACP 1.11)

All reports shall be reviewed by the Chist of Police.  In any case of intentional or
accidental discharge of frearms or use of deacly or non-deadly torce oy an officer,
the Chies shall seck o delerming if the officer's conduct was proper or impropar. [t
the tacts of the incident are nol clear, or il a possible vioialion of geparbment policy
exists the Chiet of Police may chocsa fo assign a team of invastigators Lo examine
ther circumstances and forward a report witain thicky (30} days of the evert.

Frankin Prlics Paiisizs #0d Cmocedoes Meaval

-l ban o Forsn--

—Bi-



UTILITIES

_89_



MIEMO

T Woavor Larry 1xon and Conumissionsrs

FIL g Kenny Massey, Waler Dishilation Superintendent
FATT March G, 2019

STURITCT:  Marchase of 1M1 EM 10 Portable Transil Time Flow Meter

A demo was performed on February 26, 20019 for a Porsble Transil Time Flow Meter for the
Woater Distribution Department, The Waler Disiribution tzam picked 3 localions 1o da o fizld
ot om digtribation lines, 'l nese lines consiated of fre Hoes, distribation meterzd lines, and also
transrissions lines, This hemd held wnit is wser frendly programeming, easy alappng
irunstiucers to the lines, and great accuracy. Thers wenultiple hencficial applicalions lor these
meters which inclwde moniloring of fire loops, louk delection, and other water loss
investipations. This periaale unil is manufacmred by Greyline Ind, the ML, Johnson Co. has
their products ivoaur local area at various industrics, Only ove bid was received from ML
Jofmenn Co. Cinelnnetd, Ohio and is aiached for review. ML, Jehnson is the orly vendor for
ihis unil by Gireyline Ind. A summary of ths bid 1s s lllows:

WL, lehinson Co. Tarlal [or 2 units § 8,390.00
Budgarad Amounl 14407
Ulniler bodeet 53,873

-q0-



Portable Transit Time Flow Meter

with Clamp-on Ultrasonic Transducers

Portable Ultrasonic
Flowmeter

Model PTFM 1.0

Displays, Totalizes
Dala Logs and Transmits

Beoklil LD Display

Simple 5-kay Colibration
Rult-in Rechamsanle Battiery
Bulll-in Dals Loygger

14 Dighit Tatalize

A-20ma St

Non-Contacting Flow
Moasurement

Uzcr-Friendly Operating Systom

(Greyline

b 0 e B TN EE R T
dn T

Accurate Flow Measurement of Clean Liguids
with Non-Contacting Transducers

Resarnncnded lor feids ke water, glyvcal, oil 2nd most chamizals.
Tha FTER 1.0 ullrazanic tansdocers strzp-on the outside af pipes
frorm 2" o 48" 050 (o 7 200 mm) diamater. 7ha ultrasonic signal wedks
Lirough all comrizn metal ard plastic pipe maienzla, Transoucars
sar b mounlsd withoo? shattng down fow and there is na
abelnclion wr prassure Jrop,

G ibralicn s gasy with tha orscreen menu systam. Jusl enier tho
nipe diamster, wall thickaezs ancl oioe matenal, Tha FTER 1.0 is
peveread by e inlurnal, recoargasbie NikH bellery or can be
aperated confinuausly witk AC pawer adanter. Zazh FTEM 1.0

ne: ucies & waterticht carry coza, fransducer sct, cablas and roumiag
R HETIER

RELIADLE MEASUREMENT AND CONTROL
WL greyline com

_E"_



Portable Ultrasonic Flowmeter

for Troubleshooting, Calibration Checks
and Balancing Flow

Measures Flow from the Outside of a Pipe " !

Tha PTFR 1.0 Porlatxa Transil Tine Floes kalor wioss by iesesuniogg e ?lansit s ar ; L !
“tire et tlight” fo ulrasanic seund pulzes ranss ted fram cne fransducer to another. The | \/ j
Lransil time in B Jiresioe o o s Nsles thiee e Lans L e against the o, By | |

calnparnig taees differsnnss with arecision ning Circoiss, e PTEM L0 & able la

pocurately calcilzle The Mo ralz, W-hount

Choice o7 W 2 or W rrounting method depends onthe apploalion and pipe diamelen W I'—-I'—
Felaunl s the st coemenesy rnclhad wehile Z-Maund s sl ton lznjer plees orweak aigaal p ]
ap: plirtions and Ye-hruct for amalles [ pae. / ol
; i
Works with Common Pipe Materials LJ_ £Rnunt
FAount tha witrgzaonic tranaducars on e culsids of meled o ;
plaglic poes inclucing carbee slesl, skyinlass steal, desile _;'|_|
i, sAasirnn. PYG, PYOF fkerglass, coppern, brass, V; i
alumin um 20d pipes v lh boneiasd iners '|'|:':EII|'|I!"|;;| ST, I bl o [

ke mnd Taflon, Avoid olpes mads with poroaz matzrials .
(e.g. wood or concrela) or wilh locess o e,

Measures Clean Liguids in Full Pipes

Tra PTFR 1.0 Parabla Transil Tirma Flaow Molor is desioned Baenessies cean, nei-aensted
lipuieds ke watern, chemicnts and nils with less than 2% solida or bubbkzz, The cllresonic
trzneducars cait be mountec or verical ar Brarizuerdal pijes:.

Simple Menu System for Easy Start-up and Calibration

Calihraticr and start-up san 8 donein a8 fos minutzs, WEc The boillie Sooution Bsyhad B35
gnkar the pipg ratetal and D0 wall hickness cod Hoic type. The PTER 1.0 W dizalay the
sowrtect bransdierr saparating distance. Sasure the stainless ol pipe clamps 2o i e
maunting braclats on the outsico of Fa pipe 2ol cotphng coreound (nclicsd) ontha
fristsrdii= faees Al Insent them inka the mourting Brackels. The PTEYS 1.0 il irnrmodizesy
bagin o dizplay. ransemil @ed ioializg Now,

Built-in Data Logger with
Windows Software Included

Sirt Lpn dhe SO0 000 st gefi gt B sheos e A
date-starm ped fow readings from T2 scoend o bomisube
Intervals, Wiew the camesnient an-soreen 'Flow Fepod!
welbzr ealeed, i, v maen sl seeeiaess e ralss
are slorsd inoa 24 hoar daily surmmanyg,

Irarafer fowe logs 1e wour P2 ar lapicp throug - the FTRM

TR LRSS bt Saresdline L agesr Aot finchiea)
dizplayz data in Soth graph and table farrests with ons-click
ernntt b Mivant Bxesbo. magss or S5 files for uss - other
oroarams.

-] -



PTFM 1.0 Specifications

General Spocifications

Dperaling Falamelesrs:
Calibratian:
Eleciranics Enclosurn:
Accuracy:

Prowsar ipat:
Digpley.
Outei b=t

Dista Logger:

P Snftuwana:

Oparating Tamp, (sleatronics);
Carry Caze:

B pproasEls:

Aparoximate Shipping Weight:

Transducer Specifications

Flpe Dlameter
Pip= Materials:

Flowe Yalocity:

perating Fraquancy:
Operaling Temperalune:
Transducer Maunting ¥Kit:
fansar Cakle:

Optians

Sen=ar Cable Exlensian:

Groylina PTFM 1.0 Ulfrasonic Transit Time Flow Meter

For eezan Aruics in ol pipes with less that 2% solids crgas butsles

Huilt-ir t-leey salizredior with =ralish, Sranzh ecd Speaigh reany [2900ags Ge/&@con
Fartablz, 255

1% of recding o0 00 'ees (0U03 mivae), Whichiseer is grealan

Feaestavlily & Linesriby: z0.25%

Buill-ir: BikdA Zaliery far uz o 18 kaors eonlineaus apermtion

Catemrnal chigeer asilby 10725240085 2050z

Wttty baras B maalni - A splaes G- gitflow rats with Fosting dacimal, Jd-digt tetalizsr,
aalthrsizn roent s daiy Toes repor

L 20 (RO bt when poeesres by A0 adsplar

LIAE for dade log renefoe oy cirect FC connacizn

PFrocrammszle 500 000 dats colnt capes S Ui and da'e starmpesd o Scnmiied P
reparts cludieg 1otal, average, ronicnn, rmaxice qrd lines of cocirrece
aratrine Lagper e Windsats OE or Fghkar Roldsens, dinplays 2o saees daba lng T
A7 1o 14077 (207 1o 6370

Haterd FET we-n proinckien molded fosn qzsarks

A0 Chsmeia CF snd UL spproved

12 1ks. a8 bl

Wb cgt (B0 e o 1T e

& relal or plastc sonks corduct oy matel nelud g mmrben stesd. slainioess glaed,
diaglile ipen, sasl iton, PYG0 PYOS, berglass, roprer, bross, alomirom ansd pirs vilk
beenled Srieens ivaclaclivgs sangy rubier and Teflor

=007 bz A% fiiEec (H002 o 12 mdsac) besical

1.26 Ml

ST Gl T T I ol S 11 T B R

Incluzes sef of stainioss etesl poa damps, alignmeant 2ar ard codpling Gempains
Fib-08 coadal, 127080 m itk BMO comiselors ans: seal ackzls

S0 5415 ) coExis pair wiln BMG connecines and seal jackots

Dimensions

45 | a6

] TachaT I LT P
Sy || |; . SETED l s
il TRARSOUCER .
v izl LAMLHEIGnS En:
T v Ew |
LT e I| [l Rl \.\ ,-"". i
|
r:ma"" H
._.--I HE | ¥iabrms
:_..-__-;-___% ;_-' .I
7Ry : - S | |
Tk W . o
Lo F LR v M i
-":'“\.“'--._ i .__.‘_._;:.-‘ . - ATOTL STTAT .| | i I S
3E18E TRAKMSDUCERS EMCLOSLUEE

_E|3_



Non-Contacting Portable Flowmeiter
for Clean Liquids in Metal
and Plastic Pipes

Recommended For: Easy to Install

+ nnbabile wialar The FTFR 1.0 Barkafals Transil Toe
ol Flow Moo is dosigned fo mraensarg
river water cloas leuids in il pipes. D anre by

* t:::u::-lin;; wizlar i zcingy sowmd hrovgh bre slpe sl
. k ared Tley Chiee Tloweirey licpiinie.,
+ demineralized water BrA o e Tkawing
« walannlyool solutions The bulary-powerce e rele
L transducer:, mounbng s aind
4 1 F
+ hydraulic o BocEssonios arg sunpled wils o
+ diesal and lual oils ruaged watortighs carryine ciss, Liss
| G iv for troukfoehinosing, N sfodies and
= chamicalz Far Leating calibralicn of inling il
e ST T ITIgierns,

The FIEM. 1.0 Ponshia The PTFR 1.0 works coomeial and
Transif Time Flowinelor plaslic opes and measies s
iz [deal fo maasure fow or revargs Mow. Bkl eala oo
rifa of cledn, fan-asratar ard Windows sofware 05 mc oo
fulds fre fll pipes. Works E 4 2

best on flwids that have asy to ﬂahbrate

foss than 2% padicilale sz the S-oullos keypaad ane: mend

or gas bubbles. syziem o schup the Nowmeier by &atering the pipa material, diamste el wall
thicknoss, The FTFR 10 colculates the transduces saparstion ciztonce aned moasding
mathed aulemalically

How to Order Certact & Crayling 32 ks reprosantabvie it vaur area o phone one of our galus
enginears. Dosorze vour reauiremerts and receive our promps quotabon

Applications Supporf  Take advamags of Grayling's spplicatine sspeieass. Mhors 1-822-473-05406 o
aovice and irforration on zpplicalions, installaticn nr seadse far Graglins v s

No Risk Appraisal  The Grsydine I'TFM 1.0 Porable Flow Mole: mist meet yeur sequirements. Discuss
vl analicatinn with a Grovline represen’allvs noanangs & pafarmenes tost

The Greyline Guarantee Cuuality of Materials ard Worsmanship - Each msburent mansfaziurea by Groyline @5

warentad againzi cofouls i rmolenials ana workmanship for & period of cre yeor em
(Greyline

cata e’ aurchase, Jefe koo [mblea warsnty inelodec with cach produec,
—Prodision Fovr Meassrement —

A ENFCCTY Sroved
UEA: FHAEY Ralchuy Fosd Joaull, { segey B ATFTS
dais FO-AE-HEL0 S -9 R0 e 37 E-TE-0412
Doty 1R Siamith O Lo Saud 0nk /i Ten
Tal: g123-508-083¢ S AG0-0T3-004E  Fax 67 7-455-1F57
il B pIne oam  Emak e oo com HELGAN & MEASURFMFNT AND CONTROL

i Frimwd i Corada

—g4-




Cuotation 50 73717 HOLJmm to.

PRI e and Lnire

Fhorer Lessed Pressune - lemperatuns

Digne: 31452010 4320 M. Canpel- Debasece Bosd Clociceedd, ©0H 4524

Thone (5133 7284445 T-mzil: salesdgmljeacom

Cusromeer: Franlelin Water

Arenign;  Reomay Messey Fhiowe: (2700 Z02-5739 E-2almed bonnvarasseviifianslinky.org

Luele Lo Greselios Clonp-On Slewcosters (Owatine 2 Unils)

ftem Drescription Price [y Aol I-?t.' i
Lol .0 = S ¢ Ship T
i PR L= ey faz Paetablz: Tonegibt= Dines L isooie Flow ko, i : - -
fier Clzan & oen i, Clenp-Ua Senees, 1l 2 in B i Pipe Siees, SR e 3 S8, 9000 | -2
TEAR. Cables Crninl ved B Commscioey, ARS Potabie Froles on, Woenks
I e Cren Daelngdes S540M0e BEaidywaes & Caaplon Cenlpeond, 2 d 5]
1-20m Cezgrat, TOOCZE0Y A0 Datiery Churger, Intaeral Talalnggs: v Snfwvere [ARLY
= : .
80,0
WWooks
{ARI[Y
.00
Weels
{ALRLE)
Ea.00
f | Wesks
[ CALRLH
S0
Weihs
| (AR
[*For all eredit card sales, a processing fee of 4.0% will be added
Aol Coroner 1= Tisrad Clustation RE SO000

Plesse Lt v By 00 v e g guestions abeel oy proposol.

—-- TR i FOr VRN THET SR R ST IO,

e e e ety oo Nl dlpa e Sl apivad s vildvaan i I

]

Fived A paer A secaver Anvopod Tkl Sy aroi. WL L Tedison Company

—-FTeEs gisted obe BERed Of NI GRS SN0,

— = haietivon da e S 30 el o dods o e

Thk Voo

if Loy
DT pe s Bt iy :.ll.'l'_|.' u"n}-!"ﬂf LIIW-E‘:
—-Lnlas crlisevise Dofed el Sl Kot olods ek Fucl Lacer

_95_

Sl i ..'-r'n-'-.l-' Wy i s el










ORDINANCES

-98-



Sponsors; Commissioner Powell
_Commissioner Stewart

Second Reading:  March 11, 2019

Publication Date:  March 14, 2019

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-004

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF
FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY, AUTHORIZING THE GRANT OF AN
INDUCEMENT FOR THE ACQUISITION AND CONSTRUCTION OF A
PROJECT PURSUANT TO THE KENTUCKY BUSINESS INVESTMENT
PROGRAM (KRS 154.32-010 TO 154.32-100) WHEREBY THE CITY AGREES
TO FOREGO THE COLLECTION OF THE ONE PERCENT (1%) CITY
OCCUPATIONAL LICENSE FEE ON WAGES FROM NEW MATHER
METALS, INC. THAT WOULD OTHERWISE BE DUE WITH RESPECT TO
PROJECT EMPLOYEES, WHICH AMOUNTS SHALL BE COLLECTED AND
REMITTED TO THE CITY TO BE REFUNDED UPON EMPLOYER’S
REQUEST OVER A TERM OF NOT LONGER THAN TEN (10) YEARS FROM
THE ACTIVATION DATE ESTABLISHED BY SAID PROGRAM; AND
TAKING OTHER RELATED ACTION

WHEREAS, it is the public policy of the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Franklin, Kentucky (“City
Commission” and “City”) to encourage, promote, and support economic development, new job formation, and the
development and growth of industry and commerce, and to preserve existing jobs in Kentucky for the public purposes of
providing employment opportunities for its citizens and residents, alleviating conditions of unemployment, stabilizing and
promoting the economy of Kentucky, and creating new tax bases and sources of revenue for the Commonwealth;

WHEREAS, the Kentucky Business Investment Program, Sections 154.32-010 through 154.32-100 of the
Kentucky Revised Statutes (“KRS”), the (“Program”), authorizes and empowers the Commonwealth and certain local
Jurisdictions to promote economic development in Kentucky by inducing the creation of economic development projects
by eligible companies, as more particularly described therein;

WHEREAS, KRS 154.32-090 authorizes an eligible company to deduct certain wage assessments from payments
of wages to economic development project employees and each employee paying the assessment, in turn, to credit the
assessment against their Kentucky individual income tax and, subject to the approval of the local levying authority or
authorities, local occupational license fee or fees otherwise due;

WHEREAS, New Mather Metals, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), 326 Page Drive, Franklin,
Kentucky 42134, has proposed to acquire and install within the City a project consisting of equipment and new
employment as described in Exhibit A attached hereto (collectively, the “Project”);

WHEREAS, the Company has represented to the City that the acquisition, construction and installation of the
Project, if constructed, will result in a substantial number of new job opportunities in the community, and the Company
agrees to comply with the provisions of City of Franklin Ordinance No. 221.10-06-2014;

WHEREAS, the Company has filed an application with the Kentucky Economic Development Finance Authority
(the “Authority™) for approval of the Project for the Program as authorized in KRS 154.32-030;

WHEREAS, it is appropriate and in the public interest that the City Commission make a formal, binding
commitment of financial resources in order to encourage and support economic development endeavors generally and the Project
specifically if and when approved by the Authority pursuant to KRS 154.32-030; and

WHEREAS, the City Commission has approved the granting of an inducement to the Company for the Project,
pursuant to the Program, whereby it would forego the collection of the one percent (1%) occupational license fee on wages
that otherwise would be due the City, which fee shall be retained by the Company, with respect to Project employees
whose jobs meet the criteria and requirements established by the Program (“Qualifying Employees™) for a term of not
longer than ten (10) years from the date the Company properly activates the Program’s incentives pursuant to KRS 154.32-
030 and any agreement relating to the Project that the Company has with the Authority (the ““Activation Date”).

-99-



NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF
FRANKLIN, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. It is hereby found, determined and declared that the recitals set forth in the preambles to this
Ordinance, which are incorporated in this Section by reference, are true and correct.

Section 2. Inducement. The City shall forego collection of, and Company shall be entitled to collect and
retain the one percent (1%) City occupational license fee due on wages paid to Qualifying Employees for a term of not
longer than ten (10) years from the Activation Date (the “Inducement Term”), as specified herein.

Section 3. Company to Deduct and Withhold Qccupational License Fee on Wages. The Company, when
making payment of wages to Qualifying Employees earned with respect to the Inducement Term, shall deduct and
withhold upon the wages the one percent (1%) City occupational license fee. The Company shall remit to the City and
report such withheld amounts on the forms and reconciliations required by KRS 67.783(4) and (5) and Chapter 114 of the
City Code of Ordinances. The Company shall file, not less than quarterly in accordance with the City of Franklin’s Code
of Ordinances, with the City of Franklin, the City of Franklin Employers Quarterly Return provided by the City,
specifically addressing the issues related to the KBI Program. In addition, the company shall file a quarterly reconciliation
of the City of Franklin’s Occupational License Fees in a format as required by the City. If the company fails to comply
with the provisions of this Section, the company (or its representatives as the case may be) shall be subject to the penalty
provisions set forth in Chapter 114 of the City’s occupational licensing and gross receipts ordinance(s), as amended from
time to time, or forfeiture of future participation in this program.

Section 4. Company Entitled to Reimbursement for Withheld and Remitted Amounts. The Company shall
remit said withheld amounts to the City pursuant to Section 3 of this Ordinance. The Company shall receive
reimbursement from the City, once per annum, after making the request, in writing, on the forms provided by the City, with
said reimbursement being due and payable not later than sixty (60) days after the Company files the written request for
reimbursement. Provided, however, that said reimbursement request shall not be filed later than two (2) years from the
date that the Company’s annual license fee returns are initially due, without regard to any extensions received or allowed.

Section 5. Qualifying Emplovyees Entitled to Credit for Withheld Amounts. Each Qualifying Employee
shall be entitled to a credit against his or her occupational license fee liability to the City under KRS 67.785(3) and Chapter
114 of the City of Franklin Code of Ordinances equal to the amounts withheld from his or her wages pursuant to Section 3
of this Ordinance.

Section 6. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption and publication as
required by law.

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this ordinance is for any reason held invalid or
unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and independent
provision, and such holdings shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance.

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith, are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed.

February 25,2019 FIRST READING
March 11, 2019 SECOND READING
At a meeting of the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Franklin, Kentucky, held on March ,2019,
and on motion made by and seconded by , the

foregoing ordinance was adopted, after full discussion, by the following vote:

-100-



BROWNIE BENNETT
JAMIE POWELL
HERBERT WILLIAMS
WENDELL STEWART
LARRY DIXON, MAYOR

APPROVED BY:

LARRY DIXON, MAYOR

ATTEST:

CATHY DILLARD, CITY CLERK
CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

CERTIFICATION

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting City Clerk of the City of Franklin,
Kentucky, and as such City Clerk I further certify that the foregoing is a true, correct and complete copy of an Ordinance
(including Exhibit A) duly adopted by the Board of City Commissioners of said City at a duly convened meeting held on
March , 2019, on the same occasion signed by the Mayor, duly filed, recorded and indexed in my office and now in
force and effect, and that all action taken in connection with such Ordinance was in compliance with the requirements of
KRS 61.810 through 61.825, all as appears from the official records of said Board of City Commissioners in my possession
and under my control.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of said City this day of March,
2019.

(SEAL)

Cathy Dillard, City Clerk

-101-



Exhibit A

Project Description for New Mather Metals, Inc.

See letter and KBI Report attached hereto and incorporated herein collectively by reference.

-102-



X

April 10, 2014

Dear Secretary Hayes:

On behalf of the City of Franklin, I want to write this letter in support of the KBI
application being subinitted by New Mather Metals for their expansion in our Sanders
Interstate Industrial Park, New Mather Metals has been a part of our community for
thirteen years. They are the largest manufacturer of stabilizer bars for the automotive
industry in the United States. Currently, the company has a manufacturing facility that
is 280,000 square feet, The new expansion will add new equipment and create
approximately 20 new jobs at New Mather Metals

New Mather Metals has been a tremendous corporate citizen in our community
and we wholeheartedly support participating with the one percent occupational tax for
the KBI incentive program. Your consideration of their XBI application is greatly
appreciated. +

Sincerely,

— !
e —

/" Ronnie Clark, Mayor
City of Franklin

117 West Cedar St. ¢ P.O. Box 2805 » Franklin, Kentucky 42135-2805
Plioste (270) 586-4497 o Fax (270) 586-9419 « wrww.franklinky.org

-103-




KENTUCKY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FINANCE AUTHORITY

KBI REPORT - PRELIMINARY APPROVAL

Date: April 24, 2014

Approved Company: New Mather Metals, Inc.

City: Franklin County:
Activity. Manufacturing Prelim Resolution #:
Bus. Dev. Contact: C. Peek OFS Staff:

Project Description:

Simpson
KBI-I1-14-19860
S. Fisher

New Mather Metals, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of NHK International

Corporation, which is owned by NHK Spring Co., LTD in Japan, opened the
Franklin facility in 2002. The company has had three major expansion
projects and is considering additional production lines to produce
suspension components for the automotive industry.

Facility Details: Expanding existing operations

Total Investment

Anticipated Project Investment - Owned Eligible Costs
Land $0 $0 /
Building/Improvements 3 90 b $0/ $0/ 3 H;]O(ﬂ
Equipment 0D DO $40p/000 $4.497,000 INEY
Other Start-up Costs 300000 $400,000 $1£0,000 200 00
TOTAL /$500,000 $4,507,000 .
b
NEGOTIATED TARGETS AND INCm%AI\?OQINTS: * (a}lq)l‘{b 0
Average Hourly Wage
Target (Including Annual Approved Cost
Year Job Target Employee Benefits) Limitation
As of Activation Date 20 $20.00 JHf 0 GrEsmias

1 20 H 52000 | 1. $32,500

2 20 $20000 $32,5D0

3 40 $20{00 $32,500

4 20 $24.00 $32,600

5 79 $20.00 $32{500

6 0 $29.00 $33,500

7 20 $2p.00 $32.500

8 20 WAy $20.00 $3p.500

9 40 |4 $40.00 . $32,500 \/

10 20 o $20.00 i $32,500

Other County Minimum Wage Base hourly wage: $10.88
Requirements: Total hourly compensation: $12.51
TOTAL NEGOTIATED TAX INCENTIVE AMOUNT; { $325,000~ |
50,000

~104-



Ownership {20% or more):
NHK International Corporation, Wixom, Mi

Active State Participation at the project site:

Dafe Program Status Amount
Jun 30, 2011 KBl Monitor $500,000
Sep 30, 2004 KIDA Monitor $2,300,000
Jun 28, 2001 KIDA Monitor $1,500,000

Requested Wage Assessment / Local Participation:
State: 3.0%
Local: 1.0% - City of Franklin

Unemployment Rate
County: 7.4% ' Kentucky: 8.3%

Existing Presence in Kentucky:
Simpson County

2 5 QQ(
Special Conditions:
. ) \O(fi\ 6'3

The company will be required to maintain a base employment equal to the number of full-time,
Kentucky resident employees as of the date of preliminary approval. The company reponed fuil- \
time, Kentucky resident employees as of the application date.

~105-



Sponsors:  _Commissioner Powell
Cominissioner Bennett

Second Reading: _March 11, 2019

Publication Date: _March 14, 2019

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-005

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF
FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY, AUTHORIZING THE GRANT OF AN
INDUCEMENT FOR THE ACQUISITION AND CONSTRUCTION OF A
PROJECT PURSUANT TO THE KENTUCKY BUSINESS INVESTMENT
PROGRAM (KRS 154.32-010 TO 154.32-100) WHEREBY THE CITY AGREES
TO FOREGO THE COLLECTION OF THE ONE PERCENT (1%) CITY
OCCUPATIONAL LICENSE FEE ON WAGES FROM SUMITOMO
ELECTRIC WIRING SYSTEMS, INC. THAT WOULD OTHERWISE BE DUE
WITH RESPECT TO PROJECT EMPLOYEES, WHICH AMOUNTS SHALL
BE COLLECTED AND REMITTED TO THE CITY TO BE REFUNDED UPON
EMPLOYER’S REQUEST OVER A TERM OF NOT LONGER THAN TEN (10)
YEARS FROM THE ACTIVATION DATE ESTABLISHED BY SAID
PROGRAM; AND TAKING OTHER RELATED ACTION

WHEREAS, it is the public policy of the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Franklin, Kentucky (“City
Commission” and “City”) to encourage, promote, and support economic development, new job formation, and the
development and growth of industry and commerce, and to preserve existing jobs in Kentucky for the public purposes of
providing employment opportunities for its citizens and residents, alleviating conditions of unemployment, stabilizing and
promoting the economy of Kentucky, and creating new tax bases and sources of revenue for the Commonwealth;

WHEREAS, the Kentucky Business Investment Program, Sections 154.32-010 through 154.32-100 of the
Kentucky Revised Statutes (“KRS”), the (“Program”), authorizes and empowers the Commonwealth and certain local
jurisdictions to promote economic development in Kentucky by inducing the creation of economic development projects
by eligible companies, as more particularly described therein;

WHEREAS, KRS 154.32-090 authorizes an eligible company to deduct certain wage assessments from payments
of wages to economic development project employees and each employee paying the assessment, in turn, to credit the
assessment against their Kentucky individual income tax and, subject to the approval of the local levying authority or
authorities, local occupational license fee or fees otherwise due;

WHEREAS, Sumitomo Electric Wiring Systems, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), c¢/o C.T. Corp.
System, 1209 Orange Street, Wilmington, Delaware 19801, has proposed to acquire and install within the City a project
consisting of buildings and other improvements on the land, equipment, and new employment as described in Exhibit A
attached hereto (collectively, the “Project”);

WHEREAS, the Company has represented to the City that the acquisition, construction and installation of the
Project, if constructed, will result in a substantial number of new job opportunities in the community, and the Company
agrees to comply with the provisions of City of Franklin Ordinance No. 221.10-06-2014;

WHEREAS, the Company has filed an application with the Kentucky Economic Development Finance Authority
(the “Authority™) for approval of the Project for the Program as authorized in KRS 154.32-030;

WHEREAS, it is appropriate and in the public interest that the City Commission make a formal, binding
commitment of financial resources in order to encourage and support economic development endeavors generally and the Project
specifically if and when approved by the Authority pursuant to KRS 154.32-030; and

WHEREAS, the City Commission has approved the granting of an inducement to the Company for the Project,
pursuant to the Program, whereby it would forego the collection of the one percent (1%) occupational license fee on wages
that otherwise would be due the City, which fee shall be refunded to the Company, with respect to Project employees
whose jobs meet the criteria and requirements established by the Program (“Qualifying Employees™) for a term of not

-106-



longer than ten (10) years from the date the Company properly activates the Program’s incentives pursuant to KRS 154.32-
030 and any agreement relating to the Project that the Company has with the Authority (the “Activation Date™).

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF
FRANKLIN, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. It is hereby found, determined and declared that the recitals set forth in the preambles to this
Ordinance, which are incorporated in this Section by reference, are true and correct.

Section 2. Inducement. The City agrees to forego retention of, and Company shall be entitled to
reimbursement of the one percent (1%) City occupational license fee due on wages paid to Qualifying Employees for a
term of not longer than ten (10) years from the Activation Date (the “Inducement Term”), as specified herein.

Section 3. Company to Deduct and Withhold Occupational License Fee on Wages. The Company, when
making payment of wages to Qualifying Employees earned with respect to the Inducement Term, shall deduct and
withhold upon the wages the one percent (1%) City occupational license fee. The Company shall remit to the City and
report such withheld amounts on the forms and reconciliations required by KRS 67.783(4) and (5) and Chapter 114 of the
City Code of Ordinances. The Company shall file, no less than quarterly in accordance with the City of Franklin’s Code of
Ordinances, with the City of Franklin, the City of Franklin Employers Quarterly Return provided by the City, specifically
addressing the issues related to the KBI Program. In addition, the company shall file a quarterly reconciliation of the City
of Franklin’s Occupational License Fees in a format as required by the City. If the company fails to comply with the
provisions of this Section, the company (or its representatives as the case may be) shall be subject to the penalty provisions
set forth in Chapter 114 of the City’s occupational licensing and gross receipts ordinance(s), as amended from time to time,
or forfeiture of future participation in this program.

Section 4. Company Entitled to Reimbursement for Withheld and Remitted Amounts. The Company shall
remit said withheld amounts to the City pursuant to Section 3 of this Ordinance. The Company shall receive

reimbursement from the City, once per annum, after making the request, in writing, on the forms provided by the City, with
said reimbursement being due and payable not later than sixty (60) days after the Company files the written request for
reimbursement. Provided, however, that said reimbursement request shall not be filed later than two (2) years from the
date that the Company’s annual license fee returns are initially due, without regard to any extensions received or allowed.

Section 5. Qualifying Employees Entitled to Credit for Withheld Amounts. Each Qualifying Employee
shall be entitled to a credit against his or her occupational license fee liability to the City under KRS 67.785(3) and Chapter
114 of the City of Franklin Code of Ordinances equal to the amounts withheld from his or her wages pursuant to Section 3
of this Ordinance.

Section 6. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption and publication as
required by law.

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this ordinance is for any reason held invalid or
unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and independent
provision, and such holdings shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance.

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith, are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed.

February 25, 2019 FIRST READING

March 11,2019 SECOND READING

-107-



At a meeting of the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Franklin, Kentucky, held on March , 2019,
and on motion made by and seconded by , the
foregoing ordinance was adopted, after full discussion, by the following vote:

BROWNIE BENNETT
JAMIE POWELL
HERBERT WILLIAMS
WENDELL STEWART
LARRY DIXON, MAYOR

APPROVED BY:

LARRY DIXON, MAYOR

ATTEST:

CATHY DILLARD, CITY CLERK
CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

CERTIFICATION

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting City Clerk of the City of Franklin,
Kentucky, and as such City Clerk I further certify that the foregoing is a true, correct and complete copy of an Ordinance
(including Exhibit A) duly adopted by the Board of City Commissioners of said City at a duly convened meeting held on
March , 2019, on the same occasion signed by the Mayor, duly filed, recorded and indexed in my office and now in
force and effect, and that all action taken in connection with such Ordinance was in compliance with the requirements of
KRS 61.810 through 61.825, all as appears from the official records of said Board of City Commissioners in my possession
and under my control.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of said City this day of March,
2019.

(SEAL)

Cathy Dillard, City Clerk

-108-



Exhibit A

Project Description for Sumitomo Electric Wiring Systems, Inc.

See letter and KBI Report attached hereto and incorporated herein collectively by reference.

-109-



April 18, 2016

Secretary Erik Dunnigan

Kentucky Economic Development Cabinet
300 West Broadway

Prankfort, IKentucky 40601

Dear Scctetary Dunnigan:

I am writing chis letter as evidence of our suppot of the KBI application being submitted by
Sumitomo Electric Wiring Systetns, Incotporated. The company is planning to leasc a 65,000 square
foot manufacturing building Spec Building in the Henderson Intesstate Industeial Park in Franklin,
Kentucky. When occupied, Sumitomo will utilize this facility for the manufacturing of plastic
injected patts for motor vehicles. The company will invest sevetal million dollars in equipment and
plans to employ over 100 people at this plant.

The City of Franklin will support the KBI application by contributing our one petcent occupational
tax, T look forward to having this outstanding company as patt of our corporate community and I
am cettainly in suppost of theit KBI application fox this project.

Sincerely,
o
7 W
‘,."". d /’m( d‘”‘ (;ZJ'C ’6
.»'Mayor Ronnie Clatk .

117 West Cedar St. + P.O, Box 2805 + Franklin, Kentucky 42135-2805
Plione (270) 586-4497 » Fax (270) 586-9419 wwwfranklinky.org

~110-




1
I
(_ \}
e’

.
{
kY

LN

)

KENTUCKY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FINANCE AUTHORITY
KBI REPORT - PRELIMINARY APPROVAL

Date: April 28, 2016

Approved Company: Sumitomo Electric Wirlng Systems, Inc.

City: Franklin County:
Activity: Manufacturing Prelim Resolution #:
Bus, Dev. Contact: F. Tate OFS Staff:

Project Description:

Simpson
KBI-I-16-21019
M. Elder

Sumitomo Electric Wiring Systems, Inc. is an automotive manufacturing

facillty that develops electric wiring harnesses and wiring for automobiles.
The company has been in Kentucky since 1988. Sumitomio has found an
operational facility in Simpson County and is considering expanding its

operation there.

Facility Details: Locating in a new facility

Eligible Costs

Total Investment

Anticipated Project Investment - Owned

Land $0 $0
Building/Improvements $4,990,000 $4,990,000
Equipment $1,640,000 $4,000,000
Other Start-up Costs $1,500,000 $1,500,000
TOTAL $8,130,000 $10,490,000
NEGOTIATED TARGETS AND INCENTIVE AMOUNTS:
Average Hourly Wage
Target (Including Annual Approved Cost
Year Job Target Employsee Benefits) Limitation
As of Activation Date 82 $28.00 Rl
1 82 $28.00 $136,000
2 82 $28.00 $136,000
3 145 $28.00 $136,000
4 145 $28.00 $136,000
5 145 $28.00 $136,000
6 145 $28,00 $136,000
7 145 $28.00 $136,000
8 145 $28.00 $136,000
9 145 $28.00 $136,000
10 145 $28.00 $136,000
TOTAL NEGOTIATED TAX INCENTIVE AMOUNT: | $1,360,000 |

-111-

fas |



C Q)

County Type: Statutory Minimum Wage Requirements:
Other Base hourly wage: $10.88
Total hourly compensation; $12.51

Ownership (20% or more):
Sumitomo Wiring Systems Japan

Active State Participation at the project site: None

Requested Wage Assessment / Local Participation:
State: 3.0%
Local: 1.0% The City of Franklin

Unemployment Rate
County: 5.5% Kentucky: 6.3%

Existing Presence in Kentucky:
Allen, Fayette, Metcalfe and Warren Counties

Special Conditions:

The company will be required to maintain 90% of the total statewlde fuli-time, Kentucky resident
employees at ali company locations, excluding the site of the project, as of the date of preliminary

cpproe. Pt por Srataicl Ceah{icatot
CmLpaA\@ e pivied .?;15;1@ '
2% oL 720 & Uf

~112-




Sponsors: Commissioner Powell
Commissioner Stewart

Second Reading:  March 11, 2019

Publication Date:  March 14, 2019

ORDINANCE NO. 2019 - 006

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY
REPEALING AND RE-ENACTING TEXT AND SUBSTANCE OF
ORDINANCE 2018-001 REGARDING SECTIONS 8.9.2, 8.15.2 and 8.15.3
OF THE ZONING REGULATIONS

WHEREAS, on March 15, 2018, Ordinance 2018-001 of the City of Franklin, Kentucky,
relating to planning and zoning regulations was adopted by the City of Franklin, Kentucky; and,

WHEREAS, on February 14, 2019, the Franklin-Simpson County Planning & Zoning
Commission held two public hearings regarding the clarification of Sections 8.9.2, 8.15.2 and
8.15.3 pertaining to community residential facilities in an I-1 zone and residential uses in a B-1
zone; and

WHEREAS, the Franklin-Simpson County Planning & Zoning Commission approved
changes to the zoning regulations listed above; and

WHEREAS, it is the opinion and judgment of the Board of Commissioners of the City of
Franklin that it is necessary to amend said Ordinance to reflect the changes as set forth herein;
and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City of Franklin, Kentucky, acting by
and through its Board of Commissioners as follows:

Sections 8.9.2, 8.15.2 and 8.15.3 of the Zoning Regulations of the City of Franklin and
Simpson County shall be amended as shown in the attached Exhibit A.

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this Ordinance is for any
reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall
be deemed a separate, distinct, and independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the
validity of the remaining portions hereof. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict
herewith are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed.

February 25, 2019 FIRST READING

March 11, 2019 SECOND READING

At a meeting of the City Commission of the City of Franklin, Kentucky, held on __March
11, 2019 on motion made by Commissioner and seconded by
Commissioner the foregoing ordinance was adopted, after full
discussion, by the following vote:

Page 1 of 2
-113-



BROWNIE BENNETT
JAMIE POWELL
HERBERT WILLIAMS
WENDELL STEWART

LARRY DIXON, MAYOR

APPROVED BY:

Larry Dixon, Mayor
ATTEST:

Cathy Dillard, City Clerk

-114-



“EXHIBIT A”
to
Ordinance No. 2019-006

8.9.2 Permitted Uses

Section 8.9.2.e. is amended as follows:

eE. Residential: residential-dwellings-as-permitted-in-R-4-zoning-districts—(See-section

8+2) Residential apartment dwelling units may not be less than five hundred (500)
square feet in living space per apartment dwelling unit. Further, no there shall be no
more than twenty (20) apartment dwelling units per building in the B-1 zoning district,
and all buildings containing apartment dwelling units shall _be equipped with an
approved fire suppression and monitoring system. Multi-family land use developments
may be proposed in a multiple building development configuration provided that a
development plan has been approved by the Planning Commission (see Article 13).
Provided however, and regardless of anything else in these regulations to the contrary,
all residential uses proposed to be permitted in a B-1 (Central Business District) Zone
are_specifically subject to and/or limited by the provisions of any and all other
ordinances adopted by the City of Franklin, Kentucky including, but not limited to
ordinances relating to the permitted uses of buildings located in the Downtown Historical
District.

8.15.2 Permitted Uses

The following uses are permitted in any I-1 district, subject to all the
applicable development standards and requirements:

General manufacturing

Sales, Construction and Service Establishments
Warehousing and Storage

Public warehousing and storage
Mini-warehouses.

e a0 T

Planned Industrial Parks which have been approved by the
Planning Commission under the development plan
provisions of Article 13, or, Industrial Park land which is
under the care and supervision of the Industrial Authority,
and placed in the Industrial Park Overlay District.

g. Adult oriented use(s) and/or sexually oriented business.

~115-



Any accessory building or use customarily incidental to the
above permitted or conditionally permitted use shall be
permitted.

Community residential facilities.

8.15.3 Conditional Uses

The following uses are conditional uses in and I-1 district and
require written approval of the Board of Adjustment:

a. Manufactured Ice Plants

b. Machine shops

c. Jobbing and repair,

d. Welding

e. Fabrication and processing plants of Articles to be sold at
retail on the premises; photocopying and duplication

f.  Salvage Yards (subject to provisions of Article 9.2)

g. General contractors and special trade contractors and
partitions, shelving, lockers, and office and store fixtures
including cabinet shops

b o : dential facilit

h. Child care facility which developed in conjunction with a

planned industrial park or is exclusively for the benefit of
employees of the manufacturing plant. Two or more
adjoining manufacturing plants may jointly operate a child
care facility.

-116-



Sponsors:  Commissioner Powell
Commissioner Williams
Second Reading:  March 11, 2019

Publication Date: March 14, 2019

ORDINANCE 2019-007

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ANNUAL BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2018 AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2019
BY ESTIMATING REVENUES AND APPROPRIATIONS

WHEREAS, the City Commission for the City of Franklin, Kentucky is required by law to amend its budget ordinance to reflect actual
revenues and expenditures if different from those projected; and

WHEREAS, it has been reported to the City Commission that actual revenues collected and costs expended by the city during the
2018-2019 fiscal year are different from those projected in the current budget ordinance, and it is therefore necessary to amend the 2018-
2019 budget ordinance to reflect these variances,

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the City ot Frankiin, Kentucky that the 2018-2019 budget is hereby amended to read as
follows:

General Stormwater Sanitation Municipal Cemetery Perpetual CDBG
Fund Fund Utility Fund Fund Aid Fund Fund Care Fund
Estimated Revenues:
Operating Revenue 353,000 5,688,910 950,500 187,595 72,000 2,900
Tax Revenue 1,073,454
—%1,614.580
Licenses & Fees 5,421,955
—5,397,705
Intergovernmental Revenue 242,864 -
—169,00¢
Fines & Forfeits 55,500
——70;5608
Intragovernmental Revenues In 1,097,846 186,000
Miscellaneous Revenue 184,743
—164.65¢
Non-Operating Revenue 53,236 850 100,550 625 4,275 -
TOTAL REVENUES . 8,076,362 353,000 5,742,146 951,350 288,145 258,625 7,175 -
—+914;283 —367;600 —b5;794;35%1 —934,977 287,746 268,526 —13,;800
Appropriations:
General Government 1,880,339
—+H943:673
Police 2,278,804
—2;306;886
Fire 274,365
—— 274,365
Public Services 809,797
——829.25¢
Community Services 1,266,987
—+232,594
Stormwater 208,308
— 217782
Municipal Utilities 2,979,761
—3.026,424
Sanitation 704,404
—698;158
Economic Development -
Municipal Aid/Severance 286,500
—287.600
Municipal Cemetery 204,091
—204.234
Debt Service 295,245 505,249
—295;245 —505:249
Capital Outlay 417,084 10,000 1,111,490 95,000 5,000

-117-



General Stormwater Sanitation Municipal Cemetery Perpetual CDBG

Fund Fund Utility Fund Fund Aid Fund Fund Care Fund

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 7,222,621 218,308 4,596,500 704,404 381,500 209,091 - -
— 7,093,484 —-237.782 —4;408;795 —698;168 287000 —204;234

EXCESS RESOURCES 853,741 134,692 1,145,646 246,946 (93,355) 49,534 7,175 -
——820,789 —H9; 718 1385556 —236;818 — 745 —64;281 —13;800

RESERVE 217,600 - 312,780 - - - - -
—2500 ——— ——330,000

TRANSFERS OUT 383,000 - 700,000 209,500 - 51,646 3,000 -
—383;000 ——— —700,000 —209,600 — 95000 — 54646 —3;000

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 253,141 134,692 132,866 37,446 (93,355) (2,112) 4,175 -

— 3265209 — 149,748 — 3565566 — 27.318 —(94,255) — 2,645 — 40,800 ——

SECTION 2: The regulatory license fee shall be eight percent (8%) of gross sales of all alcoholic beverages sold by the drink. In the case of
retail sales of package distilled spirits, wine and mait beverages, the regulatory license fee shall be five percent (6%) of gross sales. The
annual rate for the regulatory license fee adopted by the City Commission is estimated to ensure full reimbursement to the city for the cost of
any additional policing, regulatory, or administrative expense related to the sale of alcoholic beverages in the city.

SECTION 3: The detailed budget proposal and message, together with modifications, are hereby adopted and incorporated by the reference
herein, the same as if copied at length herein.

SECTION 4: This ordinance is effective upon its passage and publication.

SECTION 5: If any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase, or a portion of this ordinance is declared illegal, unconstitutional
or otherwise invalid, such declaration shall not affect the remaining portions hereof.

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith, are to the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed.

FIRST READING - February 25, 2019 SECOND READING - March 11,2019
At a meeting of the Franklin City Commission held on March 11, 2019, on motion made by Commissioner and
seconded by Commissioner , the foregoing ordinance was adopted, after full discussion, by the following vote.

Commissioner Brownie Bennett
Commissioner Herbert Williams
Commissioner Jamie Powell
Commissioner Wendell Stewart
Mayor Larry Dixon

APPROVED BY:

LARRY DIXON, MAYOR
CITY OF FRANKLIN, KY

ATTEST:

CATHY DILLARD, CITY CLERK
CITY OF FRANKLIN, KY

A DETAILED COPY OF THE BUDGET MAY BE SEEN AT CITY HALL,117 W CEDAR STREET, FRANKLIN KENTUCKY BETWEEN THE HOURS OF
8:30 A.M. AND 4:00 P.M. MONDAY THROUGH FRIDAY.

~118-



Sponsors: Commissioner Powell
_Commissioner Stewart

Second Reading:  _March 11, 2019

Publication Date: _March 14, 2019

ORDINANCE NO. 2019- 008

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY
APPROVING AN INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT REGARDING
PLANNING AND ZONING AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO SIGN

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin, Franklin-Simpson Planning and Zoning Commission
and County of Simpson have reached an agreement with regard to the operation of the Franklin-
Simpson Planning and Zoning Commission entitled “Interlocal Agreement Regarding Planning
and Zoning,” a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference; and,

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin and the parties to the Interlocal Agreement require the
passage of an Ordinance approving said interlocal agreement and authorizing the Mayor for the
City of Franklin to execute said interlocal agreement; and,

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the citizens and residents of the City of Franklin
that the City adopt this Ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the City of Franklin, Kentucky, acting by and
through its City Commission, as follows:

1. The City Commission of the City of Franklin, Kentucky hereby approves the terms and
conditions of the Interlocal Agreement Regarding Planning and Zoning by and between
the Planning and Zoning Commission, County of Simpson, and the City of Franklin,
Kentucky, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.

2. The Mayor of the City of Franklin, Larry Dixon, is hereby authorized to execute any and
all documents necessary and appropriate to effectuate the intent of this Ordinance and the
Interlocal Agreement including, but not limited to the Interlocal Agreement.

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase, or portion of this Ordinance is for
any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, such portion
shall be deemed a separate distinct, and independent provision and such holding shall not affect
the validity of the remaining portions.

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are, to the extent of such
conflict, hereby repealed.

March 4, 2019 FIRST READING

March 11, 2019 SECOND READING

-119-



At a meeting held on March 11, 2019 on motion made by Commissioner
and seconded by Commissioner , the
foregoing ordinance was adopted, after full discussion, by the following vote:

JAMIE POWELL
HERBERT WILLIAMS
BROWNIE BENNETT
WENDELL STEWART

LARRY DIXON, MAYOR

APPROVED BY:

LARRY DIXON, MAYOR
CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

ATTEST:

CATHY DILLARD, CITY CLERK
CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

~120-



INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT
REGARDING PLANNING AND ZONING

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into on the dates indicated hereinbelow, as
evidenced by the dates executed by the parties, by and between the City of Franklin, Kentucky, a
municipality and home rule city validly existing under the constitution, statutes, and laws of the
Commonwealth of Kentucky, acting by and through its duly authorized Mayor, hereinafter called
“City;” and the County of Simpson, a County and political subdivision validly existing under the
constitution, statutes, and laws of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, by and through the County
Judge Executive, hereinafter called “County” and the Franklin-Simpson Planning & Zoning
Commission, a planning commission duly authorized by and under the Kentucky Revised Statutes,
by and through its Chairperson, hereinafter referred to as “P & Z.”

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the governing bodies of the City and County and P & Z have the power,
pursuant to the Kentucky Revised Statutes, Section 65.210 et seq. to enter into agreements in order
to provide for the use of property on the basis of mutual advantage and thereby to provide services
and facilities in a manner and pursuant to forms of governmental organization that will accord best
with geographic, economic, population and other factors influencing the needs and development
of local communities; and,

WHEREAS, the governing bodies of the City and County and P & Z have determined and
hereby determine that it is in the best interests of the citizens and residents of Franklin and Simpson
County that these entities enter into this Agreement for the joint financial contribution/operation
of the Franklin-Simpson Planning & Zoning Commission to be operated under the terms and
conditions set forth in this Agreement; and,

WHEREAS, the execution, delivery, and performance of this Agreement have been
authorized, approved, and directed by the governing bodies of the City and County and P & Z by
an ordinance or resolution finally passed and adopted by the governing bodies of the City and
County.

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants herein
contained, the parties hereto agree as follows:

ARTICLE I: PURPOSE FOR THIS AGREEMENT

It is necessary for the efficient and consistent operation of the Franklin-Simpson Planning
& Zoning Commission that the individual, specific, and special needs of each of the parties hereto
be considered and that their unique and specialized services be used in a manner that best responds
to the needs of the general public. It is also necessary that the cost of operation and maintenance
of the Franklin-Simpson Planning & Zoning Commission (hereinafter referred to as “P & Z”) be
shared in a fair and equitable manner by the parties hereto.

~121-



In order to accomplish these purposes, it is the intent of this agreement to provide for the
following: ‘ '

1. All employees of the Franklin-Simpson Planning & Zoning Commission shall be
County employees and shall receive county benefits, subject to the terms of this Agreement.

2. All fees and revenues generated by the Franklin-Simpson Planning & Zoning
Commission shall go to the County of Simpson, with the Franklin-Simpson Planning & Zoning
Commission having their expenses paid by the County from the fees generated.

3. There shall be established, as provided in this agreement, an “Employment
Recommendation Committee,” the duties, responsibilities and membership of which shall be as
provided herein.

- 4. Contributions to the cost and expenses of the operation, maintenance, and other
related costs and expenses of the P & Z shall be divided and paid by each of the parties hereto in
the amounts and in the manner provided herein, and annual budgets with respect to the P & Z shall
be prepared, approved and followed as provided in this Agreement.

5. Withdrawal from this agreement by a party hereto shall only be as provided in this
Agreement.
6. The parties will continue to appoint the board members and approve zone changes

in the manner in which these issues are currently being handled.

7. The City of Franklin shall have the right to approve changes in personnel with
respect to the employees of Franklin-Simpson Planning & Zoning.

ARTICLE II: DEFINITIONS

All words and phrases will have the meanings specified below unless the context clearly
requires otherwise.

“Agreement” means this Interlocal Agreement Regarding Planning & Zoning and any
amendments or supplements hereto entered into in accordance with the provisions hereof,
including the exhibits attached hereto. '

“City” means the City of Franklin, Kentucky, or any successor thereto acting by and
through this Agreement.

“County” means the County of Simpson, Kentucky, or any successor thereto acting by and
through this Agreement.

-122-



“Employees” shall mean hourly or salaried employees of the Franklin-Simpson Planning
& Zoning Commission and independent contractors including, but not limited to the building
and/or electrical inspector.

“ERRC” means the Employment Recommendation and Resolution Committee, the
composition and duties of which are set forth more fully hereinbelow.

“Fiscal Year” means the period from and including July 1 through and including the next
June 30.

“Personal property” means any item or items of tangible or intangible property used, held
or managed for the benefit of and/or in the Franklin-Simpson Planning & Zoning Commission and
includes, but is not limited to monetary or other funds, supplies, inventory and equipment.

“P & Z” or “Franklin-Simpson Planning & Zoning Commission” means the Franklin-
Simpson Planning & Zoning Commission and/or the Board of Adjustments and/or the

employees/contractors that conduct work or duties relating to Planning & Zoning, or any successor
thereto acting by and through this Agreement.

“Term” means the term of this Agreement as determined pursuant to Article IV hereto.
ARTICLE III: REPRESENTATIONS, COVENANTS AND WARRANTIES

Article 3.1. Representations, Covenants and Warranties of the County. The County
represents, covenants and warrants for the benefit of the remaining parties hereto as follows:

(a) The County is a county and political subdivision, validly organized and existing in
good standing under the laws of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, has full power and authority to
enter into and perform its obligations under this Agreement, and has duly taken the necessary acts
required prior to (including all required approvals) the execution and delivery of this Agreement.
The County warrants this Agreement to be a valid, legal and binding obligation of the County,
enforceable against it in accordance with its terms.

(b)  Neither the execution and delivery of this Agreement nor the consummation of the
transactions contemplated hereby, nor the fulfillment of or compliance with the terms and
conditions hereof conflicts with or results in a beach of the terms, conditions, or provisions of any
restriction or any agreement or instrument to which the County is now a party or by which the
County is bound, or constitutes a default under any of the foregoing, or conflicts with or results in
a violation of any provision of law or regulation applicable to the County or results in the creation
or imposition of any lien or encumbrance whatsoever upon the property or assets of the County or
City (except for any purchase money security interests); and no representation, covenant and
warranty herein is false, misleading or erroneous in any material respect.

(c) To the best of County’s knowledge and belief, there is no action, suit, proceeding,

inquiry, or investigation, at law or in equity, before or by any court, public board or body, pending
or known to be threatened against or affecting the County nor to the best of the knowledge of the

~123-



County is there any basis therefrom, wherein an unfavorable decision, ruling, or finding would
materially and adversely affect the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or which would
adversely affect, in any way, the validity or enforceability of this Agreement or any material
agreement or instrument to which the County is a party, used or contemplated for use in the
consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, or the authority or ability of the County
to perform its obligations hereunder or thereunder.

(d) The terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement are in furtherance of the
County’s governmental purposes, serve a public purpose and are in the best interest of the County
and at the time of the execution and delivery of the Agreement, the County intends to annually
appropriate the operational expenses, maintenance expenses, utility expenses, insurance expenses
and any and all required capital improvement expenses that County is otherwise required to make
under the term of this Agreement.

Article 3.2. Representations, Covenants and Warranties of City. The City represents,
covenant and warrants for the benefit of the remaining parties hereto as follows:

(a) The City is a municipality and home rule city, validly organized and existing in
good standing under the laws of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, has full power and authority to
enter into and to perform its obligations under this Agreement, and has duly taken the necessary
acts required prior to (including all required approvals) the execution and delivery of this
Agreement. The City warrants this Agreement to be a valid, legal and binding obligation of the
City, enforceable against the City in accordance with its terms.

(b)  Neither the execution and delivery of this Agreement nor the consummation of the
transactions contemplated hereby, nor the fulfillment of or compliance with the terms and
conditions hereof conflicts with or results in a breach of the terms, conditions, or provisions of any
restriction or any agreement or instrument to which the City is now a party or by which the City is
bound, or constitutes a default under any of the foregoing, or conflicts with or results ina violation
of any provision of law or regulation applicable to the City or results in the creation or imposition
of any lien or encumbrance whatsoever upon the property or assets of the County or City (except
for any purchase money security interests); and no representation, covenant and warranty herein
is false, misleading or erroneous in any material respect.

© To the best of City’s knowledge and belief, there is no action, suit, proceeding,
inquiry, or investigation, at law or in equity, before or by any court, public board or body, pending
or known to be threatened against or affecting the City nor to the best of the knowledge of the City
is there any basis therefore, wherein an unfavorable decision, ruling, or finding would materially
and adversely affect the transaction contemplated by this Agreement or which would adversely
affect, in any way, the validity or enforceability of this Agreement or any material agreement or
instrument to which the City is a party, used or contemplated for use in the consummation of the
transactions contemplated hereby, or the authority or ability of the City to perform its obligations
hereunder or thereunder.

(d) The terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement are in furtherance of the City’s
governmental purposes, serve a public purpose and are in the best interest of the City and at the

~124-



time of the execution and delivery of the Agreement, the City intends to annually appropriate the
operational expenses, maintenance expenses, utility expenses, insurance expenses and any and all
required capital improvement expenses that City is otherwise required to make under the term of
the Agreement.

ARTICLE 1V: TERM

Article 4.1 Duration of Agreement Term; Right to Terminate. The initial term of this
Agreement shall be ten (10) years beginning April 1, 2019, and shall be automatically renewable
for successive five (5) year terms unless terminated by any party hereto. The City or County shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement by giving one hundred eighty (180) days’ notice, in
writing, to the other parties of its intent to terminate this Agreement. The notice shall be dated and
shall state specifically the date upon which the Agreement shall terminate, so long as the
termination date is at least one hundred eighty (180) days after delivery of the notice to terminate.

Termination of this Agreement will terminate all obligations of the party seeking to
terminate this Agreement to pay any obligation under this Agreement, except the payment of any
and all monies owed under this Agreement accrued to the date of termination of this Agreement,
and will terminate the rights of the party seeking to terminate this Agreement to use, possess,
participate in and/or occupy the Project under this Agreement except as provided herein.

ARTICLE V: PERSONNEL AND BOARD MEMBERS AND APPROVALS

Article 5.1. Employees of P & Z. All employees of the P & Z shall become County
employees and shall be eligible for all benefits afforded all other County employees if approved
by the City and County. Provided, however, that the electrical and building inspectors shall be
paid by the County and may be independent contractors which may be eligible for benefits as if an
employee of P & Z if approved by the City and County. Further, all employees of the P & Z shall
adhere to all County policies and procedures relating to employment and shall be subject to the
disciplinary measures contained within said policies and procedures to the extent violated by an
employee of P & Z.

Article 5.2. Selection of Replacement Employees/Inspectors. In the event any employee
or the building and/or electrical inspector(s) is/are replaced due to termination, retirement,
resignation or, if for any other reason there is a vacancy in one or more of the positions, or if any
employee or inspector is not performing his/her assigned tasks to the extent that termination of the
employee/inspector is contemplated, the ERRC or the County (in conjunction with the City) shall
make the ultimate decision to terminate an employee and/or interview qualified and appropriate
candidates to fill the position(s); provided, however, that the City and County must both approve
the person(s) recommended for termination or to hire for any and all positions. New positions for
the P & Z may be created and a job description prepared by the ERRC, with any new employee
hiring being subject to the approval of the Fiscal Court and City Commission.

Article 5.3. Selection/Appointment of P & Z / Board of Adjustment Members. Nothing
in this Agreement or any ordinance adopting this Agreement shall be construed to change or alter,
in any way, the number or composition of the current Boards nor shall this Agreement or any

-125-



ordinance adopting this Agreement change or alter the manner in which the City or County
appoints their respective members to said Boards. Further, nothing in this Agreement or any
ordinance adopting this Agreement shall change or alter, in any way, the manner in which the City
or County approves or shall approve any matter decided or recommended by the P & Z or Board
of Adjustments.

ARTICLE VI: ESTABLISHMENT OF EMPLOYMENT RECOMMENDATION
AND RESOLUTION COMMITTEE

Article 6.1. Name. The parties hereto agree to the establishment of a committee entitled
the “Employment Recommendation and Resolution Committee” (hereinafter “ERRC”), with said
committee having the powers and duties as set forth herein.

Article 6.2. Composition of the ERRC. The ERRC shall have two (2) voting members as
follows:

(a) Voting Members:
1. City Manager of the City of Franklin; and,
2. County Judge Executive of the County of Simpson.

Article 6.3. Powers and Duties of the ERRC. The powers and duties of the ERRC shall
be as follows:

(a) Elect one member to act as Chairperson and one member as Secretary.

(b) Create/approve job descriptions for employment positions at P & Z, review
applications and make recommendations on creating new employment positions, make
recommendations on hiring personnel for P & Z, subject to approval by the City Commission and
Fiscal Court, make recommendations regarding pay and compensation plans to the Fiscal Court
and City Commission (if necessary but this shall not include annual cost of living or “across the
board” raises to all employees of the County), and review and evaluate personnel performance and
receive and review complaints regarding the personnel at P & Z, and make recommendations for
disciplinary/corrective actions and/or recommendations to take no action to the Simpson Fiscal
Court and City Commission. All hiring and termination of employment of employees of theP &
Z shall only occur after a majority vote of the Fiscal Court and City Commission.

(c) Review revenue and expenditures of P & Z and make recommendations for
budgetary and/or revenue enhancement for P & Z including recommendations for rate increases,

subject to approval of the City Commission and Fiscal Court.

(d Review and recommend resolutions to or for any errors or omissions committed by
P & Z staff or members of any P & Z related board.

~126-



Article 6.4. Meetings. The ERRC shall hold meetings on an as needed basis in accordance
with the Open Meetings Act. Special meetings may be called in accordance with the Open
Meetings Act.

ARTICLE VII: FUNDING

Article 7.1. Funding. All funds necessary for the operation of the P & Z shall be derived
from the fees and revenues generated from the building and electrical inspectors’ fees, fees for
variances and zone changes, permits issued by the P & Z, and any and all future sources of
revenue(s) approved by the Kentucky legislature and/or levied or funded by the Simpson Fiscal
Court and City Commission (except each party hereto shall not be assessed any costs in addition
to the amounts assessed by and through this Agreement without the prior approval of said party),
and the parties’ contribution as set forth in the allocation of costs section hereinbelow.

Article 7.2. Fee/Rate Increases. As of the date of this Agreement, the City and County
each have fee/rate structure ordinances that have been duly adopted by each body politic setting
the fees and/or rates for all aspects of P & Z including, but not limited to variances, zone changes
and inspections. After the adoption/approval of this Agreement, the ERRC shall review and
recommend changes to the budgets/finances of the P & Z including, but not limited to rate changes
subject to the City and County approving and adopting fee/rate changes by motion, resolution or
ordinance affecting P & Z; provided, however, that the City shall approve any rate/fee changes, by
motion, resolution or ordinance, prior to the County’s final adoption of any motion, resolution, or
ordinance changing the rates/fees, subject to the provisions of Article VIII below.

ARTICLE VIII: ALLOCATION OF COSTS AND BUDGETS

Article 8.1. Costs Allocated to the Parties. Each of the parties hereto agree to pay said
party’s allocated share of costs which are as follows:

(@ One-half of the difference of total fees and revenues generated from the operation
of P & Z and the inspection programs minus the total of expenses incurred by or
on behalf of P & Z and the inspection programs.

Article 8.2. Budgeting/Budget Approval. P & Z shall prepare, submit, and approve an
annual budget to the City and County by or before February 15 of each year. The budget shall
include, but not be limited to all projected revenues and expenses, as well as all capital
expenditures for the next fiscal year. The City and the County shall both have the right to approve
said budget, whether by motion or otherwise, and once approved, City and/or County agree to
budget and fund such amounts as are necessary and appropriate to fund P & Z for each fiscal year.
In the event that either City or County do not approve the budget of P & Z, all parties agree that a
joint meeting shall be conducted by or before June 1 of the year that the budget is submitted in an
effort to reach an agreement concerning the budget issues. All surpluses of revenues over expenses
shall be carried over, in a separate account, to the next fiscal year, and shall be used solely for P &
Z and/or inspection program expenses. If P & Z and/or the inspection program requires an
amendment to the budget during any fiscal year in excess of $5,000.00 for any one budget item or,
if the aggregate of additional expenses exceed $5,000.00, the City and County shall each have the

-127-



right to approve said budget amendment expense(s) prior to the P & Z incurring said additional
expenditures.

ARTICLE IX: DISBURSEMENT OF PROPERTY UPON TERMINATION OF
AGREEMENT

Article 9.1. Disbursement of Personal Property in the Event of Mutual Termination. In
the event that all parties hereto agree to terminate this Agreement pursuant to the applicable
provisions herein, the personal property shall remain with the P & Z unless the P & Z is no longer
in existence, in which the personal property shall be divided between the parties by agreement.

ARTICLE X: ASSIGNMENT

Article 10.1. Assignment. This Agreement may not be assigned by any party without the
prior written consent of the remaining parties hereto.

ARTICLE XI: EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

Article 11.1. The parties hereto agree that costs and expenses shall be divided as set forth
in Section VIII above. The parties further agree that the County shall bill the City monthly for the
City’s share of the costs associated with the operation of the P & Z. Any party failing to make
payment as required by this Agreement shall be deemed to be in default and the remaining parties
may seek any and all recourses available to them at law or in equity.

ARTICLE XII: MISCELLANEOUS

Article 12.1. Notices. All notices, certificates, requests or other communications
hereunder will be sufficiently given and will be in writing and mailed (postage prepaid, and
certified or registered with return receipt requested) or delivered (including delivery by courier
services) as follows:

CITY: City of Franklin
Attn: Mayor or City Manager
925 South Main Street
P. O. Box 2805
Franklin, Kentucky 42135-2805

COUNTY: County of Simpson
Attn: County Judge Executive
Simpson County Courthouse
Franklin, Kentucky 42134

PLANNING & ZONING:  Franklin-Simpson Planning & Zoning

Attn: Chairperson
Franklin, Kentucky 42134

~128-



Any of the foregoing may, by notice given hereunder to the other, designate any further or different
addresses to which subsequent notices, certificates, requests or other communications will be sent
hereunder. All notices, certificates, requests and other communications pursuant to this Agreement
will be effective when received (if given by mail) or when delivered (if given by delivery). Further,
in the event of a change in personnel to any party/officer hereto, the presumption shall be that,
unless the other parties are notified, in writing, the successor to that position shall be the authorized
representative and shall be bound by this Agreement.

Article 12.2. Amendments, Changes and Modifications. Except as specifically provided
in this Agreement, this Agreement may not be amended, changed, modified or altered, or any
provision hereof waived, without the written consent of all parties hereto.

Articles 12.3. Severability. In the event that any provision of this Agreement is held
invalid or unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding will not invalidate
or render unenforceable any other provision hereof.

Article 12.4. Execution in Counterparts. This Agreement may be simultaneously executed
in several counterparts, each of which will be an original and all of which will constitute but one
and the same instrument. '

Article 12.5. Applicable Law. This Agreement will be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of the Commonwealth of Kentucky.

Article 12.6. Captions. The captions or headings herein are for convenience only and in
no way define, limit or describe the scope or intent of any provisions or section of this Agreement.

Article 12.7. Binding Effect. This Agreement will inure to the benefit of and will be
binding upon the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns (including, without
limitation, security assigns), subject, however, to the limitations contained in this Agreement.

Article 12.8. Entire Agreement. This Agreement and all exhibits attached hereto shall
constitute the entire agreement of the parties hereto and any prior agreement of the parties hereto
relating to the Project, whether written or oral, is merged herein and shall be of no separate force
and effect.

Article 12.9. Mutual Negotiation. This Agreement and the language contained herein have
been arrived at by the mutual negotiation of the parties. Accordingly, no provision hereof shall be
construed against one party in favor of another party merely by reason of draftsmanship.

Article 12.10. Waiver. No action or failure to act by one or more of the parties hereto shall
constitute a waiver of a right or duty afforded it/him under the contract, nor shall such action or
failure to act constitute approval or acquiescence of or in a breach hereunder.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement by and through their
duly authorized representatives as of the day and year first above written.

-129-



CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

Larry Dixon, Mayor
Date Executed:

ATTEST:

Cathy Dillard, City Clerk

Date Executed:
SIMPSON COUNTY, KENTUCKY
Mason Barnes, County Judge Executive
Date Executed:

ATTEST:

Pam Rohrs, Fiscal Court Clerk
Date Executed:

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION

Chairperson
Date Executed:
HAVE SEEN AND CONSENT TO FORM
AND APPROVE FOR EXECUTION:
Ryan Halloran .
Office of Kentucky Attorney General
Date Executed:
10

-130-



